
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plums ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 
AGENDA 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING 
October 2, 2014 – 12:30 P.M. 

  
Meeting Location: Fuji Room, Coast Wenatchee Hotel, 201 N. Wenatchee AVE, Wenatchee, WA 98801 

Agenda Item Action Page Time 
 LUNCH 12:00 
 A) ADMINISTRATION    

1. Call to Order   12:30 
 2. Welcome and Introductions   12:35 

3. Approve Agenda: Cecilia Gardener Action  12:40 
4. Meeting Minutes for August 8, 2014: Barbara Smith  Action 5 12:45 
5. Executive Director Update: Kendee Yamaguchi verbal  12:50 
6. Public Disclosure Filings Update: Cecilia Gardener   15 12:55 
7. Department of Emergency Management Presentation: Cathi Read  17 1:00 

B) CONTRACTING    
1. Cristalina LLC Update informational 33 1:20 

C) POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT    
1. Public Works Board Action Plan: Cecilia Gardener  37 1:20 
2. Legislative Update:  Cecilia Gardener  41 1:25 

a. 43.155 modifications: Ann Campbell    
3. 2016 PWAA Construction Update informational 85 1:25 

D) TECHNICAL & IMPACT ASSISTANCE    
1. Center for Sustainable Infrastructure Update: Bruce Lund  89 1:30 
2. First Stop Initiative Update: Bruce Lund  111 1:35 
3. Technical Assistance Activity: Bruce Lund  113 1:40 

a. Training and Education    
b. Communications    
c. Direct Client Assistance    

E) INFORMATION & OTHER ITEMS    
1. Board Committee Updates    

a. Executive Committee: Stan Finkelstein verbal  1:45 
b. Policy & Program Development Committee: Scott Hutsell verbal  1:50 
c. Technical Assistance Committee: Jerry Cummins verbal  1:55 
d. Communication Committee: Ed Hildreth  117 2:00 

2. Board Member Updates verbal 123 2:05 
3. Other:    

a. PWB Funding Requests (Budget 101): Kendee Yamaguchi / Cecilia Gardener  129 2:10 
F) EXECUTIVE SESSION    

a. Current Staffing with Historical Context: Kendee Yamaguchi / Cindy Chavez   2:20 
Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 3:30 p.m. 

NEXT BUSINESS MEETING SCHEDULED: December 5, 2014, in Olympia, WA. 
 
Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE, Olympia, WA 98504-2525.  
Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-2744 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be 
accessible to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days’ notice to the Public Works Board at 
(360) 725-2744. 
 



2



TAB A 
ADMINISTRATION 

3



4



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 1 of 9 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING  
August 8, 2014 

Department of Commerce – Room #110 Columbia River Room 

Board Members Guests Present: Staff Present: Present: Absent: 
Stan Finkelstein, Chair  Rhys Roth, Center for Sustainable Infrastructure Kendee Yamaguchi,  

Executive Director JC Baldwin, Vice Chair  Karen Klocke, Department of Health 
Ted Carlson  Steve Lindstrom, Sno-King Water Alliance Cecilia Gardener 
Pam Carter  Stephen Misiurak, City of Gig Harbor Mark Barkley 
Jerry Cummins  Jeff Nejedly, Department of Ecology Chris Gagnon 
Mary Margaret Haugen  Tom Peadon, Belfair Water District Isaac Huang 
Ed Hildreth   Lynn Kohn 
Scott Hutsell   Rodney Orr 
Diane Pottinger   Cathi Read 
Matt Rasmussen   Kaaren Roe 
Bubba Scott   Barbara Smith 
Lisa Wellman    
 

ADMINISTRATION 

1) Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 9:03 am. 

2) Welcome and Introductions. 

3) ACTION: Pam Carter moved to approve the agenda as presented. Lisa Wellman seconded. 
Discussion: Diane Pottinger pointed out that Tom Peadon from Belfair was in attendance and would 
like to address the Board. Stan Finkelstein said he could speak right after Item #6 on the Agenda. 
Diane Pottinger moved to approve the amended agenda. Ed Hildreth seconded. MOTION 
APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, 
Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman). 

4) ACTION: Scott Hutsell moved to approve the July 11, 2014, meeting minutes as presented. JC 
Baldwin seconded. Discussion: Pam Carter had several corrections to the minutes. On Page 6, in the 
first paragraph under Executive Director’s Update, Carter noted that not all staff nor all Board 
members attended the AWC conference, and requested wording changes to several staff and 
several Board members. On page 7, in the first paragraph, in the discussion of Cristalina LLC, Carter 
noted that Covington PUD should be changed to Covington Water District. And on Page 9, under 
Board Member Updates, Carter clarified that she attended a meeting of the Sewer Funding Coalition 
at the AWC Conference. Pam Carter moved to approve the minutes of July 11, 2014, as modified. 
Ed Hildreth seconded. MOTION APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, 
Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman) Pam Carter further requested that 
minutes be provided from the Staff Retreat. They can be simple and general, but according to the 
OPMA training we received at the last minutes, we have to have minutes. Cecilia Gardener said she 
would produce them. 

5



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 2 of 9 

5) Executive Director Update: Kendee Yamaguchi updated the Board on budget development. All 
agencies were asked to produce budget packages with 15% reductions. The first phase has been 
reviewed and approved to move to OFM. Submission deadline is September 19. Packages include 
FTE reductions as well as increases. The Agency had discussions last week with any staff whose 
position may be impacted by reductions. Three FTEs from PWB staff may be impacted. We are 
committed to minimize the impact on staff. Operating Decision Package is for $794,000 for three 
FTEs. Travel expenses were added to the package since our last conversation. The Capital Package is 
$200 million - $175 million construction, and $25 million for preconstruction. Past Practices Update: 
Five areas implemented or currently implementing corrective measures – 1) Conflict of interest and 
recusal process: AAG will be here later during the loan list deliberations; 2) Cultural Review: High 
level, still attacking backlog and closing gap; 3) Open Public Meetings Act , we are meeting 
requirements; 4) Public Disclosure Filings: the Board has been trained on this and is in compliance; 
5) Budget Alignment and Position: Yamaguchi is working with staff and all staff job descriptions are 
currently under review to ensure alignment with budget.  To address Diane Pottinger’s question on 
stakeholder outreach, over the past month Yamaguchi has been conducting outreach to let key 
stakeholders know about our budget requests (Capital and Operating), and has had personal contact 
with either the policy director or the executive director of several listed stakeholder associations. 
There will be two stakeholder meetings – the first in September at AWC, and the second in 
November at WPUDA’s conference. Yamaguchi will send out a Friday update, and is currently 
working on a template. It will be close to what members saw last session. Let us know if you have 
any thoughts on that. This will not be restricted to session only. 

Stan Finkelstein strongly recommended that Kendee Yamaguchi include the Association of General 
Contractors in communications. 

Yamaguchi stated that she will be turning to the Board in the future to ask how services and staff 
should be aligned should we be impacted by budget cutbacks. July 2015 is the start of the net 
biennium and will be when these cuts take effect. The Board needs to identify contingency plans. 
Staff will provide a recommendation to consider in the next few months or so. Yamaguchi addressed 
the request for a meeting with the Governor. She stated that the reply from the Governor’s office 
this week was that it is still under consideration. The Governor’s office is also still working on the 
County Board open seat, as well. Following up on Pam Carter’s concern regarding a press release for 
Board member appointments, Yamaguchi spoke with the Agency’s Communications Director. 
Apparently it was a rare occurrence when the Governor’s Office announced appointments in the 
past. The Governor’s office has asked the Agency to announce appointments, which the agency had 
not done before. Yamaguchi brought it back to the Governor’s office, and was told that in this 
administration they tend to bundle multiple Board appointments together and roll out a larger 
announcement, rather than doing them individually. The concern about this was shared back to the 
Governor’s office. 

Stan Finkelstein asked about the vacant County appointee. Yamaguchi said the Governor’s office is 
still working on this. Names have been received by the Association, and Yamaguchi has been 
checking regularly for updates.  

Pam Carter expressed concern that she could not find notification of yesterday’s special meeting on 
the website. Chris Gagnon stated that it was on the Home Page under “News”. This was later shown 
to Carter by Rodney Orr. Cecilia Gardener noted that the Code Reviser was updated, notices were 

6



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 3 of 9 

sent out, and we checked with the AAG to confirm that we are in full compliance. The meeting was 
recorded and official minutes were taken. 

Mary Margaret Haugen expressed concern over the 15% reduction. Yamaguchi responded that this 
is coming out of the Growth Management Division due to it being the recipient of General Fund 
State revenues, and isn’t impacting PWB at this time. Gardener clarified that every group is being 
looked at; some will take huge hits, some will take small hits, and some groups will have no hits. 
None of the 15% reduction is touching the Board at this time.  

6) Center for Sustainable Infrastructure: Rhys Roth, Director of the Center for Sustainable 
Infrastructure brought a request to the Board for sponsorship of his report on more affordable, 
integrated, environmentally sound infrastructure. He is seeking $25,000 total, and asking a dozen 
agencies for support. Specifically he asked PWB for $2,000. Cecilia Gardener said that we do have 
available resources, and past practice is that we have used those resources for such things under the 
Board’s direction. Ed Hildreth asked what kind of report would we receive for our sponsorship? Roth 
replied that he will share a review draft with staff and interested Board members, and request 
feedback. He will also give a more in-depth briefing at the appropriate time. Stan Finkelstein stated 
that if the Board were to sponsor this, that there should be some type of contract with Roth, stating 
that in exchange for sponsorship the Center will provide a named deliverable. Lisa Wellman 
suggested that the report be presented at one of the academies, Chair Finkelstein agreed. Roth 
stated that the review draft will be available toward the end of August with revisions and finalizing 
by the second half of October. The report will be highlighted at the IACC conference with a plenary 
session. Roth is also taking it to the American Water Resources Association and the Sustainable Path 
Foundation Town Hall both of which are located in Seattle. He is also talking to other foundations 
and looking to roll the report out at other events. ACTION: Diane Pottinger moved to support the 
report at the $2,000 level. Lisa Wellman seconded the motion. Discussion: Ed Hildreth asked staff if 
$2,000 is within range; Cecilia Gardener replied it was. Mr. Roth stated that this would be the fifth 
contributor to this. Kendee Yamaguchi wants to ensure that the Board’s logo and name is on all the 
materials. Roth replied that he will work that out with Evergreen as to style and formatting. 
MOTION APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, 
Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman) 

7) Belfair Water District: Tom Peadon from Belfair Water District updated the Board on an issue that is 
putting their project substantially over budget. They are under a mandate from Washington State 
Department of Transportation (DOT) to move 8,500 lineal feet of asbestos water line out of the road 
right of way.  They intend to do this and replace it with 12 inch pipe; these activities must be 
completed by February 1, 2015. All utilities are mandated by DOT to move their individual conduits 
by that date so that DOT can commence their widening project on Highway 3. The bids have come in 
substantially higher than their current loan amount. Peadon has talked to Board staff about this, and 
is looking at all possible avenues of raising the capital for this. He is also looking for political support 
with the issue. The current loan amount is $1.9 million covering the period between December 2009 
to December 2015. The current estimate is $2.9 million to finish the project by February 1, 2015. 
There are a number of reasons why this cost snowballed during the design process, including 
changes in design, higher engineering costs, and a huge amount of additional asphalt restoration. 
The Public Works Board cannot financially assist within the given time period. Board members 
directed staff to assist Peadon by identifying funding sources that may be able to assist the Water 
District. 

7



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 4 of 9 

CONTRACTING/FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES 

1) Contracts Administration Unit – Quarterly Report: Mark Barkley stated he had three items to bring 
to the Board: a request for loan restructure by Sunnyside, an update on Cristalina, and a data 
summary of all efforts his unit has supported this quarter.  

2) Sunnyside DWSRF Loan Restructure: Karen Klocke from the Department of Health and Mark Barkley 
from CAU updated the Board on this request. Steve Dunk worked this action, and they were 
reporting for him while he is on vacation. Staff believe – in coordination with Health – that the 
request for increase should not be supported by the Board. Bottom line, we don’t think Sunnyside 
needs it. No motion was put forward. 

3) Cristalina LLC: Mark Barkley updated the Board on the Cristalina situation. A bad situation with the 
current operator, Maria Lindberg, has been made worse. Lindberg is currently in South America, and 
no one is sure where she is. Her attorney asked for a delay due to this, and so no movement has 
occurred. Barkley will schedule a meeting early next week with staff members and one of their 
commission members to talk about if we do make a sale it will basically reduce the value of the LLC 
to zero. We will move all value to the new owner. The idea is to preserve $550,000 of taxpayers’ 
dollars and secure that under a new owner. Their contention is that rate payers could lose $60,000. 
Barkley recommends preserving the $550,000. The absorbed loss will then be transferred amongst 
all the rate payers. The UTC authorizes the sale, and this Board authorizes the reassignment of the 
loan based on the sale. Staff are pushing UTC to get the sale done. UTC is very concerned about rate 
payers and having them pay twice. Staff believe they will pay more if we keep dragging this out. 
Barkley thinks we might need Stan Finkelstein to press the UTC sometime in the next week or two. 
We need to secure the loan as soon as possible and get to a viable sale. Karen Klocke from 
Department of Health stated that DOH is primarily concerned about the quality of water for the 
health of the whole system. They want them to have safe and reliable water, and they don’t want to 
see them go into receivership or default and get away scot free. They would like to see Washington 
Water or Covington Water District take over. Barkley said that Lindberg has a personal fine levied of 
$15,000 and there are some private residents bringing a lawsuit against her as well. There is no 
action required by the Board at this time, this is just an update. Staff will come back to the Board 
with further updates as they occur.  

POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT 

1) Public Works Board: A Historical Perspective: Kendee Yamaguchi presented a slideshow on the 
history of the Public Works Board. Stan Finkelstein commented that the Board was created in 1985 
and the first loan was in 1986. Lisa Wellman commented that the Trust Fund should be conflated 
and presented as one, since that was the original intent. Finkelstein replied that the original law 
establishes an Assistance Account, not a trust fund. The distinction has become blurred since 
McCleary. Discussion of how rates were raised for the purpose of establishing the fund, and how we 
need to show that in writing, via the original chapter laws. If rates were raised specifically for this, 
and the money is being siphoned off elsewhere, the tax payers are being lied to. 

Staff noted on the slide for the Emergency Fund that these funds were swept by the legislature 
years ago, and the Board has not allocated any money to this fund since then.  

8



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 5 of 9 

Board members requested that the PowerPoint presentation be emailed to them, as the org charts 
are still very tiny on screen and they cannot see them. They would also like changes made to the org 
chart screens so that they can immediately see who is being paid by PWB and who is not. 

The Board asked for clarity on why we are losing three staff people, if Growth Management is taking 
the 15% hit and PWB is not. Cecilia Gardener gave background. PWB has not asked for more FTEs 
over the last several biennia because we wanted to keep our numbers low. Workload increased, and 
staff were hired (sustained through other revenue streams). Those direct appropriations are now 
gone and we have to ask for more money to sustain current staffing levels.  

Stan Finkelstein requested that the Board be sent a concise presentation of the budget as it was 
presented and its implications. What is the amount of the indirect and its implications? Cecilia 
Gardener replied that will be presented at the October 2, 2014, meeting, in the budget 
presentation. 

Pam Carter would like to be sent links to the session law. Stan Finkelstein asked that the preamble 
to the PWAA statue, the preoperative section, and the revenue sections be sent to the entire Board. 

2) Budget Development Update: Cecilia Gardener stated that since Kendee Yamaguchi had already 
covered this in her earlier remarks that we would move on. There will be further updates at the 
October meeting. 

3) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Proposal Board Member Update: Stan Finkelstein met 
with Clark Halvorson and Joe Crossland from the Department of Health (DOH) over the proposal to 
shift the DWSRF contracting back to DOH. The agency heads have also met on this topic. Chair 
Finkelstein reminded the Board that at the last meeting, DOH presented their proposal to assume 
DWSRF contract administration. The initial timeline was 4 years, and then there was discussion of 
doing it in 2 years. The impact of this on PWB staff is rather dramatic. 4.8 FTEs are involved. There is 
some talk of delaying implementation, with nothing happening before the 2017-19 biennium. Chair 
Finkelstein stated that he left the meeting without closure, but in a more positive frame of mind. 
The issue has to be resolved between the two agency directors and the legislature. Cecilia Gardener 
reported that she had gathered 8 responses to the proposal from Board members. Six were not in 
agreement that this should happen. One is okay with it, one was undecided. Clearly this is not 
overwhelming Board support for the proposal. This information was shared with Commerce Director 
Brian Bonlender before his meeting with DOH. Nothing will happen for the next two years. In the 
third year, DOH will take on new loans, and then we will start apportioning out administration. In 
the fourth year, DOH will start taking existing loans. As they get up to speed, we will transition 
duties over. This directly affects Steve Dunk and Mike Copeland, with the rest spread across CAU 
and Administration. Two are associated with the indirect cost. 6.5 total FTEs will be affected. Lisa 
Wellman questions whether this disentangling is in service of LEAN? Kendee Yamaguchi replied that 
budget staff from both agencies are working together to compare the impact to determine if this is 
LEAN or not. DOH definitely feels this is LEAN-er. Ms. Yamaguchi’s understanding of the timeline is 
that it is three to four years versus two to three years. Cecilia Gardener offered that both agencies 
are working together to create a transition team so we can work on all the nuances. Mark Barkley 
responded that there is a lot of work to be done, and a lot of learning to do. The accounting staff 
and the contracting staff are working together on this. DOH currently only does grants; we do grants 
and loans, so they need to be trained. Yamaguchi pointed out that DOH is the primacy agency, not 
Commerce. Gardener pointed out that technically this is DOH’s program not Commerce’s. It is not 

9



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 6 of 9 

necessarily a fait accompli; the agency heads have asked staff for analysis. If it doesn’t show what 
they think it will show, then more discussion should occur. Rodney Orr pointed out that three years 
ago DOH and Commerce staff went through a LEAN process. Part of this proposal is a cumulative 
result of that process. DOH taking over is part of the work that was done in those three days. 

4) Draft Public Works Board Action Plan: Cecilia Gardener stated that we discussed this yesterday in 
the committee meeting, and got feedback. She noted one item that needs clarity – The Stakeholders 
meeting should be a one day event with rolling meetings in order to give the stakeholders individual 
conversations, and yet make it easier on both staff and Board members to coordinate scheduling. 
We cannot do this in Wenatchee at the IACC conference; however, if we wait a month after that, it’s 
too late. This must happen in August or September.  

5) 2016 PWAA Construction Loan Ranked List: Cecilia Gardener presented the 2016 PWAA 
Construction Loan List. A press release is already prepared, ready to drop the numbers in as soon as 
the Board approves the list, and will be sent out this afternoon, and then posted on the website. 
Also, an email will go out to the unfunded clients, talking about funding reductions and more 
demand than supply. Technical assistance will be offered to the unfunded applicants to go over 
application and assist with future applications. Gardener discussed the new recusal process. We will 
discuss policy elements only, not actual applicants.  

Element 1 – How to assist and take into consideration the communities impacted by the forest 
fires in eastern Washington. Discussion – Stan Finkelstein asked if a particular jurisdiction isn’t 
impacted by a natural disaster, but it is located within a county on the disaster list, do they get the 
same reduced rate as a jurisdiction that was 100% impacted? Jerry Cummins asked what is the 
reduced rate? Staff replied 1.7%. Mary Margaret Haugen wants Snohomish County added to the list. 
Natural disasters aren’t just caused by fire. The Oso landslide was a natural disaster and impacted 
Snohomish County greatly. Lisa Wellman noted that the designation “Fire” on the blind list is pretty 
identifying. It should just read “impacted.” For example, “Landslide” would obviously point to Oso. 
Cecilia Gardener clarified that balancing factors would go to communities who have experienced 
severe financial distress. ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to approve staff recommendations that 
any project on the 2016 PWAA Construction loan list that is in one of the noted fire-affected 
counties be allocated a balancing factor of “severe fiscal distress” for consideration in the 
deliberation of the loan list. JC Baldwin seconded. Discussion: Jerry Cummins states that the fire-
impacted communities have not received the same level of emergency funds that Oso has, because 
of timing. Mary Margaret Haugen wants to amend the motion to add Snohomish County to the 
list. Bubba Scott seconded the amended motion. Haugen clarified that any jurisdiction that is 
impacted by a declared natural disaster. Bubba Scott seconded the amended and clarified motion. 
Discussion: Cecilia Gardener clarified that the declaration should be from the Governor, not the local 
level, and not necessarily Federal. MOTION AS AMENDED APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, 
Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman) ACTION: 
Jerry Cummins moved to approve that any project subject to the “severe fiscal distress” balancing 
factor, that is ultimately funded on the 2016 PWAA Construction loan list, be given an interest 
rate of 1.7%, the equivalent of what a community with a high Affordability Index would receive. JC 
Baldwin seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, 
Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman) 

10



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 7 of 9 

Element 2 – Board Member Recusals: Cecilia Gardener read the recusal list into the record as listed 
in the agenda packet. She asked if any more needed to be called into the record? There were no 
replies. No vote necessary. 

Element 3 – Identify the Priority of Ranking Elements: Cecilia Gardener explained the 2016 PWAA 
Construction Loan List as included in the Agenda Packet. She discussed the different elements in the 
table. General discussion of what the elements mean: Effort, Need, Readiness to Proceed, and 
Project Category. ACTION: Ed Hildreth motioned to sort solely by Need at the bubble. Bubba Scott 
seconded the motion. Gardener stated that historically the Board has valued both effort and need. 
The intent of the Board is to encourage self-sufficiency and good management. Staff recommend a 
minimum total score of 60, because staff think those below that score don’t appear ready to 
proceed. Jerry Cummins asked to speak against the motion. He would rather see Effort also be part 
of the configuration. If you look at Need alone, maybe the system that has failed to maintain their 
system has a higher need than a system that has practiced good maintenance and thus has a higher 
Effort score. Mary Margaret Haugen spoke in favor of Need. Sometimes the big guy has more ability 
to score higher in Effort, when smaller communities have a greater Need, but lower Effort. Matt 
Rasmussen would rather see Effort. Let’s reward Effort on the cusp, rather than Need. Ted Carlson 
agreed with Rasmussen, as did Scott Hutsell. Stan Finkelstein clarified that the Board wishes to 
accept this sort, except at the bubble, sort solely by Need. MOTION DENIED 2-9 (Haugen and Scott 
in favor; Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, and Wellman 
opposed) ACTION: Matt Rasmussen moved that the Board set the priority on the cusp to Effort. 
Jerry Cummins seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 9-2 (Haugen and Scott opposed; 
Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, and Wellman in favor) 
Opponents signified that they were willing to accept the majority’s choice. 

Element 4 – Identify the amount of resources allocated to the 2016 PWAA Construction Loan List: 
Element 4 was tabled, in order to deal with Element 5 first.  

Element 5 – Final Ranked List: Cecilia Gardener re-sorted the list and projected it on the screen. 51 
total projects. Gardener will ask for $2 million dollars. The Board needs to allocate that to Planning, 
Emergency, and Pre-construction funds. ACTION: Lisa Wellman moved that there be a line item 
included in the request for Emergency money that is tied to the list. Scott Hutsell seconded the 
motion. Discussion: Scott Hutsell stated that we should fund 51 projects and the 52nd is Emergency 
Fund. Stan Finkelstein stated that the list cuts off at $173 million, and asked if $1.2 million is tied to 
the list? Wellman replied that this would be tied to the list; however that needs to happen, whether 
it’s the next one down or however. Mary Margaret Haugen stated it should be the next one down. 
Finkelstein pointed out that an Emergency appropriation isn’t the same criteria as this list. Gardener 
stated that the Board has the authority to move money into the Emergency Funds or pre-
construction at any time. Construction is locked into this process. Haugen stated that three years is 
by Budget Proviso; you can’t amend that. Diane Pottinger applauds the Board’s intention to re-fund 
the Emergency Fund. It says a lot to the community. ACTION: Lisa Wellman moved to fund at $200 
million, for 50 projects, going down to a score of 48. Scott Hutsell seconded the motion. MOTION 
APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, 
Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman) 

 

11



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 8 of 9 

Element 4 – Identify the amount of resources allocated to the 2016 PWAA Construction Loan List: 
Cecilia Gardener pointed out this was discussed yesterday, when she asked the Board to mull this 
overnight. It is not unusual for a fund to go into the red. The uniqueness is the depth and length of 
time the Public Works Assistance Account will be in the red. This assumes payments made annually 
in June. This starts us in the hole. It is not unheard of; we just need to ask permission from OFM. 
Matt Rasmussen asked what would happen if we cut it off at 60? Diane Pottinger stated that we 
heard earlier about the need for Emergency Funds. She said that she’d like to put a portion into the 
Emergency Fund, even if it’s a small amount, to restart that fund. She didn’t specify a dollar amount. 
Ms. Gardener replied that a portion of preconstruction funds can be moved into the Emergency 
fund. Jerry Cummins asked to talk about this at the end of the meeting, and to ask the Governor for 
emergency funds. Mary Margaret Haugen thinks we should ask the feds, not the governor. Pam 
Carter asked if this would allow loan lists of $300 million per cycle? Gardener replied that this list 
includes the assumption that we will have $300 million for the following biennium only. Rasmussen 
asked why does staff think 60 should be the cutoff. Gardener replied that the criticality and urgency 
of projects were not very high this time around, although, admittedly, they are a high priority for the 
applicant. Stan Finkelstein stated that with the pressure on the hill due to the McCleary decision, he 
is nervous about overreaching. Unfortunately, there are no legislators serving who were there in 
1985 when the PWAA was established. He is in agreement with what staff has recommended, with 
one exception. Scott Hutsell interjected that we got chastised for not having a ranked list last time 
we did this. Now we have a ranked list, this gives the legislature the opportunity to make the cut 
where they want to make it. If we make a motion for the total $200 million, then they can say “We’ll 
give you a hundred, now we have a list; here’s where the cuts go.” Haugen agreed, and said let the 
legislature make the cuts. Lisa Wellman stated that we should fund as much as we can within our 
budget and go for it. ACTION: Lisa Wellman motions that we submit a request for $200 million; $25 
million for Preconstruction, $175 million for Construction. Mary Margaret Haugen seconded. 
Discussion: Jerry Cummins clarified that this will put us in the red for three years. MOTION 
APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, 
Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman)  

TECHNICAL & IMPACT ASSISTANCE 

1) Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council (IACC) Conference – Technical Assistance Staff 
Involvement: Lynn Kohn provided a memo explaining the Board’s role at the IACC conference and 
staff’s involvement in the conference. She spoke about staff involvement, and encouraged everyone 
to come. Cathi Read talked about Tech Teams and the evolution of the tech teams. Stan Finkelstein 
stated that in the past we’ve tried to get the Board together on Tuesday night for an informal dinner 
and we will send out an email about it in the next few weeks. JC Baldwin is organizing this. Kohn 
stated that they had about 32 attendees at the funding webinar they hosted on Thursday. It was 
very well received, and all attendees unanimously stated they want more webinars. Lisa Wellman 
stated that given the focus on K12 and education, we should invite local high schools and civics 
classes to watch government in action.  

 

  

12



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 9 of 9 

INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS 

1) Board Committee Updates: Stan Finkelstein stated that the Board was updated yesterday and 
deferred this to the next meeting. 

2) Board Member Updates: Jerry Cummins attended the ribbon cutting ceremony on August 23, 2014, 
for the MLK Jr. Boulevard Underpass in Yakima, WA.  

3) Other: ACTION: Jerry Cummins moves to direct staff to request $18 million from the Governor to 
reinstate the Emergency Fund. JC Baldwin seconded. Discussion: Mayor Cummins stated that it’s an 
odd number, and they’ll ask why. We need to reestablish the fund. The Board can get money out 
faster than the Governor, from the Governor’s Emergency Fund, which comes from the Feds. PWB 
should be the conduit to get funds to locals faster than the Governor. This is specific to Emergency 
needs. Cecilia Gardener asked for clarification. Does this only mean natural disaster? What about a 
pipe bursting or other disaster? Mayor Cummins stated that it depends on where the funds 
originate. Federal funds are restricted to only natural disasters. JC Baldwin stated that the Board is 
the best agency to do this. Pam Carter stated that the Governor’s funds are not restricted to natural 
disasters only. Gardener asked if this was for grants or for loans? Members stated that the funds 
would be allocated consistent with the source of funding. MOTION APPROVED 11-0 (Baldwin, 
Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman) 

Cathi Read made the Board aware of the Maximizing Resources Focus Group Fact Sheet. She stated 
that we do coordinate, and gave the members a handout. Barbara Smith will email the Fact Sheet to 
Board members. 

 

ACTION: Stan Finkelstein moved to adjourn the meeting. JC Baldwin seconded the motion. MOTION 
APPROVED.  

 

Adjourn: 2:03 pm 

13



14



 

 
 
Date: September 22, 2014 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Cecilia Gardener, Managing Director 
 
Subject: Public Disclosure Filing Deadline for Third Quarter – October 31, 2014 
 
 
We are required to file Public Disclosure Reports on a quarterly basis, for every Board 
member who has any contact with any state legislator. 
 
We have determined the simplest way to do this is for each board member to report to the 
Board Liaison their contact hours. We have developed the attached form for your use. 
 
The dates for filing for 2014 are as follows:   
 
Report Period Covered Due Date 
1st Quarter January – March April 30 
2nd Quarter April – June July 31 
3rd Quarter July – September October 31 
4th Quarter October – December February 1 
 
For the upcoming Third quarter end, reports are due back to our office by October 31, so 
that the Board Liaison can then data enter the information into the Public Disclosure 
Commission’s database. 
 
More information about Public Agency Lobbying is available on the PDC’s website here: 
http://www.pdc.wa.gov/archive/filerassistance/manuals/pdf/2014/Lobbyist.Public.Agency.m
anual.2014.pdf 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

15

http://www.pdc.wa.gov/archive/filerassistance/manuals/pdf/2014/Lobbyist.Public.Agency.manual.2014.pdf
http://www.pdc.wa.gov/archive/filerassistance/manuals/pdf/2014/Lobbyist.Public.Agency.manual.2014.pdf


 

Washington State  
Public Works Board 
Quarterly Public Disclosure Report (L-5) 
Lobbing Worksheet 

 

Fiscal Year: _________________Quarter:_____________________ 

Board Member Name:____________________________________ 

Date Prepared:__________________________________________ 

Prepared By:____________________________________________ 

 

Date of Lobbying Bill/WAC/RCW 
No. Subject Matter 

Legislator OR 
Legislative 

Committee (include 
Representative or 

Senator AND firs/last 
name 

Legislative 
Committee 

Description of Lobbying (Be 
Specific…did you testify, meet or with 
legislator or staff – indicate support of 

oppose if necessary. 

Hours 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

 

16



 1 

 
 

Summary of Some Grant and Loan Programs  
for Drinking Water and Wastewater Projects 

 

Updated 9-2-14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Please contact Cathi Read at cathi.read@commerce.wa.gov if you would like to update your program information  
or if you would like an electronic copy of this document. 

17

mailto:cathi.read@commerce.wa.gov


 2 

PLANNING 
Program 
 

Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

CDBG-POG 
Community 
Development Block 
Grant – Planning-Only 
Grant Fund 

• Comprehensive plans 
• Infrastructure plans 
• Feasibility studies 
• Community action 

plans 
• Low-income housing 

assessments 

Projects must principally 
benefit low- to moderate-
income people in non-
entitlement cities and counties. 
• Cities or towns with fewer 

than 50,000 people 
• Counties with fewer than 

200,000 people 
 

Grant 
• Up to $24,000 for a single 

jurisdiction.  
• Up to $35,000 for single 

jurisdiction projects that 
address urgent public health 
and safety needs.  

• Up to $40,000 for multiple 
jurisdictions/joint 
application. 

2014 applications accepted between October 
2014 and April 2015 on a fund-available basis. 
 
Visit www.commerce.wa.gov/cdbg for 
information and forms. 
 
Contacts: Phyllis Cole, 360-725-4001 
phyllis.cole@commerce.wa.gov 
 
 
 

PWB PLANNING 
Public Works Board – 
Planning Program 

• Single or multiple 
system plans covering 
PWTF eligible systems 

• Updates to existing 
capital facilities plans 

• Environmental studies 
• Cultural/historical 

project reviews 

Counties, cities, and special-
purpose districts that meet 
certain requirements (contact 
Regional Service Coordinator). 
 
No school or port districts. 

No planning funding is 
currently available. 

Note: Availability of future funds is dependent 
on approval by the Governor and Legislature. 
 
Contact: Isaac Huang, Regional Service 
Coordinator, 360-725-3162  
isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov 
 
 
 

DWSRF 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund 
 
Pre-Construction Only 
Grant Fund 

• Water System Plans, 
SWSMP, Plan 
amendments 

• Feasibility studies 
• Engineering and design 
• Historic and cultural 

review 
• Environmental review 

 

Cities or towns with fewer than 
10,000 people. 
 
Projects must principally be to 
move entities closer to 
applying for a DWSRF 
Construction Loan. 

Grant; Up to $25,000 for a single 
jurisdiction. 

2015 applications accepted from January 2-31, 
2015. 
 
Contact: Eloise Rudolph, 360-236-3124 
Eloise.rudolph@doh.wa.gov 
 
Visit www.doh.wa.gov for information and 
forms. 

DWSRF 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund – 
Restructuring/ 
Consolidation 
Loan/Grant Program 
 
COMING SOON 

• Water System Plans 
and Plan Amendments 

• Feasibility studies 
• Engineering and design 
• Historic and cultural 

review 
• Environmental review 
• Costs to physically 

connect the water 
systems together 

Eligible restructuring/ 
consolidation projects 
proposed by municipal Group A 
water systems.  
 
Projects must result in a 
change of ownership. 

Grant/ loan package 
• $2-3 million expected to 

be available for the next 
two years. 

• At least 50% subsidy is 
expected for qualifying 
consolidations. 

Application details expected in February 2015; 
Applications will be accepted from March 1-31, 
2015.  
 
Contact: Karen Klocke, 360-236-3116 
Karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov  
 
Visit www.doh.wa.gov for information and 
forms. 

18

http://www.commerce.wa.gov/cdbg
mailto:phyllis.cole@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:Eloise.rudolph@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/
mailto:Karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/


 3 

PLANNING – continued 
 
Program 
 

Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

ECOLOGY: INTEGRATED 
WATER QUALITY FUNDING 
PROGRAM 
State Water Pollution 
Control Revolving Fund 
 
Centennial Clean Water 
Fund 

Planning projects associated 
with publicly-owned 
wastewater and stormwater 
facilities. 
 
The integrated program also 
funds planning and 
implementation of nonpoint 
source pollution control 
activities. 

Counties, cities, towns, 
conservation districts, or 
other political subdivision, 
municipal or quasi-municipal 
corporations, and tribes 
 
 

Loan (SFY 2016 interest rates) at 
either: 
• 2.4% interest for 6-20 year term, 

or 
• 1.2% interest for 5 year term 
 
Pre-Construction Set-aside  
(Distressed Communities) 
50% forgivable principal loan and    
50% loan 
 
 

Applications typically accepted 
September 1 through first Friday in 
November.  
 
Contact: David Dunn 
360-407-6503 
david.dunn@ecy.wa.gov 
 
http:/www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/ 
wq/funding/funding.html 
 
 
 

RD PRE-DEVELOPMENT 
GRANTS (PPD) 
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture 
Rural Development –  
Rural Utilities Service – 
Water and Waste Disposal 
Direct Loans and Grants 
 

Water and/or sewer planning; 
environmental work; and 
other work to assist in 
developing an application for 
infrastructure improvements. 

Low-income, small 
communities and systems 
serving areas under 10,000 
population. 

Planning grant to assist in paying costs 
associated with developing a complete 
application for RD funding for a 
proposed project. 
 
Maximum $30,000 grant 
Requires minimum 25% match 

Applications accepted year-round, 
on a fund-available basis. 
 
Contact:  Gene Dobry 
360-704-7733 
eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov 
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa 

RD ‘SEARCH’ GRANTS: 
SPECIAL EVALUATION 
ASSISTANCE FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES  
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture 
Rural Development –  
Rural Utilities Service – 
Water and Waste Disposal 
Direct Loans and Grants 
 

Water and/or sewer planning; 
environmental work; and 
other work to assist in 
developing an application for 
infrastructure improvements. 

Low-income, small 
communities and systems 
serving areas under 2,500 
population. 

Maximum $30,000 grant.  
No match required. 

Applications accepted year-round, 
on a fund-available basis. 
 
Contact:  Gene Dobry 
360-704-7733 
eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov 
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa 

 
 
 
 
 
 

19

mailto:david.dunn@ecy.wa.gov
mailto:eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa
mailto:eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa


 4 

PLANNING – continued 
 
CERB PLANNING AND 
FEASIBILITY GRANTS 
Community Economic 
Revitalization Board –  
Project-Specific Planning 
Program 

Project-specific feasibility and 
pre-development studies that 
advance community economic 
development goals for 
industrial sector business 
development.  

Eligible statewide   
• Counties, cities, towns, 

port districts, special 
districts. 

• Federally recognized 
tribes 

• Municipal corporations, 
quasi-municipal 
corporations w/ 
economic development 
purposes. 
 
 

Grant 
• Up to $50,000 per application. 
• Requires 25 percent matching 

funds. 

Applications accepted year-round. 
The Board meets six times a year. 
 
Contacts:  Janea Eddy, 360-725-3151 
janea.eddy@commerce.wa.gov 
 
 

RCAC 
RURAL COMMUNITY 
ASSISTANCE CORPORATION 
Feasibility and  
Pre-Development Loans 
 

Water and/or wastewater 
planning; environmental 
work; and other work to assist 
in developing an application 
for infrastructure 
improvements. 

Non-profit organizations, 
public agencies, tribes, and 
low-income rural 
communities with a 50,000 
population or less, or 10,000 
or less if proposed permanent 
financing is through USDA 
Rural Development. 

• Maximum $50,000 for 
feasibility loan. 

• Maximum $350,000 for pre-
development loan. 

• 1 year term. 
• 5.5% interest rate. 

Applications accepted anytime 
 
Contact: Chuck Miller 
360-253-7683 
cmiller@rcac.org 
 
Applications available on-line at 
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20

mailto:janea.eddy@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:cmiller@rcac.org
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126


 5 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION ONLY 
 
Program Eligible Projects 

 
Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

PWB PRE-CON 
Public Works Board – 
Pre-Construction 
Program 

Low-interest loans to 
fund pre-construction 
activities that prepare a 
specific project for 
construction. 

Counties, cities, special purpose 
districts, and quasi-municipal 
organizations that meet certain 
requirements. 
 
School districts and port districts 
are not eligible. 

No pre-construction funding 
currently available. 
 
 

Check the Public Works Board  website  
periodically at http://www.pwb.wa.gov to 
obtain the latest information on program 
details or to contact Public Works Board 
staff. 
 
Map of Regional Service Coordinators: 
http://www.pwb.wa.gov/technical-
assistance/Regional-Service-
Coordinators/Pages/default.aspx  
 

DWSRF 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund 
 
Pre-Construction Only 
Grant Fund 

• Water System 
Plans, SWSMP, Plan 
amendments 

• Feasibility studies 
• Engineering and 

design 
• Historic and cultural 

review 
• Environmental 

review 
 

Cities or towns with fewer than 
10,000 people. 
 
Projects must principally be to 
move entities closer to applying 
for a DWSRF Construction Loan. 

Grant; Up to $25,000 for a single 
jurisdiction. 

2015 applications accepted from January 2-
31, 2015. 
 
Contact: Eloise Rudolph, 360-236-3124 
Eloise.rudolph@doh.wa.gov 
 
Visit www.doh.wa.gov for information and 
forms. 

DWSRF 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund – 
Restructuring/ 
Consolidation 
Loan/Grant Program 
 
COMING SOON 

• Water System Plans 
and Plan 
Amendments 

• Feasibility studies 
• Engineering and 

design 
• Historic and cultural 

review 
• Environmental 

review 
• Costs to physically 

connect the water 
systems together 

Eligible restructuring/ 
consolidation projects proposed 
by municipal Group A water 
systems.  
 
Projects must result in a change of 
ownership. 

Grant/ loan package 
• $2-3 million expected to be 

available for the next two 
years. 

• At least 50% subsidy is 
expected for qualifying 
consolidations. 

Application details expected in February 
2015; Applications will be accepted from 
March 1-31, 2015.  
 
Contact: Karen Klocke, 360-236-3116 
Karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov  
 
Visit www.doh.wa.gov for information and 
forms. 

 
 
 

21

http://www.pwb.wa.gov/
http://www.pwb.wa.gov/technical-assistance/Regional-Service-Coordinators/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.pwb.wa.gov/technical-assistance/Regional-Service-Coordinators/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.pwb.wa.gov/technical-assistance/Regional-Service-Coordinators/Pages/default.aspx
mailto:Eloise.rudolph@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/
mailto:Karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/


 6 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION ONLY – continued 
 
Program Eligible Projects 

 
Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

ECOLOGY: INTEGRATED 
WATER QUALITY 
FUNDING PROGRAM 
State Water Pollution 
Control Revolving Fund 
 
Centennial Clean Water 
Fund 
 
 
 
 
Stormwater Financial 
Assistance Program 
(SFAP)  

Design projects 
associated with publicly-
owned wastewater and 
stormwater facilities. 
 
The integrated program 
also funds planning and 
implementation of 
nonpoint source 
pollution control 
activities. 
 
Stormwater grant 
assistance is available 
for projects not 
required by permit. 
 

Counties, cities, towns, 
conservation districts, or other 
political subdivision, municipal or 
quasi-municipal corporations, and 
tribes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stormwater grants are available 
for cities and counties. 

Loan (SFY 2016 interest rates), at 
either: 
• 2.4% interest for 6-20 year term, 

or 
• 1.2% interest for 5 year term 
 
Pre-Construction Set-aside  
(Distressed Communities) 
50% forgivable principal loan and 
50% loan 
 
 
Stormwater grant maximum award 
per jurisdiction: $250,000 
 

Applications typically accepted September 1 
through first Friday in November.  
 
Contact: David Dunn 
360-407-6503 
david.dunn@ecy.wa.gov 
 
http:/www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/ 
wq/funding/funding.html 
 

RCAC 
RURAL COMMUNITY 
ASSISTANCE 
CORPORATION 
Feasibility and  
Pre-Development Loans 
 

Water and/or 
wastewater planning; 
environmental work; 
and other work to assist 
in developing an 
application for 
infrastructure 
improvements. 

Non-profit organizations, public 
agencies, tribes, and low-income 
rural communities with a 50,000 
population or less, or 10,000 or 
less if proposed permanent 
financing is through USDA Rural 
Development. 
 

• Maximum $50,000 for 
feasibility loan. 

• Maximum $350,000 for pre-
development loan. 

• 1 year term. 
• 5.5% interest rate. 

Applications accepted anytime 
 
Contact: Chuck Miller 
360-253-7683 
cmiller@rcac.org  
 
Applications available on-line at 
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22

mailto:david.dunn@ecy.wa.gov
mailto:cmiller@rcac.org
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126


 7 

 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION ONLY - continued 
 
Program Eligible Projects 

 
Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

SOURCE WATER 
PROTECTION GRANT 
PROGRAM 
 

Drinking water source 
protection plans, 
feasibility studies, and 
hydrogeologic studies; 
and source protection 
actions/projects 
identified as a priority in 
a water system, local or 
regional plan. 
 

Counties, cities, towns, and 
special purpose districts. 
 
Homeowner’s associations and 
non-municipal water systems are 
not eligible. 
  
Project must be considered a 
priority for drinking water source 
protection by Department of 
Health Regional Office. 

• Grants 
• Funding is dependent upon 

project needs, but typically 
does not exceed $30,000. 

Applications accepted anytime; grants 
awarded on a funds available basis. 
 
Contact:  
Corina Hayes  
Source Water Protection Program Manager 
Washington State Department of Health 
Office of Drinking Water 
360-236-3114  
corina.hayes@doh.wa.gov  
 
http://www.doh.wa.gov/ 
CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/ 
SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection.aspx 
 

RURAL WATER 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Pre-Development Loans 

Pre-development costs 
associated with 
proposed water and 
wastewater projects.  
 
Short-term costs 
incurred for 
replacement 
equipment, small scale 
extension of services, or 
other small capital 
projects that are not a 
part of regular 
operations and 
maintenance. 
 

Systems applying must be public 
entities. This includes 
municipalities, counties, special 
purpose districts, Native American 
Tribes, and corporations not 
operated for profit, including 
cooperatives, with up to 10,000 
population and rural areas with 
no population limits. 

• Loan amounts may not 
exceed $100,000 or 75% of 
the total project cost, 
whichever is less. 

• Interest rates at the lower of 
the poverty or market 
interest rate as published by 
USDA RD RUS, with a 
minimum of 3% at the time 
of closing. 

• 5-year, interest only, pre-
development loans will also 
be available. 

• Maximum repayment period 
is 10 years. Additional 
ranking points for a shorter 
repayment period. The 
repayment period cannot 
exceed the useful life of the 
facilities or financed item. 
 

Applications accepted anytime. 
 
Contact: Tracey Hunter 
Evergreen Rural Water of WA 
360-462-9287 
thunter@erwow.org 
 
Download application online: 
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlfapp.pdf 

 

23

mailto:corina.hayes@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
mailto:thunter@erwow.org
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlfapp.pdf


 8 

CONSTRUCTION and DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION 
 
Program Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants 

 
Funding Available How To Apply 

CDBG-GP 
Community Development 
Block Grant – General 
Purpose Grant Fund 

Final design and construction 
of wastewater, drinking 
water, side connections, 
stormwater, streets,  bridge, 
community facility, economic 
development, and housing 
rehabilitation projects. 
 

Projects must principally benefit 
low- to moderate-income people in 
non-entitlement cities and 
counties. 
• Cities or towns with fewer 

than 50,000 people 
• Counties with fewer than 

200,000 people 

Grant 
• Up to $1 million, depending on 

project type and need factors. 
• No match required, but local 

contribution and gap financing 
preferred. 

Applications due June 2015.  
 
Visit www.commerce.wa.gov/cdbg 
for information and forms. 
 
Contact: Sheila Lee-Johnston 
360-725-3009 
sheila.lee-
johnston@commerce.wa.gov 
 

PWB 
Public Works Board – 
Construction Program 

New construction, 
replacement, and repair of 
existing infrastructure for 
domestic water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater, solid 
waste, road or bridge 
projects, and reasonable 
growth. 

Counties, cities, special purpose 
districts, and quasi-municipal 
organizations that meet certain 
requirements (contact a Regional 
Service Coordinator for more 
information). No school districts or 
port districts. 
 

Loan; Maximum loan amount per 
jurisdiction: $7 million. 
 
It is unknown yet whether funding 
will be available for SFY 2017 
 
Interest rates for non-distressed 
communities: 2.55% (pending Board 
determination next year). Interest 
rates for distressed communities 
may be reduced. 
 
The repayment term cannot exceed 
the life of the improvement. 
 
No local match or loan fee required. 
 

SFY 2016 Application Cycle: 
Application evaluation is 
completed. 2016 Recommended 
Loan List is posted on website. 
Funds may be available in July 
2015, subject to legislative 
approval. For more information 
please visit 
http://www.pwb.wa.gov 
 
Contact: Isaac Huang,  
Regional Service Coordinator  
360-725-3162 
isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov 
 
 

RD 
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture  
Rural Development - 
Rural Utilities Service - 
Water and Waste Disposal 
Direct Loans and Grants 

Pre-construction and 
construction associated with 
building, repairing, or 
improving drinking water, 
solid waste facilities and 
wastewater facilities. 

• Cities or towns with fewer 
than 10,000 population. 

• Counties, special purpose 
districts, non-profit 
corporations or tribes unable 
to get funds from other 
sources at reasonable rates 
and terms. 

Loans; Grants in some cases 
• Interest rates vary         

(currently 2.375-4%). 
• Up to 40-year loan term. 
• No pre-payment penalty. 

Applications accepted year-round 
on a fund-available basis. 
 
Contact:  Gene Dobry 
360-704-7733  
eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov 
 
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa 
 

 

24

http://www.commerce.wa.gov/cdbg
mailto:sheila.lee-johnston@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:sheila.lee-johnston@commerce.wa.gov
http://www.pwb.wa.gov/
mailto:isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa


 9 

CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION – continued 
 
Program Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants 

 
Funding Available How To Apply 

DWSRF 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund 

Drinking water system 
infrastructure projects aimed 
at increasing public health 
protection. The program now 
includes dedicated funding 
for subsidy.  
 
There is a limited amount of 
principal forgiveness for 
communities with high 
affordability index numbers 
and water system 
restructuring/ consolidation 
projects. 
 

Community and non-community 
water systems (includes for-profit 
and non-profit systems, but not 
federal or state-owned systems); 
both privately- and publicly-owned 
systems are eligible. 

Loan 
• 1 percent loan fee (water 

systems receiving subsidy are 
not subject to loan fees). 

• $12 million per jurisdiction per 
year. (2013 limit) 

• $24 million for jointly-owned 
projects. (2013 limit) 

• 1 to 1.5 percent interest rate. 
• Loan repayment period:            

20 years or life of the project, 
whichever is less. 

• No local match required. 
 

The Fall 2014 application cycle will 
start September 1, 2014 and end 
September 30, 2014.  
 
Contact: Karen Klocke 
360-236-3116 
karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov 
 
www.doh.wa.gov/ehp/dw/our_m
ain_pages/dwsrf.htm  
 
 

SOURCE WATER 
PROTECTION GRANT 
PROGRAM 
 

Drinking water source 
protection plans, feasibility 
studies, and hydrogeologic 
studies; and source 
protection actions/projects 
identified as a priority in a 
water system, local or 
regional plan. 
 

Counties, cities, towns, and special 
purpose districts. 
 
Homeowner’s associations and 
non-municipal water systems are 
not eligible. 
  
Project must be considered a 
priority for drinking water source 
protection by Department of 
Health Regional Office. 

• Grants. 
• Funding is dependent upon 

project needs, but typically 
does not exceed $30,000. 

 
http://www.doh.wa.gov/ 
CommunityandEnvironment/Drinkin
gWater/ 
SourceWater/SourceWaterProtectio
n.aspx 
 

Applications accepted anytime; 
grants awarded on a funds 
available basis. 
 
Contact:  
Corina Hayes 
Source Water Protection Program 
Manager, Washington State 
Department of Health, Office of 
Drinking Water 
360-236-3114 
corina.hayes@doh.wa.gov  
 

DWSRF 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund – 
Restructuring/ Consolidation 
Loan/Grant Program 
 
COMING SOON 

• Water System Plans and 
Plan Amendments 

• Feasibility studies 
• Engineering and design 
• Historic and cultural 

review 
• Environmental review 
• Costs to physically 

connect the water 
systems together 

Eligible restructuring/ 
consolidation projects proposed by 
municipal Group A water systems.  
 
Projects must result in a change of 
ownership. 

Grant/ loan package 
• $2-3 million expected to be 

available for the next two 
years. 

• At least 50% subsidy is 
expected for qualifying 
consolidations. 

Application details expected in 
February 2015; Applications will 
be accepted from March 1-31, 
2015.  
 
Contact: Karen Klocke, 360-236-
3116 
Karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov  
 
Visit www.doh.wa.gov for 
information and forms. 

25

mailto:karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/ehp/dw/our_main_pages/dwsrf.htm
http://www.doh.wa.gov/ehp/dw/our_main_pages/dwsrf.htm
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
http://www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/DrinkingWater/SourceWater/SourceWaterProtection
mailto:corina.hayes@doh.wa.gov
mailto:Karen.klocke@doh.wa.gov
http://www.doh.wa.gov/


 10 

CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION - continued 
Program Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants 

 
Funding Available How To Apply 

ECOLOGY: INTEGRATED 
WATER QUALITY FUNDING 
PROGRAM 
State Water Pollution Control 
Revolving Fund 
 
Centennial Clean Water Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stormwater Financial 
Assistance Program (SFAP) 

Construction projects 
associated with publicly-
owned wastewater and 
stormwater facilities. 
 
The integrated program also 
funds planning and 
implementation of nonpoint 
source pollution control 
activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stormwater grant assistance 
is available for projects not 
required by permit. 

Counties, cities, towns, 
conservation districts, or other 
political subdivision, municipal or 
quasi-municipal corporations, and 
tribes. 
 
Hardship Assistance 
Jurisdictions listed above with a 
population of 25,000 or less. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stormwater grants are available for 
cities and counties. 

Loan (SFY 2016 interest rates) at 
either: 
• 2.4% interest for 6-20 year term, 

or 
• 1.2% interest for 5-year term 
 
 
Hardship assistance for the 
construction of wastewater 
treatment facilities may be available 
in the form of a reduced interest 
rate, grant subsidy, or loan 
forgiveness. Hardship assistance is 
based on impact to residential 
ratepayers and the community MHI. 
Hardship funding is only available for 
the portion of a facility serving 
existing residential need. 
 
Stormwater grant maximum award 
per jurisdiction: $5 million 
 

Applications typically accepted 
September 1 through first Friday 
in November.  
 
Contact: David Dunn 
360-407-6503 
david.dunn@ecy.wa.gov 
 
http:/www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/
wq/funding/funding.html  
 
 

RCAC 
RURAL COMMUNITY 
ASSISTANCE CORPORATION 
Construction Loans 

Water, wastewater, solid 
waste and stormwater 
facilities that primarily serve 
low-income rural 
communities. Can include 
pre-development costs. 

Non-profit organizations, public 
agencies, tribes, and low-income 
rural communities with a 50,000 
population or less, or 10,000 
populations or less if using USDA 
Rural Development financing as the 
takeout. 
 

• Maximum $2 million with 
commitment letter for 
permanent financing 

• Security in permanent loan 
letter of conditions 

• 1-3 year term 
• 5.5% interest rate 
• 1% loan fee 
 

Applications accepted anytime 
 
Contact: Chuck Miller 
360-253-7683 cmiller@rcac.org 
 
Applications available on-line at 
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126  
 

RCAC 
RURAL COMMUNITY 
ASSISTANCE CORPORATION 
Intermediate Term Loan 

Water, wastewater, solid 
waste and stormwater 
facilities that primarily serve 
low-income rural 
communities.  

Non-profit organizations, public 
agencies, tribes, and low-income 
rural communities with a 50,000 
population or less. 
 

• For smaller capital needs, 
normally not to exceed 
$100,000. 

• Maximum 20 year term 
• 5% interest rate 
• 1% loan fee 

Applications accepted anytime 
 
Contact: Chuck Miller 
360-253-7683 cmiller@rcac.org 
Applications available on-line at 
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126  
 

 

26

mailto:david.dunn@ecy.wa.gov
mailto:cmiller@rcac.org
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126
mailto:cmiller@rcac.org
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126


 11 

CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION - continued 
Program Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants 

 
Funding Available How To Apply 

CERB 
Community Economic 
Revitalization Board - 
Construction Program 

Public facility projects 
required by private sector 
expansion and job creation. 
 
Projects must support 
significant job creation or 
significant private investment 
in the state. 
• Bridges, roads and 

railroad spurs, domestic 
and industrial water, 
sanitary and storm 
sewers 

• Electricity, natural gas 
and telecommunications 

• General purpose 
industrial buildings, port 
facilities 

• Acquisition, construction, 
repair, reconstruction, 
replacement, 
rehabilitation 
 

• Counties, cities, towns, port 
districts, special districts 

• Federally-recognized tribes 
• Municipal and quasi-

municipal corporations with 
economic development 
purposes. 

Loans; grants in unique cases 
• Projects without a committed 

private partner allowed for in 
rural areas. 

• $2 million maximum per project, 
per policy. 

• Interest rates:                             
3% for non-distressed counties           
2.5% for distressed counties 

• 20-year maximum loan term 
• Match for committed private 

partners: 20% (of total project 
cost). 

• Match for prospective partners: 
50% (of total project cost). 

• Applicants must demonstrate 
gap in public project funding 
and need for CERB assistance. 

• CERB is authority for funding 
approvals. 

 

Applications accepted year-round. 
The Board meets six times a year. 
 
Contacts: Janea Eddy 
360-725-3151 
janea.eddy@commerce.wa.gov 
 
  

RURAL WATER REVOLVING 
LOAN FUND 

Short-term costs incurred for 
replacement equipment, 
small scale extension of 
services, or other small capital 
projects that are not a part of 
regular operations and 
maintenance for drinking 
water and wastewater 
projects.  
 

Public entities, including 
municipalities, counties, special 
purpose districts, Native American 
Tribes, and corporations not 
operated for profit, including 
cooperatives, with up to 10,000 
population and rural areas with no 
population limits. 

• Loan amounts may not exceed 
$100,000 or 75% of the total 
project cost, whichever is less. 
Applicants will be given credit 
for documented project costs 
prior to receiving the RLF loan. 

• Interest rates at the lower of the 
poverty or market interest rate 
as published by USDA RD RUS, 
with a minimum of 3% at the 
time of closing. 

• Maximum repayment period is 
10 years. Additional ranking 
points for a shorter repayment 
period. The repayment period 
cannot exceed the useful life of 
the facilities or financed item. 

Applications accepted anytime. 
 
Contact: Tracey Hunter 
Evergreen Rural Water of WA 
360-462-9287 
thunter@erwow.org 
 
Download application online: 
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlf
app.pdf 

27

mailto:janea.eddy@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:thunter@erwow.org
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlfapp.pdf
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlfapp.pdf


 12 

EMERGENCY 
Program 
 

Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

PWB 
Public Works Board – 
Emergency Program 

Projects necessary due to 
natural disaster, or 
immediate/emergent threat 
to public health and safety 

For domestic water systems, 
sanitary sewer, stormwater, 
solid waste, roads and bridges 

Counties, cities, special purpose 
districts, and quasi-municipal 
organizations that meet certain 
requirements (contact a Regional 
Service Coordinator for more 
information). 
 
No school or port districts. 

No emergency funding is currently 
available. 

Note: Availability of future funds is 
dependent on approval by the 
Governor and Legislature. 
 
Contact: Isaac Huang 
Regional Service Coordinator 
360-725-3162 
Isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov 
 
 

CDBG - IT 
Community Development 
Block Grant – Imminent 
Threat Grant Fund 
 

Repair unanticipated water, 
sewer and other public 
drainage facility damages that 
pose an immediate, urgent 
threat to public health and 
safety. Requires formal 
declaration of emergency. 
 
 

• Non-entitlement cities or 
towns with fewer than 50,000 
people 

• Non-entitlement counties 
with fewer than 200,000 
people 

Grant: 
• Up to $100,000, depending on 

fund availability. 
• Intended for a temporary fix 

while funding for permanent 
solution is secured. 

Applications accepted year-round. 
 
Visit www.commerce.wa.gov/cdbg 
for information and forms. 
 
Contact: Kaaren Roe 
360-725-3018 
kaaren.roe@commerce.wa.gov 

RD – ECWAG 
Emergency Community 
Water Assistance Grants 

Domestic water projects 
needing emergency repairs 
due to an incident such as:  
a drought; earthquake; flood; 
chemical spill; fire; etc.  A 
significant decline in quantity 
or quality of potable water 
supply that was caused by an 
emergency. 
 
 

Public bodies, tribes and private 
non-profit corporations serving 
rural areas with populations under 
10,000  

Grant; pending availability of funds 
• $150,000 limit for incident 

related emergency repairs to an 
existing water system. 

• $500,000 limit to alleviate a 
significant decline in potable 
water supply caused by an 
emergency. 

Applications accepted year-round 
on a fund-available basis 
 
Contact:  Gene Dobry 
360-704-7733  
eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov 
 
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa 

RCAC 
RURAL COMMUNITY 
ASSISTANCE CORPORATION 
Intermediate Term Loan 

Water, wastewater, solid 
waste and stormwater 
facilities that primarily serve 
low-income rural 
communities.  

Non-profit organizations, public 
agencies, tribes, and low-income 
rural communities with a 50,000 
population or less. 
 

• For smaller capital needs, 
normally not to exceed 
$100,000. 

• Maximum 20 year term 
• 5% interest rate 
• 1% loan fee 

Applications accepted anytime 
 
Contact: Chuck Miller 
360-253-7683 
cmiller@rcac.org 
 
Applications available on-line at 
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126  
 

  

28

mailto:Isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/cdbg
mailto:kaaren.roe@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:eugene.dobry@wa.usda.gov
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/wa
mailto:cmiller@rcac.org
http://www.rcac.org/pages/126


 13 

EMERGENCY – continued 
 
Program 
 

Eligible Projects Eligible Applicants Funding Available How To Apply 

RURAL WATER REVOLVING 
LOAN FUND 
Disaster area emergency 
loans 

Contact staff for more 
information on emergency 
loans. 

Public entities, including 
municipalities, counties, special 
purpose districts, Native American 
Tribes, and corporations not 
operated for profit, including 
cooperatives, with up to 10,000 
population and rural areas with no 
population limits. 

90-day, no interest, disaster area 
emergency loans with immediate 
turn-around. 

Applications accepted anytime. 
 
Contact: Tracey Hunter 
Evergreen Rural Water of WA 
360-462-9287 
thunter@erwow.org 
 
Download application online: 
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlf
app.pdf 
 

HMA/ HMGP MITIGATION 
PLANNING & PROJECT 
AWARDS 
FEMA Pre- and Post-Disaster 
awards 
 

Cost-effective flood, seismic, 
wildfire, and wind 
infrastructure mitigation 
projects. 

Counties, cities, special purpose 
districts, and quasi-municipal 
organizations that meet certain 
requirements and have approved 
Hazard Mitigation Plan with FEMA. 

Annual, but Congress is reducing 
Pre-Disaster HMA awards. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program – 
Available after Presidentially-
Declared major disasters.  
 
Awards range from $50,000 to $3 
million, based on statewide 
competition. 
 

Availability of future funds is 
dependent on approval by FEMA 
and Congress. 
 
Contact: Peter Tassoni 
State Hazard Mitigation Officer 
253-512-7072 
Peter.Tassoni@mil.wa.gov  

 

29

mailto:thunter@erwow.org
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlfapp.pdf
http://www.nrwa.org/benefits/rlfapp.pdf
mailto:Peter.Tassoni@mil.wa.gov


30



TAB B 
CONTRACTING 

31



32



 
DATE:  September 18, 2014 
  
TO:  Public Works Board  
 
FROM:  Mark Barkley, Contracts Administration Unit, Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Cristalina LLC 
 

  
BACKGROUND:  Over the past year, concerns with Cristalina LLC, a non-municipal (private) water 
system management association have been brought to the attention of the Public Works Board (PWB).   
Cristalina LLC was issued a DWSRF loan, contract number DP09-952-034, on May 21, 2009 in the 
amount of $555,500 with an interest rate of 1.5% to provide system improvements.  The project was 
certified complete on August 5, 2010.  Cristalina LLC continues to not collect and document required 
fees to make last year’s (2013) annual loan repayment in the amount of $36,692.23.  As a result, late 
fees over 10 months have accumulated in the amount of $2,923.68.  It has also resulted in substantial 
fines levied against the owner/operator Maria Lindberg and Cristalina LLC by the Utilities and Trade 
Commission. 

     
ISSUE:  Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (UTC) issued the following order on 
September 12, 2014 regarding Cristalina, LLC with the following judgments: 
 

1. Commission approves the transfer of assets of Cristalina LLC to Washington Water Service 
Company. 

2. Withdraw of penalties assessed against Maria Lindberg. 
3. Withdraw of penalties assessed against Cristalina, LLC. 
4. Assess a fine against Maria Lindberg in the amount of $12,700 to be paid over 3 years. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 

1. UTC staff is currently working the written order based on the decisions above. 
2. CAU staff expects to receive the UTC order in the next 1-2 weeks. 
3. CAU staff will present to the December PWB meeting the following actions contingent on the 

final UTC order being issued.   
a. A recommendation to the PWB to approve the assignment of DP09-952-034 to 

Washington Water.  
b. A recommendation to the PWB to waive all late fees associated with Cristalina LLC; 

Washington Water has agreed to make current the outstanding balance (both 2013 and 
2014 payments) on DP09-952-034. 

c. Provide additional updates as necessary to Public Works Board meeting set for 
December 5, 2014. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Public Works Board Meeting  

33



34



TAB C 
POLICY & PROGRAM 

DEVELOPMENT 

35



36



 

 
 
Date: September 22, 2014 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Cecilia Gardener, Managing Director 
 
Subject: 2014-15 Public Works Board Work plan Update 
 
Below is the updated 2014-15 work plan for the Board, with the modification requested included.   
 

1. Plan will be presented to the Board at every board meeting. With status of all activities. 
2. There will be a rolling 12 month window 
3. For informational purposes, a memo will be included with each update identifying all 

completed activities that have fallen off the 12-month rolling window. 
 
In keeping with the Board request, listed below are all opportunities/events, deliverables, and actions/tasks 
that have been completed and removed from the work plan 
 

1. Opportunities/Events 
a. Contract Compliance Modules 
b. August Funding Webinars 
c. Webinar on Using the CFP guidebook has been ;moved to September due to scheduling 

issues 
2. Deliverables 

a. Letter to the Governor requesting meeting – awaiting answer 
b. Letter to the Treasurer’s office to schedule meeting – Executive Committee Met with 

the Deputy Treasurer 
c. Infrastructure Financing opportunities – presented to the Board in July 
d. Presentation to the Board on the History of the board and the programs 
e. Develop language regarding the Proviso 
f. Develop broader stakeholder lists 
g. Develop educational Brochure 
h. Resource Catalog  

 
3. Actions/Tasks 

a. Prepare Board members to meet with Legislators 
b. Market Funding Webinar 
c. Market Sustainable Communities Initiative 
d. Market new Training and Education Curriculum 
e. Market IACC 
f. Market Peninsula Academy 
g. Infrastructure Needs Assessment – sent to the Policy committee to work on 

 
Below is the updated work plan as of September 25, 2014 
 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

37



COMPLETED WORKPLAN TASKS 
 
On August 12th, I sent an email with information that the Board had requested at the August 8th 
meeting.  The listing below gives a status of each of the items.  
 

 Tasks from August 8, 2014 Board Meeting Status 
1.  Informational Brochure 

Hard Copies will be put in the overnight mail for you tomorrow.  
Completed:  on August 12th 

2.  Recommended 2016 Construction Loan List Completed:  on August 12th 
3.  Legislative Contact Sheet with Compiled comments.  As you can see, we still 

have some gaps.  I will be identifying key legislator that we have to connect 
with, and send out additional information for members.   

Completed:  on August 12th 

4.  Key Speaking Points regarding the 2016 Construction Loan List Completed:  on August 12th 
5.  Map with historical funding information 1985-2014 including the #/$ Completed:  on August 12th 
6.  List of unfunded projects for the 2016 Construction Cycle. Completed:  on August 12th 
7.  PowerPoint slide showing the PWAA revenue streams with member 

adjustments.  
Completed:  on August 12th 

8.  Revised Stakeholder listing Completed:  on August 12th 
9.  Updated 2014-15 Work plan  Completed:  on August 12th 

10.  Session law – 1985 when PWB/PWAA created 
These are extracts to the full session law that were relevant to the information 
requested. If anyone is interest in over a thousand pages, the link is below.  

Completed:  on August 12th 

11.  Notify Sunnyside about their DWSRF Loan Restructure – Mark Barkley Completed: 8/14/14 
12.  Individual project sheets for each project on the recommended loan list Completed:  and on Website 
13.  Develop Contract for the Center for Sustainable Infrastructure - $2,000 Completed: Executed and 

included in October 2nd Board 
Packet 

14.  Send copies of all decision packages submitted on behalf of the Board when 
final. Identify indirect costs associated with requests.    

Completed: Final Packages 
submitted to OFM on 
September 19th, and Budget as 
submitted included in October 
2nd Board Packet 

15.  Update the final minutes to reflect changes at the meeting Completed:  8/14/14 
16.  Develop template to be used as a weekly update to key associations on the 

Board’s business 
Completed:  and in use 

17.  Send notification to Board members when we have made changed to the code 
revisor’s regarding meeting adjustments. 

Ongoing as needed 

18.  Notify Board members when a project goes to construction, or closes. Completed: Processes have 
been put in place to trigger 
notification to members 

19.  Research requesting $18 million in Emergency resources from the Governor’s 
office 

Completed:  Spoke with OFM. 
Presentation from the Military 
Department –Emergency 
Management will be at the 
October 2nd Board meeting for 
educational purposes.  

20.  Speak with federal delegation regarding emergency funds. In Process 
 

38



DRAFT PUBLIC WORKS BOARD – 2014-2015 WORKPLAN – REVISED SEPTEMBER 22, 2014 (this is a living document, and will be updated regularly) 

 

PAGE 1 
 

 
 

  SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBURARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST 

O
PP

O
RT

U
N

IT
IE

S/
 

EV
EN

TS
 

ERWOW Conference 
9/9-11/14 

PWB Meeting Assembly Days-tentative PWB Meeting PWB Meeting-Legislative 
Meetings 

22nd - Last day to read in 
committee reports in 
house of origin 

PWB Meeting 2015 Legislative Session 
scheduled to end 

PWB Meeting AWC Conference   

WFOA Conference 
9/17/14 

American Public Works 
Association-Washington 
Conference 
 

CIFA Conference Assembly Days-tentative 14th-2015 Legislative 
Session Begins 

ERWOW Annual 
Conference 

1st-Last day to read in 
committee reports from 
House fiscal committees 

3rd - Last day to read in 
committee reports from 
opposite house  

Community Survivors 
Conference 

   

WASWD Conference 
9/17/14 

American Planning 
Association-Washington 
Conference 

WASAC Conference WPUDA Annual 
Conference 

  13th - Last day to 
consider bills in house of 
origin  

9th-Last day to read in 
opposite house 
committee reports from 
House fiscal committees  

WPPA Conference    

WPUDA Water 
Workshop 
9/24-26/14 

Peninsula Academy      17th-Last day to consider 
opposite house bills  

    

IACC Conference 
9/30-10/2/14 

IACC Conference      28th- Last day allowed for 
regular session under 
state constitution 

    

20-minute Webinar 
Series: Using the CFP 
Guidebook 
Moved to November 
due to lead staff medical 
leave 

 20-minute Webinar 
Series: Using the CFP 
Guidebook 
Pending Staff Action 

    WASWD Conference     

DE
LI

VE
RA

BL
ES

 

(S5.1)   Develop Slide 
Deck in anticipation of 
request-Move to 
October- based on 
budgets as submitted on 
9/19 

(S3.7)   Develop 
orientation video on 
history of PWB/ PWAA-
Pending Staff Action 

(S5.4) Submit Legislative 
Report to the Legislature-
Pending OFM Approval 

         

(S5.2)  Develop White 
Papers on Decision 
Packages, and Fact 
Sheets- Move to 
October- based on 
budgets as submitted on 
9/19 

(S2.3) Short-term 
strategy/policy items to 
Policy Committee-Ongoing 

          

(S2.6) Provide 
educational briefings to 
OFM, Leg, Leg staff, and 
executive staff.- Move to 
October based on 
budgets as submitted on 
9/19 

(S5.3)  Submit 
Recommended Loan list 
Bill-Pending Staff Action 

          

(S2.8) Develop Draft 
Language regarding 
Proviso – -draft will be 
presented to full board 
10/2/14 

(S4) Academy Work Plan- -
Completed 

          

(S5.4) Submit Legislative 
Report to the 
Legislature-Submitted 
for Review to OFM  for 
policy issues 9/18/14 

(S4) Demo Searchable 
finance resource database 
at IACC Conference-
Pending Staff Action 

          

 (S5.1)   Develop Slide Deck 
in anticipation of request-
Pending Staff Action-
based on budgets as 
submitted on 9/19 

          

 (S5.2)  Develop White 
Papers on Decision 
Packages, and Fact Sheets- 

          

2014 2015 

 
Cells shaded in brown are completed 
 
Text Highlighted Yellow is modifications 
from last update. 

39

http://erwow.org/blog/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/2014fallconference.pdf
http://www.awcnet.org/
http://www.wfoa.org/
http://apwawaconf.com/
http://apwawaconf.com/
http://apwawaconf.com/
http://cifanet.org/conferences.html
http://www.erwow.org/annual_conference.html
http://www.erwow.org/annual_conference.html
http://choosewashingtonstate.com/events/cs7/
http://choosewashingtonstate.com/events/cs7/
http://www.waswd.org/general/page/2014-fall-conference-trade-show-davenport-hotel
http://washington-apa.org/conferences/2014/
http://washington-apa.org/conferences/2014/
http://washington-apa.org/conferences/2014/
http://wacounties.org/wsac/countyleaders/
http://www.wpuda.org/calendar.cfm
http://www.wpuda.org/calendar.cfm
http://washingtonports.org/
http://www.wpuda.org/calendar.cfm
http://www.wpuda.org/calendar.cfm
http://www.infrafunding.wa.gov/conference.html
http://www.infrafunding.wa.gov/conference.html
http://www.waswd.org/general/page/training-conferences


DRAFT PUBLIC WORKS BOARD – 2014-2015 WORKPLAN – REVISED SEPTEMBER 22, 2014 (this is a living document, and will be updated regularly) 

 

PAGE 2 
 

 

  SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBURARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST 
Pending Staff Action-
based on budgets as 
submitted on 9/19 

 (S2.6) Provide educational 
briefings to OFM, Leg, Leg 
staff, and executive staff.- 
Pending Staff Action-
based on budgets as 
submitted on 9/19 
 

          

AC
TI

O
N

S/
TA

SK
S 

(S2.7)  Seek path to have 
legislators included in the 
Board makeup-Included 
in draft language as 
presented in October 2nd 
Board Packet 

(S4.2) Connect with 
workforce education-
Pending Staff Action 

(S3.8)   Explore TVW 
options to expand the 
Board’s visibility-Pending 
Staff Action 

(S4) Implement 
Enhancements of 
Searchable Database-
Pending Staff Action 

      (L1.6)  Secure the fund – 
Make a true Trust Fund-
Post 2015 Session 

 

(S3.9)  Explore Board 
members writing Op-Ed 
pieces for their local 
newspapers-Ongoing 

(S2.4)  Request 
participation in a work 
session at assembly days/ 
session-Pending Staff 
Action 

(S3) Market new 
Training/Education 
Curriculum-Ongoing 

(S3) Market new 
Training/Education 
Curriculum-Ongoing 

      (L1.5) Review and 
develop next steps for 
Tribes.-Pending 

 

(S4.5) Conduct site tours 
for Leg.- In process –  
working with 
Associations to 
coordinate event 

(S4.5) Conduct site tours 
for Leg.-In process –  
working with Associations 
to coordinate event 

(S3) Market Sustainable 
Communities Initiative-
Ongoing 

(S3) Market Sustainable 
Communities Initiative-
Ongoing 

        

(S3) Market new 
Training/Education 
Curriculum-Ongoing 

(S3) Market new 
Training/Education 
Curriculum-Ongoing 

(S3) Market SAO Self-
Assessment Tool-
Ongoing 

(S3) Market SAO Self-
Assessment Tool-
Ongoing 

        

(S3) Market Peninsula 
Academy-Ongoing 

(S3) Market IACC 
Conference-Ongoing 

(S3) Market Resource 
Catalog-Ongoing 

(S3) Market Resource 
Catalog-Ongoing 

        

(S3) Market IACC 
Conference-Ongoing 

(S3) Market Sustainable 
Communities Initiative-
Ongoing 

          

(S3) Market Sustainable 
Communities Initiative-
Ongoing 

(S3) Market SAO Self-
Assessment Tool-Ongoing 

          

(S3) Market SAO Self-
Assessment Tool-
Ongoing 

(S3) Market Resource 
Catalog-Ongoing 

          

(S3) Market Resource 
Catalog-Ongoing 

(S2.1)  Infrastructure 
Needs study- in short-term 
category will be sent to 
Policy committee to 
review and determine next 
steps-Pending Policy 
Committee Action 
 

          

 

2014 2015 

40



 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

 
Date: September 22, 2014 
 

To: Public Works Board 
 

From: Ann Campbell, Program & Policy Development Specialist 
 

Subject: DRAFT Language for Proviso Response 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The 2013 Legislature passed a temporary change to the Public Works Board’s (Board) authorizing statute 
43.155 RCW.  The temporary change to the statute is commonly referred to as “the Proviso.” 
 
The Proviso makes several prescriptive changes include specific direction as to how the Board sets interest 
rates, the maximum loan amount available to jurisdictions during a biennium, maximizing the use of federal 
state revolving funds administered by the departments of Health and Ecology, as well as requiring investment 
grade efficiency audits of all wastewater and water projects where possible.   
 
Although the Board has chosen not to introduce changes to its authorizing statute during the 2015 legislative 
session, the Board directed staff to draft language to have available should changes to 43.155 RCW be 
introduced by legislators during session.  The topics that the Board directed staff to create draft language for 
include (these are not in priority order): 

1. Adding legislators to Board membership; 
2. Summarizing and analyzing the needs surveys conducted by regulatory entities and stakeholder 

organizations;  
3. Identifying a process by which interest rates are established;  
4. Making the investment grade efficiency audit requirement for applicable water and wastewater 

projects permanent; 
5. Maximizing the use of federal funds; and 
6. Establishing a numerically ranked prioritized construction loan funding recommendation. 

 
PROPOSED LANGUAGE: 
 
The following draft language is intended to provide a starting point for any final language that the Board may 
choose to have on hand. 
 

1. Adding legislators to the Board – No prior language; language copied from CERB’s statute. 
“One member from each of the two major caucuses of the house of representatives to be appointed by 
the speaker of the house and one member from each of the two major caucuses of the senate to be 
appointed by the president of the senate; (i)  Each member of the house of representatives who is 
appointed to the public works board under this chapter may designate another member from the house 
of representatives to take his or her place on the board for meetings at which the member will be 
absent, as long as the designated member belongs to the same caucus. The designee shall have all 
powers to vote and participate in board deliberations as have the other board members. Each member 
of the senate who is appointed to the public works board under this chapter may designate another 
member from the senate to take his or her place on the board for meetings at which the member will 
be absent, as long as the designated member belongs to the same caucus. The designee shall have 
all powers to vote and participate in board deliberations as have the other board members.”  
 

This would add 4 members to the Board, for a total of seventeen members. 

41



 

 
2. Needs survey – Language based on Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill 1484, Section 5: 

“Every four years, the board shall, in collaboration with other federal and state organizations, advocate 
groups, and other stakeholders associated with infrastructure, provide the governor and the 
appropriate committees of the legislature with a comprehensive assessment of local infrastructure 
needs and potential resources within the state to meet those needs.” 

 
3. Establishing Interest Rates – No prior language 

“The board must establish policies and procedures designed to manage the public works assistance 
account in such a way as to ensure its sustainability.  When establishing interest rates for loan 
programs authorized under this statute, the Board must take into consideration the following in any 
order: 

• The average daily market interest rate for tax-exempt municipal bonds as published in the bond 
buyer’s index for the three month period prior to the loan cycle; and 

• The length of the loan repayment period; and 
• For construction loans, the life of the asset being constructed; and  
• Whether or not the loan applicant is experiencing financial hardship as measured by the 

affordability index, or other similar standard measure of financial hardship; and 
• Whether or not the loan applicant has a bond rating at time of application. 

 
4. Investment Grade Efficiency Audit (IGEA) – Language based on the Proviso: RCW 43.155.070(13) 

“Preconstruction and Construction loans, for projects involving repair, replacement, or improvement of 
a wastewater treatment plant or other public works facility for which an investment grade efficiency 
audit is obtainable, will include a condition that the loan recipient undertake an investment grade 
efficiency audit. The loan recipient may finance the costs of the audit as part of the loan.” 
 

This includes the IGEA requirement for applicable preconstruction loans so that loan applicants can 
include the audit outcomes in their construction loan projects. 

 
5. Maximizing the use of federal funds – Language based on the Proviso: RCW 43.155.070(14)(a) 

[Included in the list of priority policy objectives]:  “Maximize local government use of federal funds to 
finance local infrastructure projects.” 
 

This removes the restriction of maximizing on the use of the state revolving fund loan programs 
administered by the departments of Health and Ecology, thus enabling the Board to set policies and 
procedures to maximize the use of funds from USDA – RD, CDBG, and other federally funded programs. 
 

6. Numeric ranking of loan lists – Language based on the Proviso: RCW 43.155.070(5)(a) 
“The board must develop a process for numerically ranking loan applications submitted by local 
governments.” 
 

This language broadens the numeric ranking requirement to all of the Board’s programs. 
 

ACTION: 
 
Please review the draft language above.  Direct additions, modifications, comments, and/or inquiries to Ann 
Campbell who will compile the information for the Policy Committee’s review. 

42



_____________________________________________
ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 1484

_____________________________________________
State of Washington 63rd Legislature 2014 Regular Session
By  House Capital Budget (originally sponsored by Representatives
Stanford and Warnick; by request of Washington State Department of
Commerce)
READ FIRST TIME 02/05/14.

 1 AN ACT Relating to the public works board; amending RCW 43.155.010,
 2 43.155.020, 43.155.030, 43.155.050, and 43.155.070; adding new sections
 3 to chapter 43.155 RCW; and repealing RCW 43.155.040, 43.155.060,
 4 43.155.065, 43.155.068, 43.155.110, and 43.155.120.

 5 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

 6 Sec. 1.  RCW 43.155.010 and 1996 c 168 s 1 are each amended to read
 7 as follows:
 8 (1) The legislature finds that ((there exists in the state of
 9 Washington over four billion dollars worth of critical projects for the
10 planning,  acquisition,  construction,  repair,  replacement,
11 rehabilitation, or improvement of streets and roads, bridges, water
12 systems, and storm and sanitary sewage systems.  The December, 1983
13 Washington state public works report prepared by the planning and
14 community affairs agency documented that local governments expect to be
15 capable of financing over two billion dollars worth of the costs of
16 those critical projects but will not be able to fund nearly half of the
17 documented needs.
18 The legislature further finds that Washington's local governments
19 have  unmet  financial  needs  for  solid  waste  disposal,  including

p. 1 E2SHB 148443



 1 recycling, and encourages the board to make an equitable geographic
 2 distribution of the funds)) while local governments are responsible for
 3 creating, developing, managing, financing, operating, and maintaining
 4 local infrastructure systems, state priority policy objectives are
 5 served by investing financial and technical resources in these local
 6 systems.  A significant backlog of projects to build, repair, and
 7 improve local public infrastructure systems exists.  The state intends
 8 to strategically invest resources to address this backlog and to
 9 promote the following priority policy objectives:
10 (a) Efficient use of state resources;
11 (b) Preservation and enhancement of health and safety;
12 (c) Abatement of pollution and protection of the environment;
13 (d) Creation of new, family wage jobs, and avoidance of shifting
14 existing jobs from one Washington state community to another;
15 (e) Fostering economic development consistent with chapter 36.70A
16 RCW;
17 (f) Efficiency in delivery of goods and services, public transit,
18 and transportation;
19 (g) Avoidance of additional costs to state and local governments
20 that adversely impact local residents and small businesses; and
21 (h) Reduction of the overall cost of public infrastructure.
22 (2) It is the policy of the state of Washington to encourage self-
23 reliance by local governments in meeting their public works needs and
24 to assist in the financing of critical public works projects by
25 ((making  loans,  financing  guarantees,))  providing  financial  and
26 technical assistance ((available)) to local governments for these
27 projects.

28 Sec. 2.  RCW 43.155.020 and 2009 c 565 s 33 are each amended to
29 read as follows:
30 Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in
31 this section shall apply throughout this chapter.
32 (1) "Board" means the public works board created in RCW 43.155.030.
33 (2) "Capital facility plan" means a capital facility plan required
34 by the growth management act under chapter 36.70A RCW or, for local
35 governments not fully planning under the growth management act, a plan
36 required by a regulating state agency or the public works board.

E2SHB 1484 p. 2 44



 1 (3) "Construction" means construction of public works projects as
 2 defined within this chapter.
 3 (4) "Department" means the department of commerce.
 4 (((4) "Financing guarantees" means the pledge of money in the
 5 public works assistance account, or money to be received by the public
 6 works assistance account, to the repayment of all or a portion of the
 7 principal of or interest on obligations issued by local governments to
 8 finance public works projects.))
 9 (5) "Director" means the director of the department.
10 (6) "Emergency" means a construction project made necessary by a
11 natural disaster or an immediate and emergent threat to the public
12 health and safety due to unforeseen or unavoidable circumstances as
13 evidenced by a local government declaration.
14 (7) "Financial assistance" means loans unless otherwise specified
15 in this chapter or by the legislature.
16 (8) "Local government((s))" means ((cities)) a city, town((s)),
17 ((counties)) county, special purpose district((s)), and any other
18 municipal corporation((s)) or quasi-municipal corporation((s)) in the
19 state, excluding school districts and port districts, authorized by law
20 to fund public works.
21 (((6))) (9) "Planning project" means the process through which a
22 jurisdiction  creates  and  adopts  a  capital  facilities  plan,  a
23 comprehensive system plan, or equivalent.
24 (10) "Policy objectives" means state priorities that guide the
25 investment of public works assistance account funds as enumerated in
26 this chapter.
27 (11) "Preconstruction" means activities including, but not limited
28 to, project planning, design, engineering, bid document preparation,
29 environmental studies, right-of-way acquisition, and other preliminary
30 phases of construction projects as determined by the public works
31 board.
32 (12) "Public works project" means a project of a local government
33 ((for)) listed in a capital facilities plan or equivalent that results
34 in the planning, acquisition, construction, repair, reconstruction,
35 replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement of streets and roads,
36 bridges, water systems, or storm and sanitary sewage systems and solid
37 waste facilities, including recycling facilities.  A planning project

p. 3 E2SHB 148445



 1 may include the compilation of biological, hydrological, or other data
 2 on a county, drainage basin, or region necessary to develop a base of
 3 information for a capital facility plan.
 4 (((7) "Solid waste or recycling project" means remedial actions
 5 necessary to bring abandoned or closed landfills into compliance with
 6 regulatory requirements and the repair, restoration, and replacement of
 7 existing solid waste transfer, recycling facilities, and landfill
 8 projects limited to the opening of landfill cells that are in existing
 9 and permitted landfills.
10 (8))) (13) "Technical assistance" means training and other services
11 provided to local governments to:
12 (a) ((Help such local governments plan, apply, and qualify for
13 loans and financing guarantees from the board, and (b) help local
14 governments improve their ability to plan for, finance, acquire,
15 construct,  repair,  replace,  rehabilitate,  and  maintain  public
16 facilities)) Improve their ability to plan for, finance, acquire,
17 construct, reconstruct, and maintain infrastructure systems; and/or
18 (b) Improve their technical, financial, and/or managerial capacity
19 to operate their infrastructure systems in a manner consistent with
20 federal and state requirements and ensure long-term sustainability of
21 the systems.

22 Sec. 3.  RCW 43.155.030 and 1999 c 153 s 58 are each amended to
23 read as follows:
24 (1) The public works board is hereby created.
25 (2) The board shall be composed of thirteen members appointed by
26 the governor for terms of four years((, except that five members
27 initially shall be appointed for terms of two years)).  The board shall
28 include:  (a) Three members, including two ((of whom shall be)) elected
29 officials and one ((shall be a public works manager)) official working
30 in public works or a related field, appointed from a list of ((at least
31 six)) persons nominated by the association of Washington cities or its
32 successor; (b) three members, including two ((of whom shall be))
33 elected officials and one ((shall be a public works manager)) official
34 working in public works or a related field, appointed from a list of
35 ((at least six)) persons nominated by the Washington state association
36 of counties or its successor; (c) ((three members appointed from a list
37 of at least six persons nominated jointly by the Washington public

E2SHB 1484 p. 4 46



 1 utility districts association and a state association of water-sewer
 2 districts, or their successors)) one member appointed from a list of
 3 persons  nominated  by  the  Washington  public  utility  districts
 4 association or its successor; (d) two members appointed from a list of
 5 persons nominated by the Washington association of sewer and water
 6 districts or its successor; and (((d))) (e) four members appointed from
 7 the general public.  In appointing the four general public members, the
 8 governor shall endeavor to balance the geographical composition of the
 9 board and to include members with special expertise in relevant fields
10 ((such as public finance, architecture and civil engineering, and
11 public works construction)).  The governor shall appoint one of the
12 general public members of the board as chair.  The term of the chair
13 shall coincide with the term of the governor.
14 (3) ((Staff support to the board shall be provided by the
15 department.
16 (4))) Members of the board shall receive no compensation but shall
17 be reimbursed for travel expenses under RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.
18 (((5))) (4) If a vacancy on the board occurs by death, resignation,
19 or otherwise, the governor shall fill the vacant position for the
20 unexpired term.  Each vacancy in a position appointed from lists
21 provided by the associations under subsection (2) of this section shall
22 be filled from a list of ((at least three)) persons nominated by the
23 relevant association or associations.  Any members of the board((,
24 appointive or otherwise,)) may be removed by the governor for cause in
25 accordance with RCW 43.06.070 and 43.06.080.

26 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 4.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 RCW
27 to read as follows:
28 (1) In order to assist local governments, the board:
29 (a) Must manage the public works assistance account in such a way
30 as to ensure its sustainability;
31 (b) Must execute contracts or otherwise financially obligate funds
32 from the public works assistance account for projects approved for
33 funding by the board;
34 (c) May approve public works projects for financial assistance
35 under the following programs:
36 (i) Construction;
37 (ii) Preconstruction;

p. 5 E2SHB 148447



 1 (iii) Capital facilities planning;
 2 (iv) Emergency;
 3 (v) Energy or water efficiency;
 4 (vi) Water system acquisition and rehabilitation as created by RCW
 5 70.119A.190; and
 6 (vii) Any other program authorized by the legislature;
 7 (d) Must, before November 1st of each year, develop and submit to
 8 the  appropriate  fiscal  committees  of  the  senate  and  house  of
 9 representatives a ranked list of qualified public works projects which
10 have been evaluated by the board and are recommended for funding by the
11 legislature.  The board must establish the ranked list based, at a
12 minimum, on the factors provided in section 10 of this act.  The
13 maximum amount of funding that the board may recommend for any
14 jurisdiction is ten million dollars per biennium.  For each project on
15 the ranked list, as well as for eligible projects not recommended for
16 funding, the board must document the numerical ranking that was
17 assigned;
18 (e) May not sign contracts or otherwise financially obligate funds
19 from the public works assistance account before the legislature has
20 appropriated funds for a specific list of public works projects.  The
21 legislature may remove projects from the ranked list recommended by the
22 board.  The legislature may not change the ranked order of the projects
23 recommended for funding by the board;
24 (f)  May  provide  grants  for  water  system  acquisition  and
25 rehabilitation projects;
26 (g) May not refinance existing debt or financial obligations of
27 local  governments,  except  for  short-term  debt  associated  with
28 construction projects approved by the board or other cases as defined
29 in rule by the board;
30 (h) Must provide technical assistance as defined in RCW 43.155.020.
31 (2) Subsection (1)(d) and (e) of this section does not apply to
32 financial assistance provided through the preconstruction, capital
33 facilities planning, emergency, energy or water efficiency programs,
34 water system acquisition and rehabilitation, or any other programs
35 authorized by the legislature.

36 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 5.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 RCW
37 to read as follows:

E2SHB 1484 p. 6 48



 1 (1) Beginning November 1, 2014, and November 1st every even-
 2 numbered year thereafter, the board must report to the governor and
 3 appropriate fiscal committees of the legislature on:  (a) How the board
 4 is using the state's priority policy objectives identified in RCW
 5 43.155.010 to guide its investment of public works assistance account
 6 funds; and (b) the outcomes produced by these investment choices.
 7 (2) The board must:
 8 (a) Establish and maintain direct collaborative relations with
 9 governmental, private, and other financing organizations, advocate
10 groups,  and  other  stakeholders  associated  with  infrastructure
11 financing;
12 (b) Provide direct information and advice to the governor and
13 appropriate committees of the legislature on matters related to local
14 government infrastructure financing; and
15 (c) At the direction of the governor, provide information and
16 advocacy at the national level on matters related to local government
17 infrastructure financing.

18 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 6.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 RCW
19 to read as follows:
20 The board must:
21 (1) Consistent with the guidelines issued by the office of
22 financial management and in consultation with the department, prepare
23 biennial operating and capital budgets and, as needed, update these
24 budgets during the biennium;
25 (2) Accept or reject any gifts, grants, or loans of funds,
26 property, or financial or other aid in any form from any other source
27 on any terms and conditions that are not in conflict with this chapter;
28 (3) Adopt rules under chapter 34.05 RCW as necessary to carry out
29 the purposes of this chapter; and
30 (4) Do and perform all acts and things necessary or convenient to
31 carry out the powers expressly granted or implied under this chapter.

32 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 7.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 RCW
33 to read as follows:
34 (1) The department must:
35 (a) In collaboration with the board, and in accordance with the

p. 7 E2SHB 148449



 1 board's operating budget, provide staff to the board necessary to
 2 efficiently and effectively carry out the duties of this chapter; and
 3 (b) Submit the board's operating and capital budgets in accordance
 4 with guidelines set by the office of financial management.
 5 (2) The director must:
 6 (a)  Be  accountable  to  the  board  for  operating  and  capital
 7 expenditures from the account; and
 8 (b) Represent the interests and concerns of the board as a member
 9 of the governor's executive cabinet.

10 Sec. 8.  RCW 43.155.050 and 2013 2nd sp.s. c 4 s 983 are each
11 amended to read as follows:
12 (1) The public works assistance account is hereby established in
13 the state treasury.  Money may be placed in the public works assistance
14 account from the proceeds of bonds when authorized by the legislature
15 or from any other lawful source.  Money received from local governments
16 in repayment of loans made under section 4 of this act must be paid
17 into the public works assistance account for uses consistent with this
18 chapter.  Money in the public works assistance account shall be used
19 ((to make loans and to give financial guarantees to local governments
20 for public works projects.  Moneys in the account may also be
21 appropriated to provide for state match requirements under federal law
22 for projects and activities conducted and financed by the board under
23 the drinking water assistance account)) for purposes as authorized by
24 this chapter.
25 (2) A minimum of eighty-five percent of the biennial capital budget
26 appropriation to the public works board from this account shall be
27 obligated for construction loans.  Not more than fifteen percent of the
28 biennial capital budget appropriation to the public works board from
29 this account may be ((expended or)) obligated for ((preconstruction
30 loans, emergency loans, or loans for capital facility planning under
31 this chapter; of this amount, not more than ten percent of the biennial
32 capital budget appropriation may be expended for emergency loans and
33 not more than one percent of the biennial capital budget appropriation
34 may be expended for capital facility planning loans)) programs other
35 than construction loans.  Within this fifteen percent, state match for
36 federal programs or funds for other state programs may be obligated.
37 During the ((2011-2013 and)) 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, the legislature

E2SHB 1484 p. 8 50



 1 may transfer from the public works assistance account to the general
 2 fund, the water pollution control revolving account, and the drinking
 3 water assistance account such amounts as reflect the excess fund
 4 balance of the account.  ((During the 2011-2013 fiscal biennium, the
 5 legislature may appropriate moneys from the account for economic
 6 development, innovation, and export grants, including brownfields; main
 7 street improvement grants; and the loan program consolidation board.))
 8 During the 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, the legislature may transfer from
 9 the public works assistance account to the education legacy trust
10 account such amounts as specified by the legislature.

11 Sec. 9.  RCW 43.155.070 and 2013 2nd sp.s. c 19 s 7032 are each
12 amended to read as follows:
13 (1) To qualify for financial assistance under this chapter the
14 board must determine that a local government meets all of the following
15 conditions:
16 (a) The city or county must be imposing a tax under chapter 82.46
17 RCW at a rate of at least one-quarter of one percent;
18 (b) The local government must have developed a capital facility
19 plan; ((and))
20 (c) The local government must be using all local revenue sources
21 which are reasonably available for funding public works, taking into
22 consideration local employment and economic factors; and
23 (d) The local government can demonstrate the financial capacity to
24 repay the loan.
25 (2) Except where necessary to address a public health need or
26 substantial environmental degradation, a county, city, or town planning
27 under RCW 36.70A.040 may not receive financial assistance under this
28 chapter unless it has adopted a comprehensive plan, including a capital
29 facilities plan element, and development regulations as required by RCW
30 36.70A.040.  This subsection does not require any county, city, or town
31 planning under RCW 36.70A.040 to adopt a comprehensive plan or
32 development  regulations  before  requesting  or  receiving  financial
33 assistance under this chapter if such request is made before the
34 expiration of the time periods specified in RCW 36.70A.040.  A county,
35 city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 that has not adopted a
36 comprehensive plan and development regulations within the time periods
37 specified in RCW 36.70A.040 may apply for and receive financial

p. 9 E2SHB 148451



 1 assistance under this chapter if the comprehensive plan and development
 2 regulations are adopted as required by RCW 36.70A.040 before executing
 3 a contractual agreement for financial assistance with the board.
 4 (3)  In  considering  awarding  financial  assistance  for  public
 5 facilities to special districts requesting funding for a proposed
 6 facility located in a county, city, or town planning under RCW
 7 36.70A.040, the board must consider whether the county, city, or town
 8 planning under RCW 36.70A.040 in whose planning jurisdiction the
 9 proposed facility is located has adopted a comprehensive plan and
10 development regulations as required by RCW 36.70A.040.
11 (4) ((The board must develop a priority process for public works
12 projects as provided in this section.  The intent of the priority
13 process is to maximize the value of public works projects accomplished
14 with assistance under this chapter.  The board must attempt to assure
15 a geographical balance in assigning priorities to projects.  The board
16 must consider at least the following factors in assigning a priority to
17 a project:
18 (a)  Whether  the  local  government  receiving  assistance  has
19 experienced severe fiscal distress resulting from natural disaster or
20 emergency public works needs;
21 (b) Except as otherwise conditioned by RCW 43.155.110, whether the
22 entity receiving assistance is a Puget Sound partner, as defined in RCW
23 90.71.010;
24 (c) Whether the project is referenced in the action agenda
25 developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310;
26 (d) Whether the project is critical in nature and would affect the
27 health and safety of a great number of citizens;
28 (e) Whether the applicant's permitting process has been certified
29 as streamlined by the office of regulatory assistance;
30 (f) Whether the applicant has developed and adhered to guidelines
31 regarding its permitting process for those applying for development
32 permits consistent with section 1(2), chapter 231, Laws of 2007;
33 (g) The cost of the project compared to the size of the local
34 government and amount of loan money available;
35 (h) The number of communities served by or funding the project;
36 (i) Whether the project is located in an area of high unemployment,
37 compared to the average state unemployment;

E2SHB 1484 p. 10 52



 1 (j) Whether the project is the acquisition, expansion, improvement,
 2 or renovation by a local government of a public water system that is in
 3 violation of health and safety standards, including the cost of
 4 extending existing service to such a system;
 5 (k)  Except  as  otherwise  conditioned  by  RCW  43.155.120,  and
 6 effective  one  calendar  year  following  the  development  of  model
 7 evergreen  community  management  plans  and  ordinances  under  RCW
 8 35.105.050,  whether  the  entity  receiving  assistance  has  been
 9 recognized, and what gradation of recognition was received, in the
10 evergreen community recognition program created in RCW 35.105.030;
11 (l)  The  relative  benefit  of  the  project  to  the  community,
12 considering the present level of economic activity in the community and
13 the existing local capacity to increase local economic activity in
14 communities that have low economic growth; and
15 (m) Other criteria that the board considers advisable.
16 (5) For the 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, in place of the criteria,
17 ranking, and submission processes for construction loan lists provided
18 in subsections (4) and (7) of this section:
19 (a) The board must develop a process for numerically ranking
20 applications for construction loans submitted by local governments.
21 The board must consider, at a minimum and in any order, the following
22 factors in assigning a numerical ranking to a project:
23 (i) Whether the project is critical in nature and would affect the
24 health and safety of many people;
25 (ii) The extent to which the project leverages nonstate funds;
26 (iii) The extent to which the project is ready to proceed to
27 construction;
28 (iv)  Whether  the  project  is  located  in  an  area  of  high
29 unemployment, compared to the average state unemployment;
30 (v) Whether the project promotes the sustainable use of resources
31 and environmental quality;
32 (vi) Whether the project consolidates or regionalizes systems;
33 (vii) Whether the project encourages economic development through
34 mixed-use and mixed income development consistent with chapter 36.70A
35 RCW;
36 (viii) Whether the system is being well-managed in the present and
37 for long-term sustainability;

p. 11 E2SHB 148453



 1 (ix) Achieving equitable distribution of funds by geography and
 2 population;
 3 (x) The extent to which the project meets the following state
 4 policy objectives:
 5 (A) Efficient use of state resources;
 6 (B) Preservation and enhancement of health and safety;
 7 (C) Abatement of pollution and protection of the environment;
 8 (D) Creation of new, family wage jobs, and avoidance of shifting
 9 existing jobs from one Washington state community to another;
10 (E) Fostering economic development consistent with chapter 36.70A
11 RCW;
12 (F) Efficiency in delivery of goods and services, public transit,
13 and transportation;
14 (G) Avoidance of additional costs to state and local governments
15 that adversely impact local residents and small businesses; and
16 (H) Reduction of the overall cost of public infrastructure; and
17 (xi) Other criteria that the board considers necessary to achieve
18 the purposes of this chapter.
19 (b) Before November 1, 2014, the board must develop and submit to
20 the  appropriate  fiscal  committees  of  the  senate  and  house  of
21 representatives a ranked list of qualified public works projects which
22 have been evaluated by the board and are recommended for funding by the
23 legislature.  The maximum amount of funding that the board may
24 recommend for any jurisdiction is ten million dollars per biennium.
25 For each project on the ranked list, as well as for eligible projects
26 not recommended for funding, the board must document the numerical
27 ranking that was assigned.
28 (6) Existing debt or financial obligations of local governments may
29 not be refinanced under this chapter.  Each local government applicant
30 must provide documentation of attempts to secure additional local or
31 other sources of funding for each public works project for which
32 financial assistance is sought under this chapter.
33 (7) Before November 1st of each even-numbered year, the board must
34 develop and submit to the appropriate fiscal committees of the senate
35 and house of representatives a description of the loans made under RCW
36 43.155.065, 43.155.068, and subsection (10) of this section during the
37 preceding fiscal year and a prioritized list of projects which are
38 recommended for funding by the legislature, including one copy to the

E2SHB 1484 p. 12 54



 1 staff of each of the committees.  The list must include, but not be
 2 limited to, a description of each project and recommended financing,
 3 the terms and conditions of the loan or financial guarantee, the local
 4 government jurisdiction and unemployment rate, demonstration of the
 5 jurisdiction's critical need for the project and documentation of local
 6 funds being used to finance the public works project.  The list must
 7 also  include  measures  of  fiscal  capacity  for  each  jurisdiction
 8 recommended for financial assistance, compared to authorized limits and
 9 state averages, including local government sales taxes; real estate
10 excise taxes; property taxes; and charges for or taxes on sewerage,
11 water, garbage, and other utilities.
12 (8) The board may not sign contracts or otherwise financially
13 obligate funds from the public works assistance account before the
14 legislature has appropriated funds for a specific list of public works
15 projects.  The  legislature  may  remove  projects  from  the  list
16 recommended by the board.  The legislature may not change the order of
17 the priorities recommended for funding by the board.
18 (9) Subsection (8) of this section does not apply to loans made
19 under RCW 43.155.065, 43.155.068, and subsection (10) of this section.
20 (10) Loans made for the purpose of capital facilities plans are
21 exempted from subsection (8) of this section.
22 (11) To qualify for loans or pledges for solid waste or recycling
23 facilities under this chapter, a city or county must demonstrate that
24 the solid waste or recycling facility is consistent with and necessary
25 to implement the comprehensive solid waste management plan adopted by
26 the city or county under chapter 70.95 RCW.
27 (12) After January 1, 2010, any project designed to address the
28 effects of storm water or wastewater on Puget Sound may be funded under
29 this section only if the project is not in conflict with the action
30 agenda developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310.
31 (13)  During  the  2013-2015  fiscal  biennium,))  When  awarding
32 financial assistance, the board must consider:
33 (a) Whether the entity receiving assistance is a Puget Sound
34 partner, as defined in RCW 90.71.010.  Entities that are not eligible
35 to be a Puget Sound partner due to geographic location, composition,
36 exclusion from the scope of the action agenda developed by the Puget
37 Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310, or for any other reason, may not
38 be given less preferential treatment than Puget Sound partners; and

p. 13 E2SHB 148455



 1 (b) Whether the project is referenced in the action agenda
 2 developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310.
 3 (5) For projects involving repair, replacement, or improvement of
 4 a wastewater treatment plant or other public works facility for which
 5 an investment grade efficiency audit is obtainable, the public works
 6 board must require as a contract condition that the project sponsor
 7 undertake an investment grade efficiency audit.  The project sponsor
 8 may finance the costs of the audit as part of its public works
 9 assistance account program loan.
10 (((14)))  (6)(a)  For  ((public  works  assistance  account))  all
11 construction loan application rounds ((conducted during the 2013-2015
12 fiscal biennium)), the board must implement policies and procedures
13 designed to maximize local government use of federally funded drinking
14 water and clean water state revolving funds operated by the state
15 departments of health and ecology.  The board, department of ecology,
16 and department of health must jointly develop evaluation criteria and
17 application procedures that will increase access of eligible drinking
18 water and wastewater projects to the public works assistance account
19 for short-term preconstruction financing and to the federally funded
20 state revolving funds for construction financing.  The procedures must
21 also strengthen coordinated funding of preconstruction and construction
22 projects.
23 (b)  For  all  construction  loan  projects  ((proposed  to  the
24 legislature for funding during the 2013-2015 fiscal biennium)), the
25 board must ((base interest rates on the average daily market interest
26 rate for tax-exempt municipal bonds as published in the bond buyer's
27 index for the period from sixty to thirty days before the start of the
28 application cycle.  For projects with a repayment period between five
29 and twenty years, the rate must be sixty percent of the market rate.
30 For projects with a repayment period under five years, the rate must be
31 thirty percent of the market rate)) establish lending policies and
32 procedures  that  are  consistent  with  managing  the  public  works
33 assistance account for long-term sustainability.  When determining loan
34 terms that will be in effect for an application round, the board must
35 take into account applicable market rates, but may, at its discretion,
36 use additional factors to set the final loan terms.  The board must
37 also  provide  reduced  interest  rates((,))  or  extended  repayment

E2SHB 1484 p. 14 56



 1 periods((, or forgivable principal loans)) for projects that meet
 2 financial hardship criteria as measured by the affordability index or
 3 similar standard measure of financial hardship.
 4 (c)  By  December  1,  2013,  the  board  must  recommend  to  the
 5 appropriate committees of the legislature statutory language to make
 6 permanent these new criteria, procedures, and financing policies.

 7 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 10.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155
 8 RCW to read as follows:
 9 The intent of the project selection process is to promote state
10 policy objectives as identified in this chapter and to maximize the
11 value of projects financed under this chapter.  The board must develop
12 a process for numerically ranking construction loan applications
13 submitted by local governments.  The board must consider, at a minimum
14 and in any order, the following factors in assigning a numerical
15 ranking to a project:
16 (1) Whether the project is critical in nature and would affect the
17 health and safety of many people;
18 (2) The extent to which the project leverages nonstate funds;
19 (3) The extent to which the project is ready to proceed to
20 construction;
21 (4) Whether the project is located in an area of high unemployment,
22 compared to the average state unemployment;
23 (5) Whether the project promotes the sustainable use of resources
24 and environmental quality;
25 (6) Whether the project consolidates or regionalizes systems;
26 (7) Whether the project encourages economic development through
27 mixed-use and mixed income development consistent with chapter 36.70A
28 RCW;
29 (8) Whether the system is being well-managed in the present and for
30 long-term sustainability;
31 (9) Achieving equitable distribution of funds by geography and
32 population;
33 (10) The extent to which the project meets state policy objectives
34 identified in this chapter; and
35 (11) Other criteria that the board considers necessary to achieve
36 the purposes of this chapter.

p. 15 E2SHB 148457



 1 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 11.  The following acts or parts of acts are
 2 each repealed:
 3 (1) RCW 43.155.040 (General powers of the board) and 1985 c 446 s
 4 10;
 5 (2) RCW 43.155.060 (Public works financing powers--Competitive bids
 6 on projects) and 1988 c 93 s 2 & 1985 c 446 s 11;
 7 (3) RCW 43.155.065 (Emergency public works projects) and 2001 c 131
 8 s 3, 1990 c 133 s 7, & 1988 c 93 s 1;
 9 (4) RCW 43.155.068 (Loans for preconstruction activities) and 2001
10 c 131 s 4 & 1995 c 363 s 2;
11 (5) RCW 43.155.110 (Puget Sound partners) and 2007 c 341 s 25; and
12 (6) RCW 43.155.120 (Administering funds--Preference to an evergreen
13 community) and 2008 c 299 s 30.

--- END ---

E2SHB 1484 p. 16 58



Chapter 43.155 RCW
PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

RCW Sections
43.155.010 Legislative findings and policy.

43.155.020 Definitions.

43.155.030 Public works board created.

43.155.040 General powers of the board.

43.155.050 Public works assistance account.

43.155.060 Public works financing powers -- Competitive bids on projects.

43.155.065 Emergency public works projects.

43.155.068 Loans for preconstruction activities.

43.155.070 Eligibility, priority, limitations, and exceptions.

43.155.075 Loans for public works projects -- Statement of environmental benefits -- Development 
of outcome-focused performance measures.

43.155.080 Records and audits.

43.155.090 Loan agreements.

43.155.110 Puget Sound partners.

43.155.120 Administering funds -- Preference to an evergreen community.

43.155.130 Intent -- Local infrastructure assistance -- Plan.

43.155.140 Projects in areas impacted by the closure or potential closure of large coal-fired electric 
generation facilities.

43.155.010
Legislative findings and policy.

The legislature finds that there exists in the state of Washington over four billion dollars worth of critical 
projects for the planning, acquisition, construction, repair, replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement 
of streets and roads, bridges, water systems, and storm and sanitary sewage systems. The December, 
1983 Washington state public works report prepared by the planning and community affairs agency 
documented that local governments expect to be capable of financing over two billion dollars worth of 
the costs of those critical projects but will not be able to fund nearly half of the documented needs.

     The legislature further finds that Washington's local governments have unmet financial needs for 
solid waste disposal, including recycling, and encourages the board to make an equitable geographic 
distribution of the funds.

     It is the policy of the state of Washington to encourage self-reliance by local governments in meeting 
their public works needs and to assist in the financing of critical public works projects by making loans, 
financing guarantees, and technical assistance available to local governments for these projects.

[1996 c 168 § 1; 1985 c 446 § 7.]

Page 1 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

59



43.155.020
Definitions.

Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in this section shall apply throughout this 
chapter.

     (1) "Board" means the public works board created in RCW 43.155.030.

     (2) "Capital facility plan" means a capital facility plan required by the growth management act under 
chapter 36.70A RCW or, for local governments not fully planning under the growth management act, a 
plan required by the public works board.

     (3) "Department" means the department of commerce.

     (4) "Financing guarantees" means the pledge of money in the public works assistance account, or 
money to be received by the public works assistance account, to the repayment of all or a portion of the 
principal of or interest on obligations issued by local governments to finance public works projects.

     (5) "Local governments" means cities, towns, counties, special purpose districts, and any other 
municipal corporations or quasi-municipal corporations in the state excluding school districts and port 
districts.

     (6) "Public works project" means a project of a local government for the planning, acquisition, 
construction, repair, reconstruction, replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement of streets and roads, 
bridges, water systems, or storm and sanitary sewage systems and solid waste facilities, including 
recycling facilities. A planning project may include the compilation of biological, hydrological, or other 
data on a county, drainage basin, or region necessary to develop a base of information for a capital 
facility plan.

     (7) "Solid waste or recycling project" means remedial actions necessary to bring abandoned or 
closed landfills into compliance with regulatory requirements and the repair, restoration, and 
replacement of existing solid waste transfer, recycling facilities, and landfill projects limited to the 
opening of landfill cells that are in existing and permitted landfills.

     (8) "Technical assistance" means training and other services provided to local governments to: (a) 
Help such local governments plan, apply, and qualify for loans and financing guarantees from the 
board, and (b) help local governments improve their ability to plan for, finance, acquire, construct, 
repair, replace, rehabilitate, and maintain public facilities.

[2009 c 565 § 33; 2001 c 131 § 1; 1996 c 168 § 2; 1995 c 399 § 85; 1985 c 446 § 8.]

43.155.030
Public works board created.

(1) The public works board is hereby created.

     (2) The board shall be composed of thirteen members appointed by the governor for terms of four 
years, except that five members initially shall be appointed for terms of two years. The board shall 

Page 2 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

60



include: (a) Three members, two of whom shall be elected officials and one shall be a public works 
manager, appointed from a list of at least six persons nominated by the association of Washington 
cities or its successor; (b) three members, two of whom shall be elected officials and one shall be a 
public works manager, appointed from a list of at least six persons nominated by the Washington state 
association of counties or its successor; (c) three members appointed from a list of at least six persons 
nominated jointly by the Washington public utility districts association and a state association of water-
sewer districts, or their successors; and (d) four members appointed from the general public. In 
appointing the four general public members, the governor shall endeavor to balance the geographical 
composition of the board and to include members with special expertise in relevant fields such as public 
finance, architecture and civil engineering, and public works construction. The governor shall appoint 
one of the general public members of the board as chair. The term of the chair shall coincide with the 
term of the governor.

     (3) Staff support to the board shall be provided by the department.

     (4) Members of the board shall receive no compensation but shall be reimbursed for travel expenses 
under RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

     (5) If a vacancy on the board occurs by death, resignation, or otherwise, the governor shall fill the 
vacant position for the unexpired term. Each vacancy in a position appointed from lists provided by the 
associations under subsection (2) of this section shall be filled from a list of at least three persons 
nominated by the relevant association or associations. Any members of the board, appointive or 
otherwise, may be removed by the governor for cause in accordance with RCW 43.06.070 and 
43.06.080.

[1999 c 153 § 58; 1985 c 446 § 9.]

Notes:

Part headings not law -- 1999 c 153: See note following RCW 57.04.050.

43.155.040
General powers of the board.

The board may:

     (1) Accept from any state or federal agency, loans or grants for the planning or financing of any 
public works project and enter into agreements with any such agency concerning the loans or grants;

     (2) Provide technical assistance to local governments;

     (3) Accept any gifts, grants, or loans of funds, property, or financial or other aid in any form from any 
other source on any terms and conditions which are not in conflict with this chapter;

     (4) Adopt rules under chapter 34.05 RCW as necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter;

     (5) Do all acts and things necessary or convenient to carry out the powers expressly granted or 
implied under this chapter.

[1985 c 446 § 10.]

Page 3 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

61



43.155.050
Public works assistance account.

The public works assistance account is hereby established in the state treasury. Money may be placed 
in the public works assistance account from the proceeds of bonds when authorized by the legislature 
or from any other lawful source. Money in the public works assistance account shall be used to make 
loans and to give financial guarantees to local governments for public works projects. Moneys in the 
account may also be appropriated to provide for state match requirements under federal law for 
projects and activities conducted and financed by the board under the drinking water assistance 
account. Not more than fifteen percent of the biennial capital budget appropriation to the public works 
board from this account may be expended or obligated for preconstruction loans, emergency loans, or 
loans for capital facility planning under this chapter; of this amount, not more than ten percent of the 
biennial capital budget appropriation may be expended for emergency loans and not more than one 
percent of the biennial capital budget appropriation may be expended for capital facility planning loans. 
During the 2011-2013 and 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, the legislature may transfer from the public 
works assistance account to the general fund, the water pollution control revolving account, and the 
drinking water assistance account such amounts as reflect the excess fund balance of the account. 
During the 2011-2013 fiscal biennium, the legislature may appropriate moneys from the account for 
economic development, innovation, and export grants, including brownfields; main street improvement 
grants; and the loan program consolidation board. During the 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, the legislature 
may transfer from the public works assistance account to the education legacy trust account such 
amounts as specified by the legislature.

[2013 2nd sp.s. c 4 § 983; 2012 2nd sp.s. c 2 § 6004; 2011 1st sp.s. c 50 § 951. Prior: 2010 1st sp.s. c 
37 § 932; 2010 1st sp.s. c 36 § 6007; (2009 c 564 § 940 expired June 30, 2011); (2008 c 328 § 6002 
expired June 30, 2011); 2007 c 520 § 6037; (2007 c 520 § 6036 expired June 30, 2011); prior: 2005 c 
488 § 925; (2005 c 425 § 4 expired June 30, 2011); 2001 c 131 § 2; prior: 1995 2nd sp.s. c 18 § 918; 
1995 c 376 § 11; 1993 sp.s. c 24 § 921; 1985 c 471 § 8.]

Notes:

Effective dates -- 2013 2nd sp.s. c 4: See note following RCW 2.68.020.

Effective date -- 2012 2nd sp.s. c 2: "This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the 
public peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and its existing public institutions, 
and takes effect immediately [April 23, 2012]." [2012 2nd sp.s. c 2 § 6013.]

Effective date -- 2011 1st sp.s. c 50 § 951: "Section 951 of this act takes effect June 30, 
2011." [2011 1st sp.s. c 50 § 952.]

Effective date -- 2010 1st sp.s. c 37: See note following RCW 13.06.050.

Effective date -- 2010 1st sp.s. c 36: "This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the 
public peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and its existing public institutions, 
and takes effect immediately [May 4, 2010]." [2010 1st sp.s. c 36 § 6018.]

Expiration date -- 2009 c 564 § 940: "Section 940 of this act expires June 30, 2011." [2009 c 564 
§ 962.]

Effective date -- 2009 c 564: See note following RCW 2.68.020.

Page 4 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

62



Expiration date -- 2008 c 328 § 6002: "Section 6002 of this act expires June 30, 2011." [2008 c 
328 § 6018.]

Part headings not law -- 2008 c 328: "Part headings in this act are not any part of the 
law." [2008 c 328 § 6020.]

Severability -- 2008 c 328: "If any provision of this act or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other 
persons or circumstances is not affected." [2008 c 328 § 6021.]

Effective date -- 2008 c 328: "This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and 
takes effect immediately [April 1, 2008]." [2008 c 328 § 6022.]

Expiration date -- 2007 c 520 § 6036: "Section 6036 of this act expires June 30, 2011." [2007 c 
520 § 6039.]

Part headings not law -- Severability -- Effective dates -- 2007 c 520: See notes following 
RCW 43.19.125.

Part headings not law -- Severability--Effective dates--2005 c 488: See notes following RCW 
28B.50.360.

Finding -- 2005 c 425: "The legislature has and continues to recognize the vital importance of 
economic development to the health and prosperity of Washington state as indicated in RCW 
43.160.010, 43.155.070(4)(g), 43.163.005, and 43.168.010. The legislature finds that current 
economic development programs and funding, which are primarily low-interest loan programs, can 
be enhanced by creating a grant program to assist with public infrastructure projects that directly 
stimulate community and economic development by supporting the creation of new jobs or the 
retention of existing jobs." [2005 c 425 § 1.]

Expiration date -- 2005 c 425: "This act expires June 30, 2011." [2005 c 425 § 6.]

Severability -- 2005 c 425: "If any provision of this act or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other 
persons or circumstances is not affected." [2005 c 425 § 7.]

Severability -- Effective date -- 1995 2nd sp.s. c 18: See notes following RCW 19.118.110.

Findings -- 1995 c 376: See note following RCW 70.116.060.

Severability -- Effective dates -- 1993 sp.s. c 24: See notes following RCW 28A.310.020.

Severability -- Effective date -- 1985 c 471: See notes following RCW 82.04.260.

43.155.060
Public works financing powers — Competitive bids on projects.

In order to aid the financing of public works projects, the board may:

     (1) Make low-interest or interest-free loans to local governments from the public works assistance 
account or other funds and accounts for the purpose of assisting local governments in financing public 

Page 5 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

63



works projects. The board may require such terms and conditions and may charge such rates of 
interest on its loans as it deems necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of this chapter. 
Money received from local governments in repayment of loans made under this section shall be paid 
into the public works assistance account for uses consistent with this chapter.

     (2) Pledge money in the public works assistance account, or money to be received by the public 
works assistance account, to the repayment of all or a portion of the principal of or interest on 
obligations issued by local governments to finance public works projects. The board shall not pledge 
any amount greater than the sum of money in the public works assistance account plus money to be 
received from the payment of the debt service on loans made from that account, nor shall the board 
pledge the faith and credit or the taxing power of the state or any agency or subdivision thereof to the 
repayment of obligations issued by any local government.

     (3) Create such subaccounts in the public works assistance account as the board deems necessary 
to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

     (4) Provide a method for the allocation of loans and financing guarantees and the provision of 
technical assistance under this chapter.

     All local public works projects aided in whole or in part under the provisions of this chapter shall be 
put out for competitive bids, except for emergency public works under RCW 43.155.065 for which the 
recipient jurisdiction shall comply with this requirement to the extent feasible and practicable. The 
competitive bids called for shall be administered in the same manner as all other public works projects 
put out for competitive bidding by the local governmental entity aided under this chapter.

[1988 c 93 § 2; 1985 c 446 § 11.]

43.155.065
Emergency public works projects.

The board may make low-interest or interest-free loans to local governments for emergency public 
works projects. Emergency public works projects shall include the construction, repair, reconstruction, 
replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement of a public water system that is in violation of health and 
safety standards and is being operated by a local government on a temporary basis. The loans may be 
used to help fund all or part of an emergency public works project less any reimbursement from any of 
the following sources: (1) Federal disaster or emergency funds, including funds from the federal 
emergency management agency; (2) state disaster or emergency funds; (3) insurance settlements; or 
(4) litigation.

[2001 c 131 § 3; 1990 c 133 § 7; 1988 c 93 § 1.]

Notes:

Findings -- Severability -- 1990 c 133: See notes following RCW 36.94.140.

43.155.068
Loans for preconstruction activities.

Page 6 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

64



(1) The board may make low-interest or interest-free loans to local governments for preconstruction 
activities on public works projects before the legislature approves the construction phase of the project. 
Preconstruction activities include design, engineering, bid-document preparation, environmental 
studies, right-of-way acquisition, and other preliminary phases of public works projects as determined 
by the board. The purpose of the loans authorized in this section is to accelerate the completion of 
public works projects by allowing preconstruction activities to be performed before the approval of the 
construction phase of the project by the legislature.

     (2) Projects receiving loans for preconstruction activities under this section must be evaluated using 
the priority process and factors in *RCW 43.155.070(2). The receipt of a loan for preconstruction 
activities does not ensure the receipt of a construction loan for the project under this chapter. 
Construction loans for projects receiving a loan for preconstruction activities under this section are 
subject to legislative approval under *RCW 43.155.070 (4) and (5). The board shall adopt a single 
application process for local governments seeking both a loan for preconstruction activities under this 
section and a construction loan for the project.

[2001 c 131 § 4; 1995 c 363 § 2.]

Notes:

*Reviser's note: RCW 43.155.070 was amended by 1999 c 164 § 602, changing subsections (2), 
(4), and (5) to subsections (4), (6), and (7), respectively. RCW 43.155.070 was subsequently 
amended by 2013 2nd sp.s. c 19 § 7032, changing subsections (6) and (7) to subsections (7) and 
(8), respectively.

Finding -- Purpose -- 1995 c 363: "The legislature finds that there continues to exist a great need 
for capital projects to plan, acquire, design, construct, and repair local government streets, roads, 
bridges, water systems, and storm and sanitary sewage systems. It is the purpose of this act to 
accelerate the construction of these projects under the public works assistance program." [1995 c 
363 § 1.]

43.155.070
Eligibility, priority, limitations, and exceptions.

(1) To qualify for financial assistance under this chapter the board must determine that a local 
government meets all of the following conditions:

     (a) The city or county must be imposing a tax under chapter 82.46 RCW at a rate of at least one-
quarter of one percent;

     (b) The local government must have developed a capital facility plan; and

     (c) The local government must be using all local revenue sources which are reasonably available for 
funding public works, taking into consideration local employment and economic factors.

     (2) Except where necessary to address a public health need or substantial environmental 
degradation, a county, city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 may not receive financial 
assistance under this chapter unless it has adopted a comprehensive plan, including a capital facilities 
plan element, and development regulations as required by RCW 36.70A.040. This subsection does not 
require any county, city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 to adopt a comprehensive plan or 
development regulations before requesting or receiving financial assistance under this chapter if such 

Page 7 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

65



request is made before the expiration of the time periods specified in RCW 36.70A.040. A county, city, 
or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 that has not adopted a comprehensive plan and development 
regulations within the time periods specified in RCW 36.70A.040 may apply for and receive financial 
assistance under this chapter if the comprehensive plan and development regulations are adopted as 
required by RCW 36.70A.040 before executing a contractual agreement for financial assistance with 
the board.

     (3) In considering awarding financial assistance for public facilities to special districts requesting 
funding for a proposed facility located in a county, city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040, the 
board must consider whether the county, city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 in whose 
planning jurisdiction the proposed facility is located has adopted a comprehensive plan and 
development regulations as required by RCW 36.70A.040.

     (4) The board must develop a priority process for public works projects as provided in this section. 
The intent of the priority process is to maximize the value of public works projects accomplished with 
assistance under this chapter. The board must attempt to assure a geographical balance in assigning 
priorities to projects. The board must consider at least the following factors in assigning a priority to a 
project:

     (a) Whether the local government receiving assistance has experienced severe fiscal distress 
resulting from natural disaster or emergency public works needs;

     (b) Except as otherwise conditioned by RCW 43.155.110, whether the entity receiving assistance is 
a Puget Sound partner, as defined in RCW 90.71.010;

     (c) Whether the project is referenced in the action agenda developed by the Puget Sound 
partnership under RCW 90.71.310;

     (d) Whether the project is critical in nature and would affect the health and safety of a great number 
of citizens;

     (e) Whether the applicant's permitting process has been certified as streamlined by the office of 
regulatory assistance;

     (f) Whether the applicant has developed and adhered to guidelines regarding its permitting process 
for those applying for development permits consistent with section 1(2), chapter 231, Laws of 2007;

     (g) The cost of the project compared to the size of the local government and amount of loan money 
available;

     (h) The number of communities served by or funding the project;

     (i) Whether the project is located in an area of high unemployment, compared to the average state 
unemployment;

     (j) Whether the project is the acquisition, expansion, improvement, or renovation by a local 
government of a public water system that is in violation of health and safety standards, including the 
cost of extending existing service to such a system;

     (k) Except as otherwise conditioned by RCW 43.155.120, and effective one calendar year following 
the development of model evergreen community management plans and ordinances under RCW 
35.105.050, whether the entity receiving assistance has been recognized, and what gradation of 
recognition was received, in the evergreen community recognition program created in RCW 
35.105.030;

Page 8 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

66



     (l) The relative benefit of the project to the community, considering the present level of economic 
activity in the community and the existing local capacity to increase local economic activity in 
communities that have low economic growth; and

     (m) Other criteria that the board considers advisable.

     (5) For the 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, in place of the criteria, ranking, and submission processes for 
construction loan lists provided in subsections (4) and (7) of this section:

     (a) The board must develop a process for numerically ranking applications for construction loans 
submitted by local governments. The board must consider, at a minimum and in any order, the 
following factors in assigning a numerical ranking to a project:

     (i) Whether the project is critical in nature and would affect the health and safety of many people;

     (ii) The extent to which the project leverages nonstate funds;

     (iii) The extent to which the project is ready to proceed to construction;

     (iv) Whether the project is located in an area of high unemployment, compared to the average state 
unemployment;

     (v) Whether the project promotes the sustainable use of resources and environmental quality;

     (vi) Whether the project consolidates or regionalizes systems;

     (vii) Whether the project encourages economic development through mixed-use and mixed income 
development consistent with chapter 36.70A RCW;

     (viii) Whether the system is being well-managed in the present and for long-term sustainability;

     (ix) Achieving equitable distribution of funds by geography and population;

     (x) The extent to which the project meets the following state policy objectives:

     (A) Efficient use of state resources;

     (B) Preservation and enhancement of health and safety;

     (C) Abatement of pollution and protection of the environment;

     (D) Creation of new, family wage jobs, and avoidance of shifting existing jobs from one Washington 
state community to another;

     (E) Fostering economic development consistent with chapter 36.70A RCW;

     (F) Efficiency in delivery of goods and services, public transit, and transportation;

     (G) Avoidance of additional costs to state and local governments that adversely impact local 
residents and small businesses; and

     (H) Reduction of the overall cost of public infrastructure; and

Page 9 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

67



     (xi) Other criteria that the board considers necessary to achieve the purposes of this chapter.

     (b) Before November 1, 2014, the board must develop and submit to the appropriate fiscal 
committees of the senate and house of representatives a ranked list of qualified public works projects 
which have been evaluated by the board and are recommended for funding by the legislature. The 
maximum amount of funding that the board may recommend for any jurisdiction is ten million dollars 
per biennium. For each project on the ranked list, as well as for eligible projects not recommended for 
funding, the board must document the numerical ranking that was assigned.

     (6) Existing debt or financial obligations of local governments may not be refinanced under this 
chapter. Each local government applicant must provide documentation of attempts to secure additional 
local or other sources of funding for each public works project for which financial assistance is sought 
under this chapter.

     (7) Before November 1st of each even-numbered year, the board must develop and submit to the 
appropriate fiscal committees of the senate and house of representatives a description of the loans 
made under RCW 43.155.065, 43.155.068, and subsection (10) of this section during the preceding 
fiscal year and a prioritized list of projects which are recommended for funding by the legislature, 
including one copy to the staff of each of the committees. The list must include, but not be limited to, a 
description of each project and recommended financing, the terms and conditions of the loan or 
financial guarantee, the local government jurisdiction and unemployment rate, demonstration of the 
jurisdiction's critical need for the project and documentation of local funds being used to finance the 
public works project. The list must also include measures of fiscal capacity for each jurisdiction 
recommended for financial assistance, compared to authorized limits and state averages, including 
local government sales taxes; real estate excise taxes; property taxes; and charges for or taxes on 
sewerage, water, garbage, and other utilities.

     (8) The board may not sign contracts or otherwise financially obligate funds from the public works 
assistance account before the legislature has appropriated funds for a specific list of public works 
projects. The legislature may remove projects from the list recommended by the board. The legislature 
may not change the order of the priorities recommended for funding by the board.

     (9) Subsection (8) of this section does not apply to loans made under RCW 43.155.065, 43.155.068, 
and subsection (10) of this section.

     (10) Loans made for the purpose of capital facilities plans are exempted from subsection (8) of this 
section.

     (11) To qualify for loans or pledges for solid waste or recycling facilities under this chapter, a city or 
county must demonstrate that the solid waste or recycling facility is consistent with and necessary to 
implement the comprehensive solid waste management plan adopted by the city or county under 
chapter 70.95 RCW.

     (12) After January 1, 2010, any project designed to address the effects of storm water or wastewater 
on Puget Sound may be funded under this section only if the project is not in conflict with the action 
agenda developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310.

     (13) During the 2013-2015 fiscal biennium, for projects involving repair, replacement, or 
improvement of a wastewater treatment plant or other public works facility for which an investment 
grade efficiency audit is obtainable, the public works board must require as a contract condition that the 
project sponsor undertake an investment grade efficiency audit. The project sponsor may finance the 
costs of the audit as part of its public works assistance account program loan.

     (14)(a) For public works assistance account application rounds conducted during the 2013-2015 

Page 10 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

68



fiscal biennium, the board must implement policies and procedures designed to maximize local 
government use of federally funded drinking water and clean water state revolving funds operated by 
the state departments of health and ecology. The board, department of ecology, and department of 
health must jointly develop evaluation criteria and application procedures that will increase access of 
eligible drinking water and wastewater projects to the public works assistance account for short-term 
preconstruction financing and to the federally funded state revolving funds for construction financing. 
The procedures must also strengthen coordinated funding of preconstruction and construction projects.

     (b) For all construction loan projects proposed to the legislature for funding during the 2013-2015 
fiscal biennium, the board must base interest rates on the average daily market interest rate for tax-
exempt municipal bonds as published in the bond buyer's index for the period from sixty to thirty days 
before the start of the application cycle. For projects with a repayment period between five and twenty 
years, the rate must be sixty percent of the market rate. For projects with a repayment period under five 
years, the rate must be thirty percent of the market rate. The board must also provide reduced interest 
rates, extended repayment periods, or forgivable principal loans for projects that meet financial 
hardship criteria as measured by the affordability index or similar standard measure of financial 
hardship.

     (c) By December 1, 2013, the board must recommend to the appropriate committees of the 
legislature statutory language to make permanent these new criteria, procedures, and financing 
policies.

[2013 2nd sp.s. c 19 § 7032; 2013 c 275 § 3; 2012 c 196 § 9; 2009 c 518 § 16; 2008 c 299 § 25. Prior: 
2007 c 341 § 24; 2007 c 231 § 2; 2001 c 131 § 5; 1999 c 164 § 602; 1997 c 429 § 29; 1996 c 168 § 3; 
1995 c 363 § 3; 1993 c 39 § 1; 1991 sp.s. c 32 § 23; 1990 1st ex.s. c 17 § 82; 1990 c 133 § 6; 1988 c 
93 § 3; 1987 c 505 § 40; 1985 c 446 § 12.]

Notes:

Effective date -- 2013 2nd sp.s. c 19: See note following RCW 43.34.080.

Short title -- 2008 c 299: See note following RCW 35.105.010.

Severability -- Effective date -- 2007 c 341: See RCW 90.71.906 and 90.71.907.

Findings -- Recommendations -- Reports encouraged -- 2007 c 231: "(1) The legislature finds 
that permit programs have been legislatively established to protect the health, welfare, economy, and 
environment of Washington's citizens and to provide a fair, competitive opportunity for business 
innovation and consumer confidence. The legislature also finds that uncertainty in government 
processes to permit an activity by a citizen of Washington state is undesirable and erodes confidence 
in government. The legislature further finds that in the case of projects that would further economic 
development in the state, information about the permitting process is critical for an applicant's 
planning and financial assessment of the proposed project. The legislature also finds that applicants 
have a responsibility to provide complete and accurate information.

     (2) The legislature recommends that applicants be provided with the following information when 
applying for a development permit from a city, county, or state agency:

     (a) The minimum and maximum time an agency will need to make a decision on a permit, 
including public comment requirements;

     (b) The minimum amount of information required for an agency to make a decision on a permit;

     (c) When an agency considers an application complete for processing;

Page 11 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

69



     (d) The minimum and maximum costs in agency fees that will be incurred by the permit applicant; 
and

     (e) The reasons for a denial of a permit in writing.

     (3) In providing this information to applicants, an agency should base estimates on the best 
information available about the permitting program and prior applications for similar permits, as well 
as on the information provided by the applicant. New information provided by the applicant 
subsequent to the agency estimates may change the information provided by an agency per 
subsection (2) of this section. Project modifications by an applicant may result in more time, more 
information, or higher fees being required for permit processing.

     (4) This section does not create an independent cause of action, affect any existing cause of 
action, or establish time limits for purposes of RCW 64.40.020.

     (5) City, county, and state agencies issuing development permits are encouraged to track the 
progress in providing the information to applicants per subsection (2) of this section by preparing an 
annual report of its performance for the preceding fiscal year. The report should be posted on its web 
site [and] made available and provided to the appropriate standing committees of the senate and 
house of representatives." [2007 c 231 § 1.]

Findings -- Intent -- Part headings and subheadings not law -- Effective date -- Severability 
-- 1999 c 164: See notes following RCW 43.160.010.

Savings -- 1999 c 164 §§ 301-303, 305, 306, and 601-603: See note following RCW 82.60.020.

Effective date -- 1997 c 429 §§ 29, 30: "Sections 29 and 30 of this act are necessary for the 
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and 
its existing public institutions, and take effect immediately [May 19, 1997]." [1997 c 429 § 55.]

Severability -- 1997 c 429: See note following RCW 36.70A.3201.

Finding -- Purpose -- 1995 c 363: See note following RCW 43.155.068.

Effective date -- 1993 c 39: "This act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, health, or safety, or support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and 
shall take effect July 1, 1993." [1993 c 39 § 2.]

Section headings not law -- 1991 sp.s. c 32: See RCW 36.70A.902.

Intent -- 1990 1st ex.s. c 17: See note following RCW 43.210.010.

Severability -- Part, section headings not law -- 1990 1st ex.s. c 17: See RCW 36.70A.900
and 36.70A.901.

Findings -- Severability -- 1990 c 133: See notes following RCW 36.94.140.

43.155.075
Loans for public works projects — Statement of environmental benefits — Development of 
outcome-focused performance measures.

Page 12 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

70



In providing loans for public works projects, the board shall require recipients to incorporate the 
environmental benefits of the project into their applications, and the board shall utilize the statement of 
environmental benefits in its prioritization and selection process. The board shall also develop 
appropriate outcome-focused performance measures to be used both for management and 
performance assessment of the loan program. To the extent possible, the department should 
coordinate its performance measure system with other natural resource-related agencies as defined in 
RCW 43.41.270. The board shall consult with affected interest groups in implementing this section.

[2001 c 227 § 10.]

Notes:

Findings -- Intent -- 2001 c 227: See note following RCW 43.41.270.

43.155.080
Records and audits.

The board shall keep proper records of accounts and shall be subject to audit by the state auditor.

[1987 c 505 § 41; 1985 c 446 § 13.]

43.155.090
Loan agreements.

Loans from the public works assistance account under this chapter shall be made by loan agreement 
under chapter 39.69 RCW.

[1987 c 19 § 6.]

43.155.110
Puget Sound partners.

In developing a priority process for public works projects under RCW 43.155.070, the board shall give 
preferences only to Puget Sound partners, as defined in RCW 90.71.010, over other entities that are 
eligible to be included in the definition of Puget Sound partner. Entities that are not eligible to be a 
Puget Sound partner due to geographic location, composition, exclusion from the scope of the action 
agenda developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310, or for any other reason, 
shall not be given less preferential treatment than Puget Sound partners.

[2007 c 341 § 25.]

Notes:

Severability -- Effective date -- 2007 c 341: See RCW 90.71.906 and 90.71.907.

Page 13 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

71



43.155.120
Administering funds — Preference to an evergreen community.

When administering funds under this chapter, the board shall give preference only to an evergreen 
community recognized under RCW 35.105.030 in comparison to other entities that are eligible to 
receive evergreen community designation. Entities not eligible for designation as an evergreen 
community shall not be given less preferential treatment than an evergreen community.

[2008 c 299 § 30.]

Notes:

Short title -- 2008 c 299: See note following RCW 35.105.010.

43.155.130
Intent — Local infrastructure assistance — Plan.

(1) The legislature intends to modernize state programs that provide financial and technical assistance 
related to local infrastructure by: (a) Clarifying the policy objectives and priorities for state assistance for 
local infrastructure; (b) eliminating redundancy among the various state programs; (c) increasing the 
speed of delivering state assistance and the ability to respond to emerging needs; (d) maximizing the 
acquisition and use of federal funding sources; (e) ensuring transparency in state and federal 
assistance; (f) improving access to the lowest cost private market financing; and (g) ensuring 
accountability and the periodic review of progress.

     (2) By November 1, 2011, the public works board must prepare and submit to the appropriate 
committees of the legislature an implementation plan for creating a reformed state system for providing 
local infrastructure assistance. In developing the plan, the board must consult with state agencies that 
provide infrastructure funding and technical assistance including, but not limited to, the departments of 
commerce, health, and ecology. The board must also work in cooperation with local governments or 
entities that benefit from infrastructure funding and technical assistance.

     (3) The board, state agencies, and local partners must consider, among other things, consolidation 
of state appropriations to support policy-focused investments including water quality, safe drinking 
water, storm water, economic development, access to private financing, solid waste and recycling, and 
flood levees. In addition, they must consider consolidating assistance packages, streamlining 
application processes, and clarify the respective responsibilities of state and local agencies in planning 
for, developing[,] and maintaining local public infrastructure.

     (4) The implementation plan must include draft legislation and the organizational and budgetary 
changes necessary to implement the new system in time for the 2013-2015 budget cycle.

[2011 1st sp.s. c 48 § 7028.]

Notes:

Effective date -- 2011 1st sp.s. c 48: See note following RCW 39.35B.050.

Page 14 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

72



43.155.140
Projects in areas impacted by the closure or potential closure of large coal-fired electric 
generation facilities.

The board shall solicit qualifying projects to plan, design, and construct public works projects needed to 
attract new industrial and commercial activities in areas impacted by the closure or potential closure of 
large coal-fired electric generation facilities, which for the purposes of this section means a facility that 
emitted more than one million tons of greenhouse gases in any calendar year prior to 2008. The 
projects should be consistent with any applicable plans for major industrial activity on lands formerly 
used or designated for surface coal mining and supporting uses under RCW 36.70A.368. When the 
board receives timely and eligible project applications from a political subdivision of the state for 
financial assistance for such projects, the board from available funds shall give priority consideration to 
such projects.

[2011 c 180 § 302.]

Notes:

Findings -- Purpose -- 2011 c 180: See note following RCW 80.80.010.

Page 15 of 15Chapter 43.155 RCW: PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

9/23/2014http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155&full=true

73



74



SENATE BILL REPORT
E2SHB 1484

As Reported by Senate Committee On:
Governmental Operations, February 27, 2014

Title:  An act relating to the public works board.

Brief Description:  Concerning the public works board.

Sponsors:  House Committee on Capital Budget (originally sponsored by Representatives 
Stanford and Warnick; by request of Washington State Department of Commerce).

Brief History:  Passed House:  2/18/14, 92-5.
Committee Activity:  Governmental Operations:  2/27/14 [DPA].

SENATE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

Majority Report:  Do pass as amended.
Signed by Senators Roach, Chair; Benton, Vice Chair; Hasegawa, Ranking Member; 

Conway, Dansel, McCoy and Rivers.

Staff:  Karen Epps (786-7424)

Background:  The Public Works Assistance Account (Account), commonly known as the 
Public Works Trust Fund, was created by the Legislature in 1985 to provide a source of loan 
funds to assist local governments and special purpose districts with infrastructure projects. 

The Account receives dedicated revenues from the public utility tax on water and sewer 
service, the solid waste collection tax, a portion of the real estate excise tax, and loan 
repayments.  Money in the Account must be used to make loans, give financial guarantees to 
local governments for public works projects, and may also be appropriated as the required 20 
percent state match to the federal Drinking Water State Revolving Fund jointly managed by 
the Public Works Board (Board) and the Department of Health.  

The Board is authorized to make low-interest or interest-free loans from the Account to 
finance the acquisition, construction, repair, replacement, or improvement of the following 
systems:  bridges, streets, and roads; water, storm, and sanitary sewage systems; and solid 
waste facilities, including recycling.  The Board also makes loans for pre-construction, 
emergency, and capital facility planning purposes.  The Board may require loan terms, 
conditions, and interest rates as it deems necessary or convenient to carry out these purposes.  

––––––––––––––––––––––

This analysis was prepared by non-partisan legislative staff for the use of legislative 
members in their deliberations. This analysis is not a part of the legislation nor does it 
constitute a statement of legislative intent.

Senate Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 1 -

75



The Board may provide technical assistance.  Existing debt or financial obligations may not 
be refinanced. All local governments except port districts and school districts are eligible to 
receive loans. 

The Board, staffed by the Department of Commerce, includes 13 voting members: two 
elected officials and one public works manager representing cities; two elected officials and 
one public works manager representing counties; three members representing public utility 
and water-sewer districts; and four members representing the general public.

By November 1 of each even-numbered year, the Board must develop and submit to 
legislative fiscal committees a prioritized, recommended funding list of public works 
construction projects. The Board must consider a number of factors in prioritizing projects:  
health and safety; unemployment rate; the Puget Sound Partnership Action Agenda; fiscal 
distress; permitting processes; relative project costs; number of communities served or 
communities funding the project; water system health and safety violations; Evergreen 
community recognition; and relative project benefits.  The Legislature may remove projects 
from the list, but may not change the priority order of the Board's recommendations.  Funds 
cannot be obligated by the Board until the Legislature has appropriated funds for a specific 
list of projects.  

Summary of Bill (Recommended Amendments):  Modifications are made to the Board 
positions.  The requirement to have three Board members who are city and county officials 
and one public works manager is changed to two Board members who are city and county 
officials and one official working in public works or a related field.  The requirement to have 
three members jointly nominated by the Washington Public Utility Districts Association 
(PUD Association) and a state association of water-sewer districts (Sewer and Water District 
Association) is changed to require separate nominations:  one member appointed from a list 
of the PUD Association nominees, and two members appointed from a list of Sewer and 
Water District Association nominees. 

The Board must manage the Account to ensure its sustainability and must execute contracts 
and otherwise obligate funds in the Account for Board-approved projects.  The Board must 
establish lending policies and procedures that are consistent with managing the Account for 
long-term sustainability.  When determining loan terms for an application round, the Board 
must take into account applicable market rates but may, at its discretion, use additional 
factors to set the final terms.  The Board must provide reduced interest rates, or extended 
repayment periods, for projects that meet financial hardship criteria.  The Board may not 
provide financial guarantees and may not refinance local government existing debt or 
financial obligations except for certain short-term debt. 

The Board is authorized to approve projects under the construction, preconstruction, 
planning, emergency, energy or water efficiency, water system acquisition and rehabilitation, 
and other legislatively authorized programs. A local government must demonstrate the 
financial capacity to repay a loan.  The Board may provide grants for projects under the 
Water System Acquisition and Rehabilitation program.  The Board must provide technical 
assistance.  The Board must contractually require an investment grade efficiency audit for 
public facilities for which an audit is obtainable, and may allow the audit costs to be financed 
as part of the loan. The Board must consider whether a project is consistent with the action 

Senate Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 2 -

76



agenda developed by the Puget Sound partnership for any project designed to address the 
effects of stormwater or wastewater on Puget Sound when awarding assistance. 

The Board must develop a process for numerically ranking construction loan applications and 
must establish the ranked list based on consideration of at least the following factors, in any 
order: 

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

critical nature of the project and its health and safety impact on a large percentage of 
the community; 
leverage of non-state funds;
readiness to proceed to construction; 
system consolidation or regionalization; 
the area's relative unemployment rate; 
system management; 
promotion of sustainable resource use and environmental quality; 
encouragement of economic development through mixed-use and mixed-income 
development; 
extent to which the project meets the identified state policy objectives; 
equitable distribution of funds by geography and population; and 
other Board-determined criteria.  

By November 1 of every year, the Board must develop and submit to legislative fiscal 
committees a ranked list of qualified public works construction projects recommended for 
funding.  The Board must document the numerical ranking assigned to each project on the 
recommended list and to each eligible project not recommended for funding.  The maximum 
amount of funds that the Board may recommend for any one jurisdiction per biennium is $10 
million.  The Legislature may remove projects from the list, but may not change the ranked 
order of the projects recommended for funding.  Funds cannot be obligated by the Board 
until the Legislature has appropriated funding for a specific list of projects.  Of the biennial 
capital budget appropriation from the Account, at least 85 percent must be obligated for 
construction loans.  No more than 15 percent may be obligated for programs other than 
construction loans, including state match for federal programs or funding for other state 
programs. 

Beginning November 1, 2014, and November 1 of every biennium thereafter, the Board must 
report to the Governor and legislative fiscal committees on how the Board is using the state's 
priority policy objectives to guide its investment of Account funds and what outcomes have 
been produced.  The Board must collaborate with infrastructure financing-related 
organizations, provide advice to the Governor and legislative committees, and at the 
Governor's direction, provide information and advocacy nationally. 

EFFECT OF CHANGES MADE BY GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS 
COMMITTEE (Recommended Amendments):  Clarifies that the Board must consider 
whether a project is consistent with the action agenda developed by the Puget Sound 
partnership for any project designed to address the effects of stormwater or wastewater on 
Puget Sound when awarding assistance.  Requires the Board to consult with the Puget Sound 
partnership on these projects.

Appropriation:  None.

Senate Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 3 -

77



Fiscal Note:  Available on the original bill.

Committee/Commission/Task Force Created:  No.

Effective Date:  Ninety days after adjournment of session in which bill is passed.

Staff Summary of Public Testimony on Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill:  PRO:  
This bill is designed to update the Board statutes.  The prioritization and ranking system is a 
critical piece of this bill and provides good updates to those provisions.  This bill makes 
several changes to the administration of the Public Works Trust Fund.  This loan program is 
very successful and provides low-interest loans for critical public works projects.  There has 
never been a default in the history of the program.  This program is also a key tool for 
economic development.  The prioritization and the ranking portions of the bill are very 
important.  This bill maintains flexibility for the Board to set interest rates which is very 
important because low-interest rates are one of the main reasons this program works so well.  
The bill also requires the Board to maximize the use of federal funds, but there are a few 
concerns about how that might be implemented.  The Board has a long history of protecting 
our communities by helping local governments pay for infrastructure projects which protect 
public health, preserve the environment, and support sustainable growth.  Local governments 
have assessed $2.8 billion from the Public Works Trust Fund and leveraged an additional 
$4.6 billion to construct over 1975 projects across the state over the last 30 years.  As our 
infrastructure ages, communities must continue to improve their systems and this bill will 
assist the Board in meeting those needs.  This bill is requested by the Department of 
Commerce and the Board and it improves the way in which the Board serves local 
governments. 

Persons Testifying:  PRO:  Representative Stafford, prime sponsor; Alison Hellberg, Assn. 
of WA Cities; Jerry VanderWood, Associated General Contractors of WA; Scott Hutsell, 
Public Works Board.

Senate Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 4 -

78



HOUSE BILL REPORT
E2SHB 1484

As Passed House:
February 18, 2014

Title:  An act relating to the public works board.

Brief Description:  Concerning the public works board.

Sponsors:  House Committee on Capital Budget (originally sponsored by Representatives 
Stanford and Warnick; by request of Washington State Department of Commerce).

Brief History:
Committee Activity:

Capital Budget:  2/15/13, 2/28/13 [DPS], 1/30/14, 2/4/14 [DP2S].
Floor Activity:

Passed House:  2/18/14, 92-5.

Brief Summary of Engrossed Second Substitute Bill

�

�

�

�

�

�

Declares the state's intention to invest resources to address a local public 
infrastructure project backlog and to serve eight state priority policy 
objectives.  

Requires the Public Works Board (Board) to numerically rank applications 
according to specific factors and submit an annual ranked list of projects 
recommended for funding to legislative fiscal committees.

Requires the Board to set policies and procedures that maximize local 
government use of federally funded drinking water and clean water revolving 
funds. 

Requires Board lending policies and procedures to be consistent with long-
term sustainability of the Public Works Assistance Account.

Requires reduced rates and extended terms for projects that meet financial 
hardship criteria.

Requires investment grade efficiency audits for projects when obtainable. 

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON CAPITAL BUDGET

––––––––––––––––––––––

This analysis was prepared by non-partisan legislative staff for the use of legislative 
members in their deliberations. This analysis is not a part of the legislation nor does it 
constitute a statement of legislative intent.

House Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 1 -

79



Majority Report:  The second substitute bill be substituted therefor and the second 
substitute bill do pass.  Signed by 9 members:  Representatives Dunshee, Chair; Stanford, 
Vice Chair; DeBolt, Ranking Minority Member; Appleton, Riccelli, Robinson, Senn, Stonier 
and Warnick.

Minority Report:  Do not pass.  Signed by 4 members:  Representatives MacEwen, 
Assistant Ranking Minority Member; Christian, Scott and Smith.

Staff:  Meg VanSchoorl (786-7105).

Background:  

Public Works Assistance Account.
The Public Works Assistance Account (Account) was established in 1985 to encourage local 
government self-reliance in meeting public works needs, and assist in financing critical 
infrastructure projects.  Monies in the Account must be used to make loans and give financial 
guarantees, and may also be appropriated to provide state match for federal dollars under the 
drinking water and clean water state revolving funds.  Loan repayments and revenues from 
three tax sources have historically been deposited into the Account.

Public Works Financing, Criteria, and Process.
The Public Works Board (Board) may make low-interest or interest-free loans from the 
Account to finance the acquisition, construction, repair, replacement, or improvement of 
local bridges, streets, and roads; drinking water systems; storm and sanitary sewage systems; 
and solid waste facilities, including recycling.  Up to a maximum of 15 percent of the 
biennial capital budget appropriation, the Board may make loans for preconstruction, 
emergency, and capital facilities planning.  The Board may require loan terms, conditions, 
and interest rates as it deems necessary or convenient to carry out these purposes.  The Board 
may provide technical assistance.  Existing debt or financial obligations may not be 
refinanced. 

Local governments and special purpose districts, except port and school districts, are eligible 
to apply for loans from the Account.  

The Board must consider a number of factors in prioritizing projects:  health and safety; 
unemployment rate; the Puget Sound Partnership Action Agenda; fiscal distress; permitting 
processes; relative project costs; number of communities served or funding the project; water 
system health and safety violations; Evergreen community recognition; and relative project 
benefits.

By November 1 of each even-numbered year, the Board must develop and submit to 
legislative fiscal committees a prioritized, recommended funding list of public works 
construction projects.  The Legislature may remove projects from the list, but may not 
change the priority order of the Board's recommendations.  Funds cannot be obligated by the 
Board until the Legislature has appropriated funds for a specific list of projects. 

Public Works Board.

House Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 2 -

80



The Board is staffed by the Department of Commerce (Commerce) and includes 13 voting 
members:  two elected officials and one public works manager representing cities; two 
elected officials and one public works manager representing counties; three members 
representing public utility and water-sewer districts; and four members representing the 
general public. 

Summary of Engrossed Second Substitute Bill:  

Intent and Definitions.
The Legislature finds that local governments are responsible for developing, managing, 
financing, and maintaining local infrastructure systems, and that a significant backlog of 
local projects exists.  The state intends to strategically invest resources in local systems to 
address the backlog and serve priority state policy objectives including:  efficient use of state 
resources; preservation and enhancement of health and safety; pollution abatement and 
environmental protection; new family-wage job creation and avoidance of job-shifting 
among Washington communities; economic development consistent with the Growth 
Management Act; efficient delivery of goods, services, public transit, and transportation; 
avoidance of government costs that adversely impact local residents and small businesses; 
and reduction of public infrastructure costs. 

Definitions are added or revised for:  "capital facility plan," "construction," "director," 
"emergency," "financial assistance," "local government," "planning project," "policy 
objectives," "preconstruction," "public works project," and "technical assistance."  
Definitions for "financing guarantees" and "solid waste or recycling project" are removed. 

The Account.
The Board must manage the Account to ensure its sustainability and must execute contracts 
and otherwise obligate funds in the Account for Board-approved projects.  

Of the biennial capital budget appropriation from the Account, at least 85 percent must be 
obligated for construction loans.  No more than 15 percent may be obligated for programs 
other than construction loans, including state match for federal programs or funding for other 
state programs. 

Public Works Financing, Criteria, and Process.
The Board is authorized to approve projects under the construction, preconstruction, 
planning, emergency, energy or water efficiency, water system acquisition and rehabilitation, 
and other legislatively authorized programs.  The Board may provide grants for projects 
under the Water System Acquisition and Rehabilitation program.  The Board must provide 
technical assistance.  

The Board must contractually require an investment grade efficiency audit for public 
facilities for which an audit is obtainable, and may allow the audit costs to be financed as part 
of the loan. 

As a threshold criterion, a local government must demonstrate the financial capacity to repay 
a loan.

House Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 3 -

81



The Board must develop a process for numerically ranking construction loan applications and 
must establish the ranked list based on consideration of at least the following factors, in any 
order:  critical nature of the project and its health and safety impact on a large percentage of 
the community; leverage of nonstate funds; readiness to proceed to construction; system 
consolidation or regionalization; the area's relative unemployment rate; system management; 
promotion of sustainable resource use and environmental quality; encouragement of 
economic development through mixed-use and mixed-income development; extent to which 
the project meets the identified state policy objectives; equitable distribution of funds by 
geography and population; and other Board-determined criteria.  Several other factors that 
must currently be considered by the Board are removed. 

By November 1 of every year, the Board must develop and submit to legislative fiscal 
committees a ranked list of qualified public works construction projects recommended for 
funding.  The Board must document the numerical ranking assigned to each project on the 
recommended list and to each eligible project not recommended for funding. The maximum 
amount of funds that the Board may recommend for any one jurisdiction per biennium is $10 
million.  The Legislature may remove projects from the list, but may not change the ranked 
order of the projects recommended for funding.  Funds cannot be obligated by the Board 
until the Legislature has appropriated funding for a specific list of projects.  

The Board must implement policies and procedures designed to maximize local government 
use of federally funded drinking water and clean water state revolving funds.  The Board and 
the departments of Health and Ecology must develop criteria and procedures to increase 
access for drinking water and wastewater projects to the Account for short-term 
preconstruction financing and to the federal funds for construction financing.

The Board must establish lending policies and procedures that are consistent with managing 
the Account for long-term sustainability.  When determining loan terms for an application 
round, the Board must take into account applicable market rates but may, at its discretion, use 
additional factors to set the final terms.

The Board must provide reduced interest rates, or extended repayment periods, for projects 
that meet financial hardship criteria.  The Board may not provide financial guarantees and 
may not refinance local government existing debt or financial obligations except for certain 
short-term debt.  

Board.
Modifications are made to the Board positions.  The requirement to have two Board members 
who are city and county public works managers is changed to two Board members who are 
city and county officials working in public works or a related field.  The requirement to have 
three members jointly nominated by the Washington Public Utility Districts Association 
(PUD Association) and a state association of water-sewer districts (Sewer and Water District 
Association) is changed to require separate nominations:  one member appointed from a list 
of the PUD Association nominees, and two members appointed from a list of Sewer and 
Water District Association nominees. 

Other.

House Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 4 -

82



Beginning November 1, 2014, and November 1 of every biennium thereafter, the Board must 
report to the Governor and legislative fiscal committees on how the Board is using the state's 
priority policy objectives to guide its investment of Account funds and what outcomes have 
been produced. 

The Board must collaborate with infrastructure financing-related organizations, provide 
advice to the Governor and legislative committees, and at the Governor's direction, provide 
information and advocacy nationally.  The respective responsibilities of the Board and 
Commerce are set out. 

Appropriation:  None.

Fiscal Note:  Available on the original bill.

Effective Date:  The bill takes effect 90 days after adjournment of the session in which the 
bill is passed.

Staff Summary of Public Testimony:  

See House Bill Report in the 2013 Regular Session. 

Persons Testifying:  See House Bill Report in the 2013 Regular Session. 

Persons Signed In To Testify But Not Testifying:  See House Bill Report in the 2013 
Regular Session. 

House Bill Report E2SHB 1484- 5 -

83



84



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
2016 Public Works Assistance Account 
Recommended Construction Loan List 

 
 
August 27, 2014 

 
 

Applicant Project Loan  
Request 

Client 
Type 

System  
Type 

Leg. 
District 

County 

Omak Sewer System Improvements $3,706,000 City Sanitary Sewer 7 Okanogan 

Port Townsend LT2ESWTR Water Treatment Facility $5,000,000 City Drinking Water 24 Jefferson 

Port Angeles Landfill Cell Stabilization $7,000,000 City Solid Waste 24 Clallam 

King County North Beach CSO $7,000,000 County Sanitary Sewer 36 King 

Bellingham Cornwall Avenue Landfill $4,000,000 City Solid Waste 42 Whatcom 

Othello SR 24 Industrial Area Sewer System Improvements $3,000,000 City Sanitary Sewer 9 Adams 

Ferndale Sewer Collection System Improvements $1,600,000 City Sanitary Sewer 42 Whatcom 

Bonney Lake SR 410 - 214th Ave E Intersection Improvements $5,200,000 City Street 31 Pierce 

Wenatchee Storm System Rehabilitation $1,762,000 City Storm Water 12 Chelan 

Everett Water Pollution Control Facility Expansion Phase C $7,000,000 City Sanitary Sewer 38 Snohomish 

Lakehaven Utility District Federal Way Sewer $2,000,000 W/S District Sanitary Sewer 30 King 

Kelso Yew Street Reconstruction $1,410,464 City Street 19 Cowlitz 

Warden Well #8 and Well #9 $1,800,000 City Drinking Water 13 Grant 
 

Lexington Flood Control District 
 

S Fork Mccorkle Creek Stormwater Detention Facility 
 

$4,600,000 
Special 

Purpose District 
Storm Water 19 Cowlitz 

 

Silver Lake Water/Sewer District Everett Water Pollution Control Facility Expansion 
Phase B & C 

 

$4,398,000 
 

W/S District Sanitary Sewer 38 Snohomish 

Walla Walla AMI Water Meter Replacement $5,926,746 City Drinking Water 16 Walla Walla 

Point Roberts Water District #4 Water Main Replacement $4,732,125 W/S District Drinking Water 42 Whatcom 

Lakehaven Utility District Lakota Digester Mixer Project $5,000,000 W/S District Sanitary Sewer 30 King 

Lake Forest Park Water District Priority Steel Pipe Replacements 2014-2017 $1,700,000 W/S District Drinking Water 32 King 

Ferndale Sewer Pump Station Improvements $3,800,000 City Sanitary Sewer 42 Whatcom 

Longview Washington Way Bridge Replacement $1,380,084 City Bridge 19 Cowlitz 

Sunland Water District Water Metering $325,000 W/S District Drinking Water 24 Clallam 

Long Beach Seaview Water Distribution System Improvements $1,130,000 City Drinking Water 19 Pacific 85



 

Applicant Project Loan  
Request 

Client 
Type 

System  
Type 

Leg. 
District 

County 

Alderwood Water & Wastewater District Pressure Reduction & Overflow Management $7,000,000 W/S District Drinking Water 21 Snohomish 

Kennewick Southridge Area Infrastructure Development $7,000,000 City Street 8 Benton 

Camas NW 6th Ave Rehabilitation $1,900,000 City Street 18 Clark 
 

Duvall 
SR 203 Safety Improvements & Road Reconstruction 
Coe Clemens Creek 

 

$1,500,000 
 

City Street 45 King 

Ilwaco Sahalee Water System Improvements $1,257,900 City Drinking Water 19 Pacific 

Lakewood Water District Replacement of water mains & service lines $3,850,000 W/S District Drinking Water 25,28,29 Pierce 
 

Birch Bay Water and Sewer District 
PS #3 to PS #4 Sewer Capacity Increase including 
waterline work 

 

$2,500,000 
 

W/S District Sanitary Sewer 42 Whatcom 

Clark Regional Wastewater District North Junction Sewer Collection System $3,500,000 W/S District Sanitary Sewer 18 Clark 

Waitsburg Main Street Bridge Replacement $600,000 City Bridge 16 Walla Walla 

Clark County NE 10th Ave (154th to 164th St) $7,000,000 County Street 18 Clark 

Des Moines S 216th St Segment 1-A $3,000,000 City Street 30,33 King 
 

La Conner 
AC Water Transmission Main Replacement - North 
Segment 

 

$827,000 
 

City Drinking Water 10 Skagit 

Kitsap County Sewer District #7 Replace Digester #1 $650,000 W/S District Sanitary Sewer 23 Kitsap 

Washougal Phase 2 Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements $7,000,000 City Sanitary Sewer 18 Clark 

Lake Forest Park Lyon Creek Flood Reduction Project $1,598,040 City Storm Water 46 King 

Skyway Water and Sewer District Skyway Park North Phase 1 Sewer Replacement $4,121,575 W/S District Sanitary Sewer 37 King 

Skyway Water and Sewer District 2 to 4 Inch Waterman Replacement Project $2,874,000 W/S District Drinking Water 37 King 

Toppenish Sewer Collection System Improvements $1,000,000 City Sanitary Sewer 15 Yakima 

Cross Valley Water District Echo Lake Area Water System Improvements $3,235,000 W/S District Drinking Water 1,39 Snohomish 

Redmond Redmond Way & Cleveland Street Couplet Conversion $7,000,000 City Street 48 King 

Sammamish Inglewood Stormwater Improvements $3,385,000 City Storm Water 41,45 King 

Concrete Water System Improvements $1,096,500 City Drinking Water 39 Skagit 
 

Southwest Suburban Sewer District 
Pump Station #14 Rehabilitation & Pump Station #15 
Elimination 

 

$1,730,000 
 

W/S District Sanitary Sewer 34 King 

Quincy Wastewater Discharge Pipeline & Reuse Project $7,000,000 City Sanitary Sewer 13 Grant 

Mountlake Terrace Main Street Project $5,400,000 City Street 1,32 Snohomish 

La Conner Caledonia Storm Water Pump Station Replacement $711,000 City Storm Water 10 Skagit 

 
86



TAB D 
TECHNICAL & IMPACT 

ASSISTANCE 

87



88



 

 
Date: September 19, 2014 
 

To: Public Works Board 
 

From: Bruce Lund, Managing Director 
 

Subject: Interagency agreement with Evergreen State College Center for Sustainable Infrastructure 
 
At the August 8, 2014 board meeting, you approved a request from the Center for Sustainable Infrastructure to 
co-sponsor a report that addresses the need for sustainable infrastructure approaches.  I am pleased to let you 
know that we have entered into an agreement with the Center for $2,000 as co-sponsors for the report.   
 
The contract is attached for your information.  Per the Board’s direction, flexibility as to the board’s involvement 
in marketing the report is written into the contract.  The Board has discretion to the extent of this involvement 
depending on the outcome of the final report.  The report should be finalized sometime in October. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



 

 
Date: September 22, 2014 
 

To: Public Works Board 
 

From: Bruce Lund, Managing Director 
 

Subject: FirstStop Initiative 
 

Background 

A core component of the Public Works Board’s technical assistance effort is to assist local governments with 
finding funding for high priority projects.  Though funds provided through the Public Works Assistance Account is 
valuable for those local governments fortunate enough to acquire funding, many local governments need assistance 
to identify viable financing sources.  At the IACC’s annual financing conference, a new tool, a Resource Catalog, 
will be introduced and available via the Board’s website.  Staff demonstrated the Resource Catalog to you at the 
work session prior to the August Board meeting. This searchable source of information will allow users to be able 
to obtain information 24/7 on funding, training, and other resources available to local governments as they pursue 
implementing infrastructure projects.  Local governments are also able to consult with Board staff over the phone 
or in person about available resources.  We are also available to coordinate or to participate in tech teams, when 
appropriate and as requested. 

Announcing the FirstStop Initiative 

Public Works Board staff, with authorization from the Board’s Technical Assistance Committee, is announcing the 
FirstStop Initiative at the IACC conference.  This branding and outreach effort related to the activities listed above 
are prominently featured on the Board’s exhibit booth, and at selected sessions throughout the conference. 
FirstStop, as the name implies, will be a source, either online or through consultations that local governments can 
access for funding or other information.   

We expect that this initiative will associate the Board’s technical assistance efforts in this area with a local 
government’s need for this type of service.  With proper marketing of this initiative, local governments will have a 
place to begin their effort for improving their infrastructure through services provided by the Public Works Board 
and its staff.    

 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

111



 

9/21/2014 www.pwb.wa.gov 
 

 
The Public Works Board FirstStop Initiative helps you find the financial and technical assistance resources your 
community needs to ensure sustainable infrastructure systems for the businesses and families you serve. 
 

FirstStop Initiative Resource Referral 
 

Online Resource Catalogue 
• The Board’s online catalog of 

resources will direct you to 
financial, technical, and 
training resources provided 
by expert agencies and 
associations.  Use the 
Resource Catalogue by 
visiting the Board’s website 
at http://www.pwb.wa.gov. 
 

Coordinated Services 
• Develop funding strategies 

for your project. 
• Facilitate tech team 

meetings for communities 
that include staff from 
funding and regulatory 
agencies, technical 
assistance providers, and 
other interested parties. 

 
Training 

• The Board offers Regional 
Academies and training on 
infrastructure related topics 
throughout the year. 

 

Need assistance understanding or resolving challenges related 
to your high priority infrastructure projects? Contact your 
Regional Service Coordinators (RSC’s). RSC’s are your advocates 
to the Board and conduit to relevant infrastructure resources. 
 

 

Bruce Lund, Managing Director 
360.725.3163 | bruce.lund@commerce.wa.gov 
 Isaac Huang 

360.725.3162 
isaac.huang@commerce.wa.gov 

 Lynn Kohn 
360.725.3042 
lynn.kohn@commerce.wa.gov 

 Steve Dunk 
360.725.3157  
steve.dunk@commerce.wa.gov 

 Jacki Skaught 
360.725.3161 
jacki.skaught@commerce.wa.gov 

 Chris Gagnon 
360.725.3158  
christina.gagnon@commerce.wa.gov 

  

 

112

http://www.pwb.wa.gov/


 

 
Date: September 21, 2014 
 

To: Public Works Board 
 

From: Bruce Lund, Managing Director 
 

Subject:  Technical Assistance Update 
 
Background 
Beginning with the August 2014 Board meeting, an update on activities and services provided by the Public 
Works Board technical assistance staff will be a part of each agenda.  This report is not meant to be 
exhaustive, rather to give Board members a sense of the accomplishments that its staff have made during the 
period between meetings. 
 
Significant client services provided / problems resolved 

• Belfair Water District – resolved Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) coordination issue  
• City of Toppenish – resolved concerns that city had over retaining a Dedicated Repayment Account to 

comply with DWSRF contract conditions 
• Executive Order 05-05 – Have completed 29 Executive Order 05-05 (i.e., cultural resources contract 

compliance) reviews since June 1, 2014 and completed approx. 50 reconciliations between databases. 
• Preparation of the 2014 Drinking Water Handbook 
• Lead and participate in IACC Tech Teams on September 30th 

 
Communication to clients 

• Post-Recommended PWAA loan list work -- Application debrief offers made to PWTF applicants, 
contacts made to those recommended for funding t to confirm scopes of work, budgets, timing, etc., 
Cultural Resource compliance documents sent to loan list recipents 

• Mountlake Terrace – Program orientation 
• Communication to all recommended loan list recipients encouraging them to apply for DWSRF and 

SRF programs 
• Site visits to Lake Forest Park, Cities of Olympia, Hoquiam, Aberdeen Lakewood, Tacoma, Tumwater, 

Gig Harbor, and Crystal Springs Water District 
• Attended Fall conferences of the Washington Finance Officers Association, WA Sewer and Water 

District’s Association, Public Utilities District Association (Water Workshop), Association of Washington 
Cities 

• Distributed Fall newsletter to over 2500 recipients 
 
Training and Education 

• Provided PWeB trainings to PWB clients 
• Continued work on the Olympic-Kitsap Academy 
• Sent training survey to over 800 local government  
• Developed material for exhibit booth for Fall 2014 conferences.   
• Conducted Funding Webinar 

 
Program Coordination  

• Conducted two in-depth meetings with staff from the Dept. of Health, the CAU and the Public Works 
Board to determine the 2014 DWSRF fall loan cycle.   

• IACC Conference tech team, exhibit booth, and session preparation 
• Led development of a Commerce internal resource coordination group aimed at streamlining and 

improving technical assistance services provided by the agency 
• Participated on a Community Development Block Grant Rating and Selection process, and provided TA 

to local government CDBG recipients about additional funding opportunities.   

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

113



114



TAB E 
INFORMATION AND 

OTHER ITEMS 

115



116



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 

Joint Meeting of Communications, Policy, and Technical Assistance Committees 
August 7, 2014 

Department of Commerce – Room #110 Columbia River Room 

Board Members Guests Present: Staff Present: Present: Absent: 
Ed Hildreth, Chair, 
Communications Committee Jerry Cummins  Kendee Yamaguchi,  

Executive Director 
JC Baldwin   Cecilia Gardener 
Ted Carlson   Mark Barkley 
Pam Carter   Chris Gagnon 
Stan Finkelstein   Isaac Huang 
Mary Margaret Haugen   Lynn Kohn 
Scott Hutsell   Rodney Orr 
Diane Pottinger   Cathi Read 
Matt Rasmussen   Barbara Smith 
Bubba Scott    
Lisa Wellman    
 

1) Call to order: Chair Ed Hildreth called the meeting to order at 2:30 pm. 

2) ACTION: Scott Hutsell moved to accept the revised Agenda as presented. Matt Rasmussen 
seconded. MOTION APPROVED 10-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Finkelstein, Haugen, Hutsell, 
Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, Wellman) 

3) ACTION: Bubba Scott moved to accept the Minutes as presented. Matt Rasmussen seconded. 
MOTION APPROVED 10-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Finkelstein, Haugen, Hutsell, Pottinger, 
Rasmussen, Scott, Wellman) 

4) FIRSTSTOP:  Rodney Orr demonstrated the new FirstStop website. It will be rolled out at the IACC 
conference. 

5) PWB WORKPLAN: Chris Gagnon rolled out the 2014-2015 Public Works Board WorkPlan. It is a living 
document. Gagnon said in the future staff would date-stamp the revisions. Stan Finkelstein 
recommended using colors to indicate changes in the future. Gagnon stated that staff will 
incorporate both, so that changes to the document will be more readily apparent. Bubba Scott 
stated that the WPUDA (Washington Public Utility District Association) Water Workshop is right 
before IACC and needs to be added to the WorkPlan (September 24-26, 2014). Diane Pottinger 
asked how committee members can make changes to the document. Gagnon said that committee 
members can give their changes to staff, and then staff will make changes to the document. Gagnon 
pointed out that the Academies are not currently on the WorkPlan. Committee members agreed 
they should be added, including tentative dates. Stan Finkelstein asked why June 2015 wasn’t on the 
WorkPlan. Gagnon replied probably just because of space issues. Diane Pottinger recommended 
making the columns smaller and adding June 2015 so it is a 12 month calendar. She also asked if we 
would update this every year at the retreat. Gagnon replied that it’s a living document, and will be 

117



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 2 of 5 

updated and given to the board monthly. Tasks not accomplished in one month will roll forward to 
the next month. Cecilia Gardener is the owner of the document, and changes should be sent to her. 
Staff persons from each committee will take individual committee changes to Gardener. The 
WorkPlan document will become a regular item on each committee’s meeting agenda. Members 
were encouraged to talk to staff, if they had any further suggestions. Pottinger wants to see action 
items presented to the board, and wants to see them shown as completed. Item 4.3 specifically is of 
interest.  

6) MESSAGING: Chris Gagnon stated that the real reason for the joint meeting was to coordinate 
between the committees and come up with a messaging plan. Committee members are coming up 
with a district map.  

Diane Pottinger says it’s not ready for full view, and wants to run it by Stan Finkelstein first. 
Pottinger encouraged everyone to meet with their legislators. Pottinger has met with 4 electeds and 
3 candidates, and has two more scheduled for later this month. She explained that meeting 
legislators has opened their eyes to things they didn’t realize.  

Gagnon stated that there is a lot of overlap in discussions amongst the Policy and Communications 
committees. Pottinger pointed out that while there is much discussion about the McCleary decision, 
when it comes to schools, if you don’t improve the infrastructure, no one will be able to get to 
school, and no one will want to move into the area. Lisa Wellman stated that meeting with 
legislators does make a good impression, and we need to leave something behind that can reinforce 
the message and be more lasting. Mary Margaret Haugen asked about the messaging brochure. 
Gagnon replied that once we have an approved loan list, we can plug that data into it and it will 
become final. We are also building project sheets for individual projects. Stan Finkelstein stated that 
we need this document during the campaign season, and we can’t wait until the next meeting 
(October 2) to finalize it. It needs to be done by the end of this month. Finkelstein would like to see 
a list of projects from the last ten years sorted by legislative district, so members can speak directly 
to individual legislators about those projects. Isaac Huang said he can do this by county and total 
amount of money loaned. So each county has one single sheet that members can use, going back to 
2000, showing how many projects in each county, and the amount of money awarded. Finkelstein 
said it should include individual jurisdictions, as well. Huang said staff has already done some tallying 
by county. Lisa Wellman showed a map that the Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) 
created, showing each county, and the dollar amount and number of projects. Huang said we could 
do this for PWB as well.  

Diane Pottinger brought in a map she had printed that she plans to share with the full board 
tomorrow. She wants everyone to color in who they’ve talked to, on the map. The map is titled 
“Have you asked your legislator about infrastructure?” Pottinger challenged the board members to 
meet with their legislators. The first part is to let them know who you are, the second part is to 
educate them about infrastructure. 

Pam Carter said these are the same words we heard at the last meeting. She think it’s strategically 
important to get to the people in power, not just every legislator. She feels like we’re spinning our 
wheels, and it’s hard to get traction when we’re not gaining ground. 

Mary Margaret Haugen stated that a lot of legislators don’t know who PWB is, or what we do. They 
need to be reminded before the board is further destroyed. 2,000 special purpose districts were 

118



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 3 of 5 

created to work on the infrastructure problem. The legislature created the PWB to help these 
special purpose districts accomplish that. 

Lisa Wellman stated that there’s a belief that if PWB goes away, infrastructure projects will still get 
funded. Scott Hutsell says this message is coming from the leadership.  

Stan Finkelstein had two comments: 1) We need the brochure to hand to legislators. 2) The 
legislature is going to ask us why we are giving money to Tacoma, Seattle, etc. The legislature is 
sympathetic to small areas, such as Pateros, Oso, etc. Ed Hildreth stated that after the loan list is 
finalized, the brochure will be finalized. Scott Hutsell said the brochure and county list needs to be 
completed before IACC and the October 2 PWB meeting. 

Kendee Yamaguchi stated that she is hoping to do some information sharing with AWC that will then 
be sent out to their membership. Diane Pottinger stated that we need to quit focusing all our 
energies on AWC and expand our outreach to other organizations. Yamaguchi stated that there is a 
list of 25 stakeholders we’d like to connect with. Pottinger asked to see this list.  

7) LEGISLATIVE CONTACTS LIST: Chris Gagnon passed out the Legislative Contacts by District brochure 
that Cecilia Gardener was going to hand out at the Friday board meeting. Kendee Yamaguchi asked 
members to fill in their information tonight and please bring this to the board meeting tomorrow. 
Staff will compile the list, and send it back out to board members. If members live in the district, or 
have a relationship with any of the legislators, staff needs to know this. 

Lisa Wellman reiterated that members should do this homework tonight, bring the completed list 
back to the board meeting on Friday, and then we can get started on this campaign. 

Mary Margaret Haugen wants to see the total list of projects that didn’t get funded, so we can go 
after the guy at the bottom of the list, not the top. 

Diane Pottinger wants to walk out tomorrow with five places we need to start talking to. 

Stan Finkelstein said that members need to not just check folks they know, but folks they can 
actually interact with, who will actually see them. He said we derive our authority from Commerce, 
who derives their authority from the Governor. Are we empowered to do this work? JC Baldwin 
stated that she wants someone from the AAG at Friday’s meeting to answer this question. Kendee 
Yamaguchi responded that it is her understanding that board members are allowed to fully advocate 
to recapture revenue streams. Mary Margaret Haugen stated that she will lobby for the board but 
not for the Department of Commerce. Scott Hutsell said to be careful who you’re trying to educate; 
the people in leadership already know what we’re about. Haugen noted that the tax was initially put 
into place with the purpose of funding public work. Yamaguchi said staff will be able to work on this 
after the board meeting.  

Lisa Wellman stated she wants this to go to the printer by next Tuesday. Wellman also wants a map 
like CERB’s done by Tuesday, and incorporated into the brochure. Chris Gagnon asked for clarity. 
Diane Pottinger says she wants the list in the brochure, and the map as a loose page insert. Wellman 
stated she wants a total historical list of projects funded on a map, by county. Total numbers of 
projects and amount of dollars per county, since start of board in 1985. Gagnon stated that Rodney 
Orr can do an interactive map on our website, if the board so chooses. Rodney Orr said yes, he can 
do this, just provide him with the data. Orr stated that you do not want to go back to 1985 and map 
it; it would be too hard to read. He stated he can make it printable or interactive on the website, 
whichever the board wishes.  

119



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 4 of 5 

JC Baldwin asked for a county-only list that can be printed and inserted into the brochure. 

Pam Carter would like to see visuals tomorrow. She would like to see the CERB map projected on 
the screen, as well. She wants to see a list of projects, not a final design. She thinks members are 
talking about different things. 

8) TASK LIST: Kendee Yamaguchi stopped the discussion to recap what she’d heard. She said she heard 
six items that the board wants staff to deliver on Tuesday: 

• Compiled list of the full, completed legislative contacts lists from each board member. 

• Brochure that’s been fully vetted with insert (or incorporated in brochure), including a list of 
projects. 

• Talking points gleaned out of brochure, for members. 

• List of projects in each county from 2010. 

• Historic map since 1985 with number of projects and dollar amounts for each county. 

• List of those projects that were not funded. This should be a separate document from the 
brochure. 

Lisa Wellman wanted to prioritize this list of needs and wants before the board adjourns tomorrow. 
The loan list that’s going to be voted on tomorrow is a key communication tool. She asked if there 
was a press release coming out about that. 

9) TOURS: Chris Gagnon stated that the Policy Committee last month suggested doing tours. This was 
to identify champions of the program. Scott Hutsell said that everyone likes the program, they just 
want to take money away from it. Diane Pottinger says we need to be cognizant of the legislators’ 
time during the campaign season. 

10) INDIVIDUAL PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS: Chris Gagnon asked members if they wanted a separate fact 
sheet for each project. The answer was yes, but those do not have to be produced immediately. 
Staff should be working on it ongoing. 

Stan Finkelstein stated that the stakeholders list needs to include the Association of Washington 
Builders and the Associated General Contractors of Washington.  

11) ACADEMY DATE: Stan Finkelstein said that the Technical Assistance Committee needs to dissect the 
Academies. We’ve done 4 so far, and they have been reasonably well received, but after two years 
of doing this, should they be a real training opportunity for the attendees? What is the purpose of 
the academy? How can we grow the attendance? How can we make them more meaningful? Jacki 
Skaught asked if the members were ready to set a date for the next Academy. Staff has a list of 
dates, and have identified that the preferred meeting location is in Bremerton, at the Kitsap 
Conference Center. It is affordable, beautiful, and centrally located. The available dates are October 
21, 23, or 29. Lisa Wellman recommended the 29th, and all concurred. The theme has not yet been 
set. Wellman encouraged “Economic Development” as the theme. 

12) CONFERENCES: Jacki Skaught has put together a list of conferences for 2014 that staff are 
participating in. Board members are encouraged to attend. Bubba Scott mentioned that the WPUDA 
conference needs to be added to the list. Members were asked to respond to which conferences 

120



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Page 5 of 5 

they wanted to attend. The board recommended bringing strong advocates to these conferences, 
including stakeholders, legislators, local jurisdictions, etc. 

Lisa Wellman wants to put together a marketing piece that highlights the importance of 
infrastructure to economic development that could be brought to these conferences. She stated we 
need speaking opportunities, not just a booth presence. We need board members to volunteer for 
this. Ed Hildreth stated that if members are available they should get that info to staff. 

Mary Margaret Haugen made a motion that Lisa Wellman makes such a presentation at AWB. 
Pam Carter seconded the motion. Discussion – It is probably too late to get on the agenda for AWB. 
Stan Finkelstein recommended trying to get these organizations to hold an infrastructure workshop, 
and then board members can get on the panels of those workshops. 

Mary Margaret Haugen wants to send a letter to each conference, offering a panel workshop on 
infrastructure. Jacki Skaught said that the board has done this in the past. Cecilia Gardener stated 
that our efforts to get on agendas of conferences in the past has not been well received. She asked if 
members had connections, to please assist us in getting on the agenda.  

Diane Pottinger is presenting on a panel at WASWD (Washington Association of Sewer & Water 
Districts) on how to talk to your legislator. 

Isaac Huang said that John Kounts is giving a workshop at IACC on how to speak to your legislator. 
Diane Pottinger will get in touch with Kounts to share ideas. 

13) PROJECT GROUND BREAKING AND COMPLETIONS: Chris Gagnon asked if the board is interested in 
knowing about projects going to construction, either ground breakings or dedications. Is there an 
interest in visiting those projects that aren’t having a ceremony? Members were interested. Gagnon 
said she would get this information from CAU and send it out. Rodney Orr thinks that all the 
contract completion request forms need to ask if contractor is going to have a groundbreaking 
event, and where and when. ACTION: Pam Carter made a motion to add a question to all closeout 
forms asking if contractor is going to have a groundbreaking event, and where and when. Mary 
Margaret Haugen seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 10-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, 
Finkelstein, Haugen, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, Wellman) 

Mary Margaret Haugen thinks that a letter to the editor of the local newspaper, with a picture 
should be sent whenever a board member goes to such an event. 

Stank Finkelstein asked board members to be mindful of staff burdens when making such requests. 

Cecilia Gardener said that writing a letter to a local jurisdiction is not a big burden, whereas pulling 
off tours are a big burden. 

14) LOAN LIST: Cecilia Gardener gave a brief explanation of the new recusal process for the loan list, 
before tomorrow’s meeting, so members can think about it overnight, prior to tomorrow’s 
deliberation. Ann Campbell invented the blind process, getting approval from the AAG. Diane 
Pottinger thinks the new process is great.  

Scott Hutsell asked if the board has any authority to say no to OFM and not allow the cuts. Mark 
Barkley stated that contractors received notice of the amendment in their last billing packet. 

15) ADJOURN: Stan Finkelstein moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:00 pm. Ted Carlson seconded. The 
meeting was adjourned.  

121



122



 

www.pwb.wa.gov 

 
The Public Works Board is a 13-member Governor-appointed state policy board that provides financing and technical assistance 
to help local governments meet critical infrastructure needs that address public health, safety, and the environment.   

 Washington’s Infrastructure Update 
 FUNDING | APPLY NOW 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Department of Health 
Drinking water Construction Projects 
Applications are due September 30. 
 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund  
Department of Ecology  
Water quality projects; wastewater, 
stormwater 
Applications are due November 7 
 
USDA Rural Development – WA Office 
Applications accepted on an ongoing basis 
 
For more information or assistance 
contact your Regional Service 
Coordinator. 
 

 

Executive Director’s Message: 
As fall approaches, the Public Works Board is gearing up for the 2015 legislative 
session. 
 
We know that local infrastructure is essential to a vibrant economy, a high quality of 
life, public health and safety, and a healthy environment. We also know that this 
legislative session will be tough. Education funding will be center stage, but 
educating elected officials and the community on the importance of maintaining vital 
infrastructure funds for our communities is the Board’s number one priority. 
 
The Board understands and appreciates the tremendously difficult budget choices 
ahead for state elected officials and we are committed to helping communicate how 
we’re leveraging partnerships,  maximizing resources, and the consistent return on 
investment state infrastructure funds provide. Throughout the fall, board members 
will be visiting legislators to emphasize the need for the consistent availability of 
resources for local governments, businesses and families. 
 
 

 

 
 
 

PWAA 
Recommended 
Funding List - 
August 2014 

49 Projects 

$170 million 

At least 1500 
Jobs 

2016 PWB BIENNIAL PROJECT 
FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS 
The PWAA leverages federal, local, 
and private funding and  
creates jobs.  
 
For more information on the Board’s 
2015 recommendations visit our 
website at www.pwb.wa.gov 
 
Additional Resources 

 2016 Brochure 
 Recommended Funding List 
 Historical Funding Map 

You can help. If you would like to meet 
with legislators, join our stakeholder calls, 
or have questions about legislative issues 
regarding Public Works Board priorities—
please contact me at (360) 725-3003, or  
kendee.yamaguchi@commerce.wa.gov. 
Informational handouts are available at: 
www.pwb.wa.gov/pages/default.aspx  
or click on one of the links to the left 
under “Additional Resources.” 

Best Regards, 
Kendee Yamaguchi 

123



 

To remove your name from our mailing list, please click here 
If you have feedback, questions, or concerns, please email us, or call 360-725-3158. 

www.pwb.wa.gov 
 

 

 

 
SAVE THE DATE 
Sept. 17-19 | Spokane 
WA Association of Sewer & Water 
Districts, 2014 Fall Conference 
 
Sept. 16-19 | Yakima 
Washington Finance Officers Association, 
2014 Fall Conference 
 
Sept. - Oct. | Various Locations 
Washington Ports Associations Seminars 
 
Sept. 24-26 | Anacortes 
WA Public Utility Districts Association, 
2014 Water Workshop 
 
Sept. 30 - Oct. 2 | Wenatchee 
The Infrastructure Assistance 
Coordinating Council (IACC) Annual 
Statewide Conference 
 
Oct. 29 | Bremerton 
Public Works Board, Olympic – Kitsap 
Peninsula Academy 

Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council  
Annual Financing Conference 
The Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council’s Annual Conference will be held 
September 30-October 2 in Wenatchee.  More than 300 people regularly attend this 
conference to learn about new funding opportunities, what’s changed in existing 
programs, and to get up to speed on the latest trends affecting infrastructure 
financing. If you are in Wenatchee, please join the Public Works Board at one of 
their regular business meetings the afternoon of October 2. 
Learn more > 

STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT UPDATE 
2014 low and moderate-income (LMI) data available   
A primary data source to qualify for CDBG is the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD)’s calculation of LMI population.  HUD updated the LMI data based on the 
5-year 2006-2010 American Community Survey.   
  
Seeking comments on the 2013 Performance Evaluation Report 
Each year Commerce submits a Performance Evaluation Report (PER) that describes how 
these funds were used in communities across the state during the previous program year.  
The Draft 2013 PER report is available until September 24, 2014, for public review and 
comment.   
 
2014 CDBG General Purpose Grant Awardees! 
The Washington State Department of Commerce announced that 15 cities and counties will 
receive a total of more than $9.5 million in Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) for 
2014.  
Learn more > 

DIGGING IN DEEP 
Join us in congratulating these three funding recipients for building strong partnerships, leveraging infrastructure funds, and digging 
in deep to make a difference in their local communities.  
 

   

Salmon Creek Interchange Project 
Clark County 
2008, 2012 PWTF Construction Loans 

Des Moines’ Creek Business Park & 
Transportation Gateway Project 
City of Des Moines’ 
PWTF Pre-Construction Loan 

Discovery Corridor Wastewater 
Transmission System 
Clark Regional Wastewater District 
PWTF Construction Loan 

124



125



 

 

 

 

 

Cars use the new ramp to I-5 after WSDOT opens the new freeway interchange and the NE 139th 
Street bridge with a ribbon cutting at Salmon Creek in Vancouver Wa., Wednesday August 27, 2014. 

(Greg Wahl-Stephens for the Columbian) (Greg Wahl-Stephens) 

 

 

 

 

126

http://columbian.media.clients.ellingtoncms.com/img/photos/2014/08/27/86025_salmon_creek_inter32.jpg


 

127



Bothell Ribbon Cutting Ceremony 09/18/2014 

 

 

 

 

 

128



 

 
 
Date: September 22, 2014 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Cecilia Gardener, Managing Director 
 
Subject: Summary of Capital and Operating Budget Processes and Submittals 
 
As requested by the Board, the following pages include the Board related items found in the Department of 
Commerce’s submitted Capital and Operating budgets.  Due to the large size of these documents, pages 
pertinent to the Board have been extracted from the complete submittals.  The full version of the budget 
requests can be found on the Department of Commerce’s website at:  

http://www.commerce.wa.gov/about/Legislative/Pages/default.aspx 
 
Staff has provided a explanation of each budget page as it relates to the Board, including the required 
processes and timelines.  These are not exhaustive descriptions, just key elements.   
 
Washington enacts budgets on a two-year cycle, beginning on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. The 
budget approved for the 2013-15 biennium remains in effect from July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2015 (two 
fiscal years). By law, the Governor must propose a biennial budget in December, the month before the 
Legislature convenes in regular session. The biennial budget enacted by the Legislature may be modified 
during any legislative session.  Since the inception of annual legislative sessions in 1979, it has become 
common for the Legislature to enact annual revisions to the state’s biennial budget. These revisions are 
referred to as supplemental budgets 
 
Both the capital and operating budgets have very prescriptive schedules and tasks for state agencies to 
follow.   The following graphic demonstrates, at a macro level, the timelines and steps to create a biennial 
budget.  There are technically four budgets developed during the process: 
 

1. Governor submits his proposed budgets (Operating and Capital) to the Legislature – mid/late 
December 

2. The House and Senate will each create a budget (Operating and Capital) – mid February 
3. The final phase - a conference budget – this is the final budget (Operating and Capital) that the 

Conference Committee agrees to – at any time 
4. The final Conference budget goes to the Governor for signature.  He can sign the budget as passed 

or may veto – at any time 
 
Technically, there are four budgets developed before final adoption 

1. Governor  
2. House  
3. Senate  
4. Conference Budget 
5. Governor Signs final Budget 

 
 
 

  

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 2, 2014 
Board Meeting 

129

http://www.commerce.wa.gov/about/Legislative/Pages/default.aspx


 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Legislature 
convenes 2nd 
Monday of 
January 

Legislature 
passes 
Budget 

Governor 
Signs Budget 

Biennial 
Budget Takes 
Effect 

Performance 
Measure 
Tracking 

Agency 
Strategic 
Planning 

OFM Issues 
Budget 
Instructions 

Agencies 
Submit 
Budget 
Requests 

OFM Review 
and 
Governor's 
Decisions 

Governor 
Proposes 
Budget to the 
Legislature 

Ongoing 

June 
2014 

September 
2014 

Fall 
2014 

December 
2014 Executive Branch Process 

Legislative Branch Process 

January 
2015 

April/May 
2015 

May / June 
2015 

July 1, 2015 

Ongoing 

130



 

Department of Commerce Submitted Budget as it related to the Public Works Board 
 
CAPITAL BUDGET 
 
1. Page 7 of Budget Document/Page 138 of Board Packet 

This is a list of all Capital budget requests from the Department of Commerce in prioritized order 
 First Priority is the Public Works Assistance Account 2016 Construction Loan List - $200 million 
 Number 12 is the State Match for the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund - $8.8 million 

 
2. Page 9 of Budget Document/Page 139 of Board Packet 

Ten-Year Capital Plan Summary Information  
 Summary of each division within the Department of Commerce, and the capital related programs 

within the divisions. 
 Public Works Board related programs include: 

› Public Works Assistance Account (PWAA) 
› Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) 
› Energy/Water Efficiency  Program (EWE) 
 

3. Page 25 of Budget Document/Page 146 of Board Packet 
This section covers the Executive Order 05-05 requirements and how the agency adheres to them. 

 All Public Works Board  programs 
 Construction 
 Pre-Construction 
 Emergency 
 Direct Appropriations 
 Water System Acquisition and Rehabilitation 
 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
 

4. Page 29 of Budget Document/Page 149 of Board Packet  
 

This section covers the Green House Gas reduction requirements as laid out by the Office of Financial 
Management (OFM) and how the Board adheres to it. 

 
5. Page 70 of Budget Document/Page 151 of Board Packet 

 
This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These are the resources appropriated to the Board in 
exchange for Public Works Assistance Account resources this biennium to cover existing obligations (project 
currently under construction and requesting reimbursement).   
 

6. Page 80 of Budget Document/Page 153 of Board Packet  
 

This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These are the resources appropriated to the Board in 
exchange for Public Works Assistance Account resources this biennium to cover existing obligations (project 
currently under construction and requesting reimbursement). 

 
7. Page 107 of Budget Document/Page 154 of Board Packet  

 
This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These are the resources appropriated to the Board in 
exchange for Public Works Assistance Account resources this biennium to cover existing obligations (project 
currently under construction and requesting reimbursement). 

 
 
 
 

131



 

8. Page 171 of Budget Document/Page 156 of Board Packet  
 

This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These pages directly correlate to the re-appropriation 
pages starting on page 70 in the Budget Document.  They attest that the projects being funded with state 
money will meet certain legal expectations.   
 

9. Page 191 of Budget Document/Page 158 of Board Packet  
 

This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These pages directly correlate to the re-appropriation 
pages starting on page 70 in the Budget Document.  They attest that the projects being funded with state 
money will meet certain legal expectations.    
 

10. Page 261 of Budget Document/Page 160 of Board Packet  
 

This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These pages directly correlate to the re-appropriation 
pages starting on page 70 in the Budget Document.  They attest that the projects being funded with state 
money will meet certain legal expectations.    
 

11. Page 265 of Budget Document/Page 162 of Board Packet  
 
This section covers the use of Bond Account resources.  These pages directly correlate to the re-appropriation 
pages starting on page 70 in the Budget Document.  They attest that the projects being funded with state 
money will meet certain legal expectations.  
 

12. Page 393 of Budget Document/Page 164 of Board Packet  
 

This is the introduction to the Public Works Board’s Capital request for the FY 2016 Construction Loan List and 
Pre-Construction for $200 million with each project identified in alphabetical order.  The actual list of projects 
and their accompanying descriptions have been omitted due to the volume of pages; they begin on the bottom 
of page 397 in the complete budget document. 
 

13. Page 482 of Budget Document/Page 169 of Board Packet  
 

This is the end of the Public Works Board’s Capital request for the FY 2016 Construction Loan List and Pre-
Construction for $200 million with each project identified in alphabetical order. The actual list of projects and 
their accompanying descriptions have been omitted due to the volume of pages; they begin on the bottom of 
page 397 in the complete budget document. 
 

14. Page 495 of Budget Document/Page 172 of Board Packet  
 

This is the anticipated State Match for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund from the Public Works 
Assistance Account.  Anticipate $8.8 million to provide 20% State Match to the federal capitalization grant from 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).   

  

132



 

OPERATING BUDGET 
 
1. Page 69 of Budget Document/Page 181 of Board Packet 

 
This section outlines the categorized list of services including their performance measure outcomes. 

 
2. Page 122 of Budget Document/Page 186 of Board Packet 

A. Agency Performance Measure  
 These are data points that the Board is required to report on to the Governor. 

 Outcome Measures 001436 Number of construction related jobs sustained through Public 
Works infrastructure investments.  

 Output Measures 001437 Percent of projects completed on time, as per contract (within scope 
of work).  

3. Page 126 of Budget Document/Page 187 of Board Packet 
 
This section identifies the total indirect costs by activity (e.g., program). 

 
4. Page 144 of Budget Document/Page 188 of Board Packet 

A. Recommendation Summary 
 Summary of requested FTEs, funding source, and cost 

 
5. Page 152 of Budget Document/Page 190 of Board Packet 

This is a summary section describing the Board’s book of business, and the impacts and outcomes of the 
budget request.    
 

6. Page 154 of Budget Document/Page 191 of Board Packet 
 

Agency Budget Request Decision Package Summary - The list is includes agency performance level budget 
requests in priority order. 

 
7. Page 202 of Budget Document/Page 192 of Board Packet 

 
All decision packages submitted by an agency must follow the same format as established by the Office of 
Financial Management – The Governor’s budget agency 

 
A. Final decision package as submitted by the agency on behalf of the Board.  

 Request for 3 Full Time Employees (FTEs) with associated costs 
B. This is the document prepared by Board staff, that identifies: 

 Background Statement  
 Current Situation 
 Proposed solution 
 How to finance the request. 
 The impact the request will have if approved 
 The impact if the request is not approved.  
 Performance Measure Detail  
 What specific performance outcomes does the agency expect 
 How the request is related to Commerce’s Strategic Plan 
 How the request provides essential support to one or more of the Governor’s Results Washington 

priorities 
 What are the other important connections or impacts related to this request 
 What alternatives were explored and why was this alternative chosen  
 What are the consequences of not funding this package 
 What is the relationship, if any, to the state capital budget? 

133



 

 What changes would be required to existing statutes, rules, or contracts, in order to implement the 
change 

 Expenditure and revenue calculations and assumptions  
 

8. Page 300 of Budget Document/Page 197 of Board Packet 
 

Summary of revenues by account and source for the 2015-17 biennium. 
 
9. Page 310 of Budget Document/Page 199 of Board Packet 
 

Proposed revenue transfers and the purpose of the transfers. 
 

10. Page 330 of Budget Document/Page 200 of Board Packet 
 

A summary of the percentages of revenues (by source) to the agency. 
 
 

 

134



 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE  PO Box 42525  Olympia, Washington 98504-2525  (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 
 
September 18, 2014 
 
 
 
David Schumacher 
Director, Office of Financial Management 
Post Office Box 43113 
Olympia, WA  98504-3113 
 
Re: Department of Commerce 2015-17 Capital Budget Request 
 
Dear Mr. Schumacher: 
 
On behalf of the Department of Commerce, I am pleased to present the 2015-17 Capital 
Budget request.  In putting together our proposals, we have been mindful of the limited 
funding available to the state.  While our request does appear to be large, much of this 
request is from dedicated fund sources.  Further, we are putting forward a set of budget and 
legislative packages that align with Governor Inslee’s priorities under Results Washington 
and Commerce’s mission, key goals and outcomes.  These proposals would move the state 
ahead by growing and improving jobs, promoting clean energy initiatives, and supporting our 
businesses and communities. 
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration of our proposals.  We look forward to working 
with the Governor and the OFM team as you put together the statewide budget 
recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Brian Bonlender 
Director 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 

135



1 
 

 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Capital Budget 

 
 
Table of Contents ……………………………………………………………………………   1 
 
Director’s Priorities  ……………………………………………………………………………   7 
 
TAB A 
 
Ten-Year Plan Summary Information   ……………………..…………….……………….…    9 
 
Ten-Year Capital Program Summary   ……………………..…….……….……………….…  13 
 
DAHP Review Letter   ………………………………………..…………….……………….…   25 
 
Greenhouse Gas & Vehicle Emissions Reduction Policy…..…………….……………….    29 
 
FTE Summary – Narrative and FTE Details………………..…….……….……………….…  31 
 
Final Project Close-Out Cost Report   ….…………………..…….……….……………….…  33 
 
TAB B – All Preservation Projects  ..............................................................................   35 
 
TAB C – All Programmatic Projects  ………………………………………………………   37 
 
TAB D – Grant Project Requests 
 
Reappropriations (CBS002 and Expected Use of Bond Proceeds  ..........................   39 
 
New Appropriations (CBS002, Expected Use of Bond Proceeds and Proj Lists)   
 

Project - 30000837: Housing Trust Fund Portfolio Preservation Program  …….…  285 
 
     Project - 30000836: Ultra-Efficient Affordable Housing Demonstration …………  291 
 
    Project - 30000838: Weatherization Matchmaker Program  ..…………….………     297 
 
     Project - 30000835: Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants  …….……………...……  303 
 

Project - 30000731: Building for the Arts Program   …………………………..….…  307 
 
     Project - 30000803: Building Communities Fund Program  …………………..……  331 

136



6 
 

 
    Project - 30000792: Youth Recreational Facilities Program   ..………….….…….…  371 
 
     Project - 30000726: Clean Energy and Energy Freedom Program   .………...……   389 
 
 Project - 30000727: Economic Development Foundation   ..….….………….…….… 393 
 
     Project – 30000834: Job Creation/Retention Investments   …….……..………....…   485 
 
 Project - 30000839: State Match for DWSRF  ..…………………..………….……..…  491 
 
     Project - 30000840: Funding Authority for 04R - Drinking Water Assist Acct ……..   495  
 
 Project - 30000725: ARRA SEP Revolving Loans  …………..…….………….……… 499 
 
     Project – 30000833: Housing Trust Fund Appropriation   ….………..………...……    501 
 
 
 
  
 
  

137



7 
 

Department of Commerce 
2015-17 Prioritization 

 
 
The following are Commerce’s new appropriation requests in order of priority as determined by the Commerce Director. 
Commerce did not prioritize its reappropriation requests. 
 
1. Economic Development Foundation ($200 million) 
2. Housing Trust Fund Appropriation ($150 million) 
3. Job Creation/Retention Investments ($14 million) 
4. Clean Energy Fund ($60 million) 
5. Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants ($80 million) 
6. Ultra Efficient Affordable Housing Demonstration ($10 million) 
7. Housing Trust Fund Portfolio Preservation Program ($20 million) 
8. Weatherization Matchmaker Program ($28 million) 
9. Building Communities Fund Program ($21.3 million) 
10. Building for the Arts ($9.9 million) 
11. Youth Recreational Facilities Program ($7.5 million) 
12. State Match for DWSRF ($8.8 million) 
13. Funding Authority for 04R-Drinking Water Assistance Account ($111.2 million) 
14. ARRA SEP Revolving Loans ($3.6 million) 

 
 
  

138



9 
 

 

 
 

Ten-Year Capital Plan Summary Information 

The Department of Commerce’s mission is to grow and improve jobs in Washington State by 
championing thriving communities, a prosperous economy and a sustainable infrastructure. 
 
Commerce enhances and promotes sustainable community and economic vitality in Washington State by 
providing funding and services to local governments, community organizations, and businesses. The 
Ten-Year Capital Plan provides state resources for capital investments in local communities to support 
our core mission and policies set by the Governor and Legislature. 
 

Community Services & Housing Division 
Housing Trust Fund  
RCW 43.185 created the Housing Trust Fund in 1986 to establish a resource to fill the gap created by 
economic conditions, federal housing policies and declining resources at the federal, state and local 
level. The gap adversely affects the ability of low-income persons to obtain safe, decent and affordable 
housing. Funds appropriated to the Housing Trust Fund are used for the Housing Assistance and 
Affordable Housing programs. These programs help communities finance the development and 
preservation of affordable housing for low-income households and special needs populations. Projects 
must remain affordable to the target population for forty years. Funds are awarded on a competitive 
basis and have historically leveraged more than four dollars for every state dollar invested.  

Weatherization 
The Matchmaker Weatherization Program, established under RCW 70.164, leverages non-state funding 
to reduce utility bills and improve the health and safety of low-income families. Across the state, local 
agencies provide home weatherization, repair, and energy efficiency services.  

Local and Community Projects Program  

The Local/Community Projects Program was established by the Legislature in 2003, and Local and 
Community Projects in 2007. The program helps local governments and nonprofit organizations 
leverage other funds needed to complete projects of importance to our communities throughout the state. 
Each community receiving funding also benefits economically during the construction phase and once 
the new or renovated facility becomes operational. Examples of projects funded include acquisition of 
land for public parks, business and economic development incubator facilities, social service and arts-
related facilities, public memorials, and local infrastructure improvements. 
 
Building for the Arts Program  
The Corporate Council for the Arts (now Arts Fund) first proposed Building for the Arts in 1991 to 
coordinate the many requests the Legislature receives for support of arts-related capital projects. The 

139



10 
 

Building for the Arts program provides state grants to nonprofit performing arts, art museum, and 
cultural projects to defray up to 20 percent of the capital costs of new facilities or major renovations.  

 
Building Communities Fund 
The 2008 Legislature established the Building Communities Fund to provide nonprofit organizations 
with technical assistance and capital funding for social service and multipurpose community centers. To 
be considered eligible, projects must involve the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitations of a 
nonresidential facility or facilities, and must be located in a distressed community or serve a substantial 
number of low-income or disadvantaged persons. The state’s share is generally limited to 25 percent of 
the total project cost, although this percentage may be increased under exceptional circumstances. The 
program solicits applications every two years, and operates competitively. 
Youth Recreational Facilities Program 

The Youth Recreational Facilities Program is a competitive grant program that funds nonprofit 
organizations that feature a youth recreational component and a supporting social service and/or 
educational component. Funds may be used to construct or renovate youth recreational facilities, and are 
available on a 25 percent matching fund basis. By reducing or eliminating their lease or mortgage 
payments, these organizations are able to direct more of their limited resources into programmatic 
activities for young people.  

Individual Capital Provisos 

Commerce administers individual provisos that are included in the capital budget at the request of the 
Governor or Legislature. These provisos may go to local governments or nonprofit organizations and are 
targeted specifically to address a local need that may not be eligible for funding through one of the 
various competitive grant programs.  
Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant Program 

The Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant Program is a competitive program that provides funding for 
energy efficiency improvements and solar installations.  The program has goals of leveraging $3 of non-
state funding for every $1 of grant funding; stimulating Washington’s economy by creating jobs; 
reducing energy costs at the state’s public higher education institutions, local government facilities and 
state agencies; and promoting the use of Washington-manufactured solar products, including solar 
modules and inverters. 
The program builds on the successes of the 2012 Energy Efficiency Grants for higher education and 
local governments and the 2010 Jobs Act for Public K-12 and Higher Education. 

Local Government & Infrastructure Division 
 

Public Works Board 
 
The Public Works Board is directed by RCW 43.155 to administer the Public Works Trust Fund 
(PWTF) and to provide assistance to local governments.  The PWTF provides financial assistance in the 
form of low- or no-interest loans to local governments to repair, replace, or create bridges, roads, 
sanitary sewer systems, domestic water systems, storm sewer systems, and solid waste/recycling 
systems. Local governments use the PWTF to maximize their own resources by allowing them to fix 
problems as they emerge, rather than having to wait to amass necessary funds for critical projects.   
 
 

140



11 
 

Drinking Water Assistance Program 
Congress created the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) in 1996 with the reauthorization 
of the federal Safe Drinking Water Act. The Washington State Department of Health’s Division of 
Drinking Water and the Public Works Board jointly manage the DWSRF. The Federal Government 
requires a 20 percent state match, which is provided by the Public Works Assistance Account. 
The DWSRF provides low-interest loans and technical assistance to public water systems statewide. The 
purpose of the loans is to facilitate effective planning, design, financing, and construction of 
improvements aimed at increasing public health protection and compliance with drinking water 
regulations. The long-term goal of the program is to have all public water systems, both privately and 
publicly owned, providing safe drinking water.  
Water System Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program (WSARP)  

WSARP helps maintain safe and reliable drinking water by providing grants to municipal water systems 
to acquire and rehabilitate failing water systems that have water quality problems or deteriorating 
infrastructure. Washington’s current program is modeled after the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
(DWSRF) loan program and is administered jointly by the Department of Health, the Public Works 
Boards and the Department of Commerce. 

 
Energy/Water Efficiency Program (EWE) 
 
The 2012 Legislature appropriated $5 million to finance Energy/Water Efficiency projects (Chapter 2, 
Laws of 2012, and Section 1018). The new Energy Efficiency Loan Program is administered by the 
Public Works Board (PWB).   The EWE Loan Program is intended to assist local governments save 
energy and/or water through an infrastructure upgrades.  Low-interest energy & water efficiency loans 
can be used in unison with power providers to maximize savings while increasing the efficiency of a 
public system and/or building. 
 
Community Economic Revitalization Board 
The Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) is authorized by RCW 43.160 to assist in 
financing publicly owned local economic development infrastructure improvements to encourage new 
development and expansion in areas where growth is desired. The purpose of the funding is to foster job 
creation and private investment. The public improvements include industrial water, general-purpose 
industrial buildings and port facilities, sanitary and storm sewers, industrial wastewater treatment 
facilities, railroad spurs, telecommunications, electricity, natural gas, roads, and bridges.  

Community Economic Revitalization Board Competitive Grant Program 
 
The 2012 Capital Budget (ESB 6074, Section 1005) contained a $12 million appropriation for the 
creation of a competitive grant program(s) for CERB.  Intent of the program is to develop construction 
of publically owned infrastructure, facilities, and related improvements, which enable and encourage: 
Private sector business creation or expansion, redevelopment of Brownfields, and/or enhance the vitality 
and livability of the community. 
 
Job Development Fund (JDF) 
 
The JDF Program provides grants to assist with public infrastructure projects that directly stimulate 
community and economic development by supporting the creation of new jobs or the retention of 
existing jobs statewide. The intent of the program was to fund a broader range of clients than were able 
to receive funding in the standard CERB program, and projects of a much greater size. Funding was 

141



17 
 

 

142



18 
 

  

143



20 
 

  

144



23 
 

 

145



25 
 

 

REVIEW DOCUMENTATION FROM DAHP AND GOIA 
2015- 2017 Biennium 

 
Per Executive Order 05-05, agencies must consult with Department of Archaeology and Historic 
Preservation (DAHP) and the Governor’s Office of Indian Affairs (GOIA) on all capital construction 
projects and land acquisitions for the purpose of a capital construction project.  
 
Department of Commerce capital programs contain multiple subprojects; therefore, the DAHP 
requirements are contained in the application or contract process.  Program specific procedures for 
obtaining EO 05-05 compliance are listed below.  The agency is in compliance with DAHP and GOIA 
EO 05-05 requirements. 
 
Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) 

Community Economic Revitalization Grant/Loan Program 
CERB Competitive Economic Development Grant Program 
CERB Competitive Community Revitalization Grant Program 
CERB Direct Appropriations 

 
Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) requires EO 05-05 be met as a special 
condition to the initial offer of financial assistance for construction projects.  The recipient is 
given six months to meet the EO 05-05 terms or the funding offer is withdrawn. Documented 
evidence is retained in the project files. 
 

     Job Development Fund Grants – Section 138 Capital Grants 
 

Grant recipients are required to provide that either Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act has been met or DAHP has provided a letter signing off on the local project per 
EO 05-05. Documented evidence is retained in the grant/contract files. 
 

Public Works Board (PWB) 

Public Works Assistance Account Program 
 Construction Loan 
 Pre-Construction Loan 
 Emergency Loan 
 Direct Appropriations – Main Street Grant 
 Water System Acquisitions and Rehabilitation (WSARP) Grant 

 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan Program 

 
Public Works Board and DWSRF contract conditions require loan recipients to provide either 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act has been met or DAHP has provided a 
letter signing off on the local project per EO 05-05.  Documented evidence is retained in the 
grant/contract files file. 
 
 

146



26 
 

 

Housing Assistance, Weatherization, and Affordable Housing 

Housing Trust Fund 
Housing Assistance, Weatherization, and Affordable Housing, Housing Trust Fund program 
application and contract conditions require EO 05-05 compliance for construction projects.  
Documented evidence is retained in the application/contract files. 

 
Weatherization 
 
     Low-Income Energy Assistance Program – Weatherization (LIHEAP-WX) 
     Energy MatchMakers Program (MM) 
     Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) – Weatherization Program 
     Department of Energy (DOE) Weatherization Program 
 

Weatherization program requirements have federal requirements to satisfy  EO 05-05 for 
weatherizing homes 45 years and older that could be historically significant. The policy states: 

 
The application for federal funds necessitates an environment review for Historic and Cultural 
Resources. This applies to all weatherization programs including DOE, Health and Human 
Services (HHS), BPA, and the MM Program. 
 
Local agency compliance is monitored. Failure to work with DAHP before work proceeds on 
homes 45 years and older results in disallowed costs.  

 
Community Capital Facilities 

Building Communities Fund 
Building for the Arts 
Individual Capital Provisos 
Local and Community Projects 
Youth Recreational Facilities 

      Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant Projects 
 

Applicant projects are pre-screened using DAHP provided criteria.  For example, if the project is 
for acquisition-only or has gone through a federal Section 106 National Historic Preservation Act 
review, per DAHP agreement, Commerce exempts the project from EO 05-05 procedures.  
However, for projects not meeting the DAHP criteria (for example, the project disturbs dirt 
ground and/or impacts a building older than 50 years), Commerce requires the grantee obtain 
DAHP evaluation approval according to EO 05-05 prior to contract execution.  For projects 
involving modifications to a building older than 50 years, DAHP may recommend criteria 
pertaining to the proposed rehabilitation.  Documented evidence is retained in the 
application/contract files. 
 

147



27 
 

 

 

State Energy Office 

State Energy Program 
 
The State Energy Program requires EO 05-05 compliance for all projects.  The State Energy 
Office has a signed Programmatic Agreement with DAHP and the Department of Energy that 
covers some of the projects.  Documented evidence is retained in the application/contract files 
for all projects that are not covered by the Programmatic Agreement. 
 
 

Innovation Partnership Zones 
 

Innovation Partnership Zones program application and contract conditions require EO 05-05 
compliance for construction projects.  Documented evidence is retained in the 
application/contract files. 

 
Rural Washington Loan Fund 

Rural Washington Loan Program 
 
Rural Washington Loan Fund contract conditions require EO 05-05 compliance for construction 
projects.  Documented evidence is retained in the contract files. This program normally does not 
fund ground breaking projects. 

 

148



29 
 

Department of Commerce 
15-17 Capital Budget Submittal 

September 2014 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction and Vehicle Miles Reduction 
 

2015-25 Capital Budget Instructions 
According to Section 1.3 of the 2015-25 Capital Budget Instructions, agencies are required to submit 
documentation indicating that they have adopted policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) in 
accordance with RCW 70.235.070, and to reduce annual per capita vehicle miles in accordance with 
RCW 47.01.440 or RCW 43.160.020 for rural counties. The GHG statute pertains to infrastructure and 
economic development projects. 
 
OFM Guidance to State Agencies. 
On February 8, 2010 the Office of Financial Management (OFM) provided guidance to state agencies on 
implementation of RCW 70.235.070. In addition to addressing state limits on emissions of GHG, the 
guidance provided an overview of agency affected infrastructure programs.  
OFM’s guidance says that state agencies are expected to implement RCW 70.235.070 in a manner that 
could influence project selection based upon the applicants’ actions to reduce Vehicles Miles Travelled 
(VMT) and GHG emissions and it could be a factor to consider in the competitive selection process. 
Agencies are expected to revise their application questions to determine what GHG policies and plans 
the applicant has adopted. Rating or point systems or other selection processes will need to be 
supplemented with criteria related to project consistency with GHG emissions reduction and VMT 
reduction goals. In regards to the competitive process for funding capital projects and proposed projects, 
OFM’s guidance states, “Agencies need to assess the authority and ability of an entity to adopt GHG and 
VMT reduction policies and adopt criteria that are fair to the applicant pool.” 
 
The Department of Commerce has complied with RCW 70.235.070. Below are the Commerce capital 
programs by division that are affected by RCW 70.235.070 and the actions being taken by the programs 
to make sure that the entities receiving the funds have adopted policies to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 
 
 
Local Government and Infrastructure Division (LGID) 
 
 
Public Works Board Programs (PWB) – The PWB programs, Public Works Trust Fund Construction 
Program, Public Works Trust Fund Pre-Construction Program, and Public Works Trust Fund Planning 
Program, require that the applicants demonstrate adoption of a greenhouse gas reduction 
policy/resolution on their funding request form in order to be eligible for consideration.  In addition, the 
applicants are given points during the selection process if they demonstrate on their request for funding 
form policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) - CERB programs, both traditional and rural, 
require applicants demonstrate how they address greenhouse gas reductions in their communities on the 
funding request form.  No points are awarded during the selection process if the applicants demonstrate 
that they have adopted policies to reduce greenhouse gas.  
 

149



30 
 

Federal Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) – All capital construction grant recipients 
are required to adopt a policy(s) to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in accordance with RCW 
70.325.070 and certify the funded project will adhere to this policy to be eligible for funding.  In 
addition, during the grant application rating and selection process the applicants are given points for 
their efforts that demonstrate good stewardship of natural resources, such as the reduction of greenhouse 
gas emissions. 
 
Energy and Innovation 
 
Clean Energy and Energy Freedom Fund –The Clean Energy and Energy Freedom Fund includes 
four distinct programs: Energy Revolving Loan Fund; Federal Grant Matching Fund; Smart Grid Grants 
to Utilities; and Returning Recovery Act Funds. All of the projects funded by the programs include 
development, demonstration, and deployment of clean energy technologies that save energy and reduce 
energy costs, reduce harmful air emissions, or otherwise increase energy independence for the state by 
the requirement in the legislation.  
 
 
Community Services and Housing Division 
 
Building Communities Fund Program -  
Per the OFM Guidance memo from 2010 on Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction, RCW 70.235.070, 
OFM considers several agencies’ programs affected by RCW 70.235.070. Our understanding is that 
Building Communities Fund should not be affected by this RCW. There are other similar programs such 
as the Youth Recreational Facilities and Building for the Arts that are not impacted by this RCW.                                

                                   
Vehicle Miles Reduction 

 
RCW 47.01.440 adopts statewide goals to reduce annual per capita vehicle miles traveled by 2050. 
Department of Commerce contributes to the statewide program through its Commute Trip Reduction 
(CTR) program for employees. The goals of Commerce’s CTR program are to reduce the use of single 
occupancy vehicles (SOV) and the amount of miles traveled by employees. The benefits of the CTR 
program include:  
 

- Protecting the environment 
- Conserving energy 
- Reducing traffic congestion 
- Reducing the demand for parking 
- Reducing the demand on the community to build and repair roads. 

 
Commerce supports the CTR program through incentives, information and outreach.  
 
 
 

  

150



70 
 

 

151



71 
 

  

152



80 
 

  

153



107 
 

 

 

154



108 
 

 

  

155



171 
 

Expected Use of Bond/COP Proceeds 

 
Agency No. 103 Agency Name Department of Commerce 
Contact Name: Cindy Chavez 
Phone: 725-3154 Fax: 586-8440 

Fund(s) Number: 057 Fund Name: 
State Building Construction 
Account 

Project Number: 92000021 Project Title: 
Temporary Public Works Grant 
Program 

 
1. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be owned by any entity other than the state or one of its 

agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

2. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be leased to any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

3. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be managed or operated by any entity other than the state 
or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

4. Does the project involve a public/private venture, or will any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments ever have a special priority or other right to use any portion of the project or 
asset to purchase or otherwise acquire any output of the project or asset such as electric power or water 
supply?  Yes   No 

5. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be granted or transferred to nongovernmental entities 
or granted or transferred to other governmental entities which will use the grant for 
nongovernmental* purposes?   Yes   No 

6. If you have answered "Yes" to any of the questions above, will your agency or any other state agency 
receive any payments from any entity, other than the state or one of its agencies or departments or 
any local government units, for the use of, or in connection with, the project or assets?   Yes   
No 

7. Will any portion of the project or asset, or rights to any portion of the project or asset, ever be sold to 
any entity other than the state or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

8. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be loaned to nongovernmental entities or loaned to 
other governmental entities that will use the loan for nongovernmental purposes?   Yes   No 

9. Will any portion of the project or asset be used to perform sponsored research under an agreement 
with a nongovernmental person, such a business corporation or the federal government, including 
any federal department or agency?   Yes   No 

*Nongovernmental purposes is defined in the Glossary and examples provided in Section 4.3 of the Capital 
Budget Instructions. 
 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and answers to 6, 7, and 8 are no, request tax 
exempt funding. 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and 6 is yes, request taxable funding from Fund 
355. 

 If the answer to all of questions 1 through 6 are no and the answer to either question 7 or 8 is yes, request 
taxable funding from Fund 355. 

156



172 
 

 If the answer to question 9 is yes, please provide a detailed explanation of the terms of any and all of 
such sponsored research agreements. 

Attach this form to your project in CBS.  The Office of the State Treasurer, bond counsel, or the Office of 
Financial Management may review this form for any projects requested in the budget. 
 

  

157



191 
 

Expected Use of Bond/COP Proceeds 
 
Agency No. 103 Agency Name Department of Commerce 
Contact Name: Cindy Chavez 
Phone: 725-3154 Fax: 586-8440 

Fund(s) Number: 355 Fund Name: 
State Taxable Building 
Construction Account 

Project Number: 30000189 Project Title: 
Drinking Water State Revolving 
Loan 

 
1. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be owned by any entity other than the state or one of its 

agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

2. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be leased to any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

3. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be managed or operated by any entity other than the state 
or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

4. Does the project involve a public/private venture, or will any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments ever have a special priority or other right to use any portion of the project or 
asset to purchase or otherwise acquire any output of the project or asset such as electric power or water 
supply?  Yes   No 

5. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be granted or transferred to nongovernmental entities 
or granted or transferred to other governmental entities which will use the grant for 
nongovernmental* purposes?   Yes   No 

6. If you have answered "Yes" to any of the questions above, will your agency or any other state agency 
receive any payments from any entity, other than the state or one of its agencies or departments or 
any local government units, for the use of, or in connection with, the project or assets?   Yes   
No 

7. Will any portion of the project or asset, or rights to any portion of the project or asset, ever be sold to 
any entity other than the state or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

8. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be loaned to nongovernmental entities or loaned to 
other governmental entities that will use the loan for nongovernmental purposes?   Yes   No 

9. Will any portion of the project or asset be used to perform sponsored research under an agreement 
with a nongovernmental person, such a business corporation or the federal government, including 
any federal department or agency?   Yes   No 

*Nongovernmental purposes is defined in the Glossary and examples provided in Section 4.3 of the Capital 
Budget Instructions. 
 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and answers to 6, 7, and 8 are no, request tax 
exempt funding. 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and 6 is yes, request taxable funding from Fund 
355. 

 If the answer to all of questions 1 through 6 are no and the answer to either question 7 or 8 is yes, request 
taxable funding from Fund 355. 

 If the answer to question 9 is yes, please provide a detailed explanation of the terms of any and all of 
such sponsored research agreements. 

158



192 
 

Attach this form to your project in CBS.  The Office of the State Treasurer, bond counsel, or the Office of 
Financial Management may review this form for any projects requested in the budget. 
 

  

159



261 
 

Expected Use of Bond/COP Proceeds 
 
Agency No. 103 Agency Name Department of Commerce 
Contact Name: Cindy Chavez 
Phone: 725-3154 Fax: 586-8440 

Fund(s) Number: 355/057 Fund Name: 
State Taxable Building 
Construction Account/State 
Building Construction Account 

Project Number: 91000581 Project Title: 
Public Works Assistance 
Account Project 

 
1. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be owned by any entity other than the state or one of its 

agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

2. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be leased to any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

3. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be managed or operated by any entity other than the state 
or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

4. Does the project involve a public/private venture, or will any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments ever have a special priority or other right to use any portion of the project or 
asset to purchase or otherwise acquire any output of the project or asset such as electric power or water 
supply?  Yes   No 

5. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be granted or transferred to nongovernmental entities 
or granted or transferred to other governmental entities which will use the grant for 
nongovernmental* purposes?   Yes   No 

6. If you have answered "Yes" to any of the questions above, will your agency or any other state agency 
receive any payments from any entity, other than the state or one of its agencies or departments or 
any local government units, for the use of, or in connection with, the project or assets?   Yes   
No 

7. Will any portion of the project or asset, or rights to any portion of the project or asset, ever be sold to 
any entity other than the state or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

8. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be loaned to nongovernmental entities or loaned to 
other governmental entities that will use the loan for nongovernmental purposes?   Yes   No 

9. Will any portion of the project or asset be used to perform sponsored research under an agreement 
with a nongovernmental person, such a business corporation or the federal government, including 
any federal department or agency?   Yes   No 

*Nongovernmental purposes is defined in the Glossary and examples provided in Section 4.3 of the Capital 
Budget Instructions. 
 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and answers to 6, 7, and 8 are no, request tax 
exempt funding. 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and 6 is yes, request taxable funding from Fund 
355. 

 If the answer to all of questions 1 through 6 are no and the answer to either question 7 or 8 is yes, request 
taxable funding from Fund 355. 

 If the answer to question 9 is yes, please provide a detailed explanation of the terms of any and all of 
such sponsored research agreements. 

160



262 
 

Attach this form to your project in CBS.  The Office of the State Treasurer, bond counsel, or the Office of 
Financial Management may review this form for any projects requested in the budget. 
 

  

161



265 
 

Expected Use of Bond/COP Proceeds 

 
Agency No. 103 Agency Name Department of Commerce 
Contact Name: Cindy Chavez 
Phone: 725-3154 Fax: 586-8440 

Fund(s) Number: 057 Fund Name: 
State Building Construction 
Account 

Project Number: 92000021 Project Title: 
Temporary Public Works Grant 
Program 

 
1. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be owned by any entity other than the state or one of its 

agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

2. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be leased to any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

3. Will any portion of the project or asset ever be managed or operated by any entity other than the state 
or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

4. Does the project involve a public/private venture, or will any entity other than the state or one of its 
agencies or departments ever have a special priority or other right to use any portion of the project or 
asset to purchase or otherwise acquire any output of the project or asset such as electric power or water 
supply?  Yes   No 

5. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be granted or transferred to nongovernmental entities 
or granted or transferred to other governmental entities which will use the grant for 
nongovernmental* purposes?   Yes   No 

6. If you have answered "Yes" to any of the questions above, will your agency or any other state agency 
receive any payments from any entity, other than the state or one of its agencies or departments or 
any local government units, for the use of, or in connection with, the project or assets?   Yes   
No 

7. Will any portion of the project or asset, or rights to any portion of the project or asset, ever be sold to 
any entity other than the state or one of its agencies or departments?   Yes   No 

8. Will any portion of the Bond/COP proceeds be loaned to nongovernmental entities or loaned to 
other governmental entities that will use the loan for nongovernmental purposes?   Yes   No 

9. Will any portion of the project or asset be used to perform sponsored research under an agreement 
with a nongovernmental person, such a business corporation or the federal government, including 
any federal department or agency?   Yes   No 

*Nongovernmental purposes is defined in the Glossary and examples provided in Section 4.3 of the Capital 
Budget Instructions. 
 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and answers to 6, 7, and 8 are no, request tax 
exempt funding. 

 If the answer to any one of questions 1 through 5 is yes and 6 is yes, request taxable funding from Fund 
355. 

 If the answer to all of questions 1 through 6 are no and the answer to either question 7 or 8 is yes, request 
taxable funding from Fund 355. 

162



266 
 

 If the answer to question 9 is yes, please provide a detailed explanation of the terms of any and all of 
such sponsored research agreements. 

Attach this form to your project in CBS.  The Office of the State Treasurer, bond counsel, or the Office of 
Financial Management may review this form for any projects requested in the budget. 
 

  

163



393 

 

 

 

 

164



394 

 

  

165



395 

 

 

166



396 

 

  

167



397 

 

 

  

168

AnnC
Highlight

AnnC
Rectangle

AnnC
Sticky Note
Rejected set by AnnC



482 

 

 

  

169



483 

 

 

  

170



484 

 

 

  

171



495 

 

  

172



496 

 

  

173



497 

 

  

174



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE  PO Box 42525  Olympia, Washington 98504-2525  (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 
 

September 18, 2014 

 

 

 

David Schumacher 

Director, Office of Financial Management 

Post Office Box 43113 

Olympia, WA  98504-3113 

 

Re: Department of Commerce 2015-17 Operating Budget Request 

 

Dear Mr. Schumacher: 

 

On behalf of the Department of Commerce, I am pleased to present the 2015-17 Operating Budget 

request.  This request includes three maintenance level items to ensure continued key operations.  

Two items are to align revenue to expenditures and one for lease increases.  It also includes thirty 

policy level items that align with OFM’s 15% reduction request, Governor Inslee’s priorities under 

Results Washington, and Commerce’s mission, key goals and outcomes.   

 

In putting together our proposals, we have been very mindful of the limited funding available.  We 

have looked at our entire budget and made very tough decisions on reductions and eliminations to 

put forward with the hope that these will offset the essential additions we have requested.  None of 

this has been easy.  The reductions and eliminations put forward are all good programs; further, 

some reductions we had to put forward are still core to our mission, but there was no way to reach 

our 15% reduction target and offset our requests without including some level of cut to those 

programs.   

 

Again, all of the reductions and eliminations are not necessarily what we want to do, but in 

comparison to the other essential programs we are requesting we felt these were the right packages 

to put forward.  Within these constraints we are putting forward a set of budget and legislative 

packages that would move the state ahead by growing and improving jobs, implementing 

components of the State Energy Strategy, and supporting our businesses and communities.  These 

will be accomplished by funding the following packages:  Homeless School Children, Sector 

Economic Development, Tribal Economic Development Specialist, Foreign Direct Investment, 

Growth Management Plan Updates, Enterprise Regulatory Improvement, Community Economic 

Revitalization Board, and Public Works Board. 

 

 

 

 

175



 

David Schumacher 

September 18, 2014 

Page 2 

 

Thank you in advance for your consideration of our proposals.  We look forward to working with the 

Governor and the OFM team as you put together the statewide budget recommendation. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Brian Bonlender 

Director 

 

Enclosure 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

176



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Operating Budget 
 
 
Table of Contents ……………………………………………………………………………   1 
 

TAB A 
 
Organization Chart ……………………………………………………………………………   5 
 
Activity Inventory Report    ..….……………………………………………………………….   7 
 
Performance Measure Incremental Report   ……..…………………………………………  120 
 
Indirect Cost Allocation to Activity Description   ………………….…………………………  126 
 
Enterprise Risk Management Update   …..………………………………………………….  128 
 
Strategic Plan   …………………………………………………………………………………  130 
 
TAB B 
 
Recommendation Summary at Agency Level   ………………………….……………….…  144 
 
 
TAB C 
 
Decision Package Summary   ……………………..……………………….……………..….  154 
 
Maintenance Level Decision Packages 
 

M2-8L-Lease Rate Adjustments    ……..…..…..……….……………………..….…  156 
  

M2-9E: Other Fund Authority Adjustment   ……………….…….…..……..…..…… 160   
 

M2-90: Revenue Adjustments    …………………………………….…..…………… 166 
  
  
Policy Level Decision Packages  
  
 PL-N0: Homeless School Children ………………………………….………….……  168 
  

177



2 

 

 PL-N1: Sector Economic Development   …………..………………….………….…..  172 
 
 PL-N2: Tribal Economic Dev Specialist   ....……………….………….…………...….. 178 
    
 PL-N3:  Foreign Direct Investment   …………………………………………………..   182 
 

PL-N4: Growth Management Plan Updates  ..……………….…………………...….  186 
    
 PL-N5:  Enterprise Regulatory Improvement   ………………………………………..  192 
 
 PL-P0: Maximize Economic Dev Opportunities   ………….……..…….…………...... 196 
    
 PL-P1: PWAA Local Project Assistance   ………………………………….……..…..   202 
 

PL-P2: Transfer Dev Disability Council  . ..……..…………….…………………...….   208 
    
 PL-A0:  Eliminate Advanced Planning Grant   ………………………………………..   212 
 

PL-A1:  Reduce Communications and Outreach ……………………………………..  216 
 

PL-A2:  Reduce Local Govt Fiscal Note Prog     ……………………….……………..  220 
 
PL-A3:  Eliminate Evergreen Jobs Program        ……………………………………..  226 

 
PL-A4:  Eliminate Family Prosperity Account      ……………………………………..  230 

 
PL-A5:  Reduce NW Ag Business Center Funds   ….………………………………..  234 

 
PL-A6:  Reduce Walla Walla CC Env Center …….………… ………………………..  238 

 
PL-A7:  Reduce WA New Americans Program    ……………………………………..  242 

 
PL-A8:  Reduce Retired Senior Volunteer Prog   ……………………………………..  246 

 
PL-A9:  Reduce State Drug Task Forces    …………………………………………....  250 

 
PL-B0:  Reduce Associate Dev Org Funding   …….………………………………..     254 

 
PL-B1:  Reduce Dispute Resolution Centers  ..……………………………………….. 260 

 
PL-B2:  Reduce Homeless Assistance   …………….……..….……………………….. 264  

 
PL-B3:  Reduce Long Term Care Services   …...…..………………………………….. 268 

 
PL-B4:  Reduce Community Svcs Block Grant  ……………………………………….. 272 

 
PL-B5:  Reduce Victim/Witness Services……...……………………………………….. 276 

 
PL-B6:  Reduce Crime Victim Services ………..……………………………………….. 280 

178



3 

 

 
PL-B7:  Reduce Sexual Assault   …….. ……...………………………………………..  284 

 
PL-B8:  Reduce Domestic Violence Victim Svcs   …………..………………………..  288 

  
PL-B9:  Reduce Energy Office Funding   ……...…………………….…………….…..  292 
 
PL-C0:  Reduce Housing and Essential Needs   ..………..…………………………..  296 
 

 
TAB D 
 
Summarized Revenues     …………………………………….……………….……………....… 300 
 
Proposed Fee Changes     …………………………………….……………………………....… 306 
 
Working Capital Reserve    …………………………………….……………….……………..… 308 
 
Revenue Transfer Reconciliation Statement   ….…………….……………….…….….….....  310 
 
Federal Fund Estimate/State Match   ……………………….……………….……………....… 312 
 

Additional Federal Receipts Reporting     .………………….….……………….……….….....  316 
 

Non-Budgeted Local Fund Summary   …………….…………….……………….…………...   320 
 
Puget Sound Action Agenda   ……………………….……………………….……….…......…   322 
 

JLARC Audit Responses    .………………..…………………….……………….…………..…  324 
 

 
TAB E 
 

Electronic Decision Package Confirmation    ……………….……………….……………....… 328 
 
Central Services Model Fund Splits   ………………….…….……………….……………....… 330 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

179



7 

 

 

 

 

 

Department of Commerce 

Activity Number and Title 

 
Number Title 
A003  Community Services Block Grant 
A005  Developmental Disabilities Council and Endowment 
A007  Streamline Housing and Community Development 
A008  Services to Crime Victims 
A011  Strengthening Criminal Justice Response to Victims of Crime 
A012  Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program 
A013  Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program 
A019  Train and Maintain Volunteers, Supporting Community Capacity 
A025  Agency Administration 
A035  Community Economic Revitalization Board and Program 
A049  State Energy Policy 
A050  Broadband Capacity Building 
A064  Lead-Based Paint Hazard Mitigation 
A065  Improve and Preserve the Affordability of Housing 
A068  Mobile Home Relocation Assistance 
A092  Bond Cap Allocation Program for Tax Exempt Financing Authorization 
A096  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
A097  Community Mobilization Against Substance Abuse and Violence 
A100  Drinking Water System Grants and Loans 
A104  Growth Management 
A106  Local Government Fiscal Notes 
A113  Public Works Infrastructure Grants and Loans 
A153  Farm Worker Housing 
A157  Homeless Housing and Assistance 
A159  Affordable Housing Development 
A163  Business Development 
A167  Economic Development – Business Loans 
A168  Asset Building for Working Families 
A171  Global Trade and Investment Services 
A177  Criminal Justice Investments 
A179  New Americans 
A180  American Recovery Act Funding 
A181  HERA – Neighborhood Stabilization Program Housing and Economic 
                      Revitalization Act 
A182  Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) 
A183  Public Facilities District Independent Financial Feasibility Reviews 
A184  Sector Leads 
 

 

180



69 

 

  

ACT001 - Agency Activity Inventory by Agency Department of Commerce 

Appropriation Period: 2015-17   Activity Version: CL - 2015-17 Biennium Budget   Sort By: Activity 

002667 - Percentage of Local government Fiscal notes submitted that didn’t require a revision. Percent 

A113 Public Works Infrastructure Grants and Loans 

The Public Works Trust Fund provides loans for the repair, replacement, rehabilitation, and expansion 

of local infrastructure systems to ensure public health and safety, preserve the environment, promote 

economic sustainability, and ensure proper system performance.  In-depth technical assistance on 

funding acquisition, system management, and financial sustainability are provided by the Public Works 

Board staff (RCW 43 155.020). 

 181



70 

 

 

  

ACT001 - Agency Activity Inventory by Agency Department of Commerce 

Appropriation Period: 2015-17   Activity Version: CL - 2015-17 Biennium Budget   Sort By: Activity 

   Biennial Total               FY 2017               FY 2016   Account  

 FTE 

  3.4   3.4  State  3.4  058-1 

 058 Public Works Assistance Account 

 $389,628  $404,055  State $793,683  058-1 

Program 600 - Local Government and Infrastructure 
   Biennial Total               FY 2017               FY 2016   Account  

 058 Public Works Assistance Account 

 $30,000  $15,000  State $45,000  058-1 

Program 6A0 - Local Government and Infrastructure 
   Biennial Total               FY 2017               FY 2016   Account  

 FTE 

  0.1   0.0  Private/Local  0.1  001-7 
 FTE   10.8   11.1  State  11.0  058-1 

 11.0   11.1   10.9  FTE Total 

 001 General Fund 

 $0  $736,503  Private/Local $736,503  001-7 

 058 Public Works Assistance Account 

 $1,196,854  $1,140,307  State $2,337,161  058-1 

Prosperous Economy Statewide Result Area:  

Remove economic development barriers through targeted 

infrastructure and assistance 
Statewide Strategy: 

Expected Results 

Local governments have the resources needed to repair, replace, rehabilitate, upgrade or expand their 

infrastructure systems to ensure public health and safety, protect the environment, promote economic 

development, or to sustain their systems’ performance. 

 182



71 

 

 

 
  

    

 

ACT001 - Agency Activity Inventory by Agency Department of Commerce 

Appropriation Period: 2015-17   Activity Version: CL - 2015-17 Biennium Budget   Sort By: Activity 

001436 Number of construction related jobs sustained 
through Public Works infrastructure investments. 

 Biennium Period Actual Target 

 2013-15 1,436 Q8 

 1,436 Q7 

 1,436 Q6 

 1,436 Q5 

 492.25 1,436 Q4 

 390.4 1,436 Q3 

 910 1,436 Q2 

 355 1,436 Q1 

 1,285 2011-13 1,500 Q8 

 1,227 1,500 Q7 

 487 1,500 Q6 

 435 1,500 Q5 

 642 1,500 Q4 

 250 1,500 Q3 

 435 1,500 Q2 

 171 1,500 Q1 

Performance Measure Status: Approved 

 183



72 

 

  

ACT001 - Agency Activity Inventory by Agency Department of Commerce 

Appropriation Period: 2015-17   Activity Version: CL - 2015-17 Biennium Budget   Sort By: Activity 

001436 - Public Works construction related jobs Number 

 184



73 

 

  

ACT001 - Agency Activity Inventory by Agency Department of Commerce 

Appropriation Period: 2015-17   Activity Version: CL - 2015-17 Biennium Budget   Sort By: Activity 

001437 Percent of projects completed on time, as per contract 
(within scope of work). 

 Biennium Period Actual Target 

 2013-15 70% Q8 

 70% Q7 

 70% Q6 

 70% Q5 

 100% 70% Q4 

 70% Q3 

 50% 70% Q2 

 50% 70% Q1 

 33% 2011-13 70% Q8 

 100% 70% Q7 

 100% 70% Q6 

 33% 70% Q5 

 64% 70% Q4 

 75% 70% Q3 

 100% 70% Q2 

 38% 70% Q1 

Performance Measure Status: Approved 

001437 - Public Works projects completed on time Percent 

A153 Farm Worker Housing 

 185



122 

 

 
BASS - BDS033 State of Washington 

 Agency Performance Measure 

 Incremental Estimates for the Biennial Budget 
 

 Agency: 103  Department of Commerce                  Budget Period:  2015-17 

 

Process - Efficiency Measures 002667 Data is based upon the number of local government fiscal notes where OFM  

 asks for a revision of any kind divided by the total number of notes  

 distributed to the Legislature. 
                                                                                                                                                     FY 2016 FY 2017 

 PL A2 Reduce Local Govt Fiscal Note Prog                                        1.60%            0.00% 

 
 

 Activity: A113 Public Works Infrastructure Grants and Loans 
 
 Outcome Measures 001436 Number of construction related jobs sustained through Public Works  

 infrastructure investments. 
                                                                                                                                                     FY 2016 FY 2017 

 PL P1 PWAA Local Project Assistance                                              4,000.00         6,000.00 
 
 
 Output Measures 001437 Percent of projects completed on time, as per contract (within scope of  

     work). 
                                                                                                                                                     FY 2016 FY 2017 

 PL P1 PWAA Local Project Assistance                                              50.00%         40.00% 

 
 

 Activity: A157 Homeless Housing and Assistance 
 

 Outcome Measures 001245 Percent of households exiting to permanent housing. 
 
                                                                                                                                                     FY 2016 FY 2017 

 PL N0 Homeless School Children                                                        80.00%          85.00% 
 

 Outcome Measures 002630 The annual count of people who are homeless is organized by local  

 governments in coordination with the state during third week of every  

 January, and is required under federal and state laws.  This is one of  

 several measures of homeless housing efforts. 

                                                                                                                                                     FY 2016 FY 2017 

 PL C0 Reduce Housing and Essential Needs                                       580.00           580.00 
 

 Output Measures 002629 The number of total individuals (including singles and people in families) in  

 the quarter receiving short-term housing assistance (in the form of rent,  

 shelter and/or other services) to ensure their homelessness is rare, brief and  

 non-recurring. 
                                                                                                                                                     FY 2016 FY 2017 

 PL C0 Reduce Housing and Essential Needs                                      (580.00)         (580.00) 

 
 

 Activity: A163 Business Development 

 PL A1 Reduce Communications and Outreach                       No measures linked to decision package 

 PL A5 Reduce NW Ag Business Center Funds                       No measures linked to decision package 

 PL N5 Enterprise Regulatory Improvement                            No measures linked to decision package 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

186



1
2

6
 

 

 
   

Activity Activity Name % Allocation

Dollars 

Allocated 

FY16

Dollars 

Allocated

 FY17

Total Dollars

 Allocated

 Biennium

A003 Community Services Block Grant 5.3% 360,782                        341,435                        702,217                        

A005 Developmental Disabilities Council and Endowment 1.9% 127,360                        127,360                        254,720                        

A007 Streamline Housing and Community Development 0.8% 34,636                          65,074                          99,710                          

A008 Services to Crime Victims 3.7% 243,715                        242,762                        486,477                        

A011 Strengthening Criminal Justice 2.6% 176,209                        166,396                        342,605                        

A013 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program 2.9% 172,515                        210,637                        383,152                        

A019 Train and Maintain Volunteers Supporting Community Capacity 2.5% 166,081                        166,081                        332,162                        

A025 Agency Administration 2.6% 177,069                        168,307                        345,376                        

A035 Community Economic Revitalization Board and Program 1.3% 74,263                          95,550                          169,813                        

A049 State Energy Policy 4.8% 299,689                        331,990                        631,679                        

A050 Broadband Capacity Building 1.3% 128,675                        42,175                          170,850                        

A064 Lead-Based Paint Hazard Mitigation 2.1% 174,838                        97,925                          272,763                        

A065 Improve and Preserve the Affordability of Housing 5.9% 324,225                        460,548                        784,773                        

A068 Mobile Home Relocation Assistance 0.3% 25,156                          18,541                          43,697                          

A092 Bond Cap Allocation Program for Tax Exempt Financing Authorization 0.5% 31,400                          31,400                          62,800                          

A096 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 3.9% 258,721                        263,339                        522,060                        

A100 Drinking Water System Grants and Loans 0.3% 42,771                          -                                 42,771                          

A104 Growth Management 5.9% 392,337                        394,264                        786,601                        

A106 Local Government Fiscal Notes 1.2% 75,731                          77,522                          153,253                        

A113 Public Works Infrastructure Grants and Loans 5.1% 326,675                        352,146                        678,821                        

A157 Homeless Housing and Assistance 7.1% 470,515                        478,017                        948,532                        

A159 Affordable Housing Development 11.7% 734,754                        816,682                        1,551,436                    

A163 Business Development 7.0% 496,179                        435,423                        931,602                        

A167 Economic Development - Business Loans 0.4% 18,756                          28,068                          46,824                          

A171 Global Trade and Investment Services 4.4% 291,447                        291,721                        583,168                        

A175 Washington Economic Development Commission 0.1% 13,334                          -                                 13,334                          

A177 Criminal Justice Investments 1.3% 82,310                          90,112                          172,422                        

A179 New Americans 0.0% 2,108                             4,217                             6,325                             

A180 American Recovery Act Funding 0.1% 12,553                          6,015                             18,568                          

A182 Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) 1.3% 90,367                          80,189                          170,556                        

A183 Public Facilities District Independent Financial Feasibility Reviews 0.0% 2,237                             1,740                             3,977                             

A184 Sector Lead 2.0% 103,015                        158,603                        261,618                        

Non-Appropriated Non Budget 0.1% -                                 11,088                          11,088                          

Capital Budget 9.8% 708,760                        595,764                        1,304,524                    

Total 100.0% 6,639,183                    6,651,091                    13,290,274                  

Department of Commerce
Activity Inventory Indirect Cost Allocation Approach

Allocation Method Description: Total Indirect costs are allocated to activities based on Salaries and Benefits in each activity. (Data shown is allotment information 

through Operating Legislative Allotment Reductions packet, July 10, 2014).

187



 

144 

 

BASS - BDS024 State of Washington 

 Recommendation Summary 

 

Agency: 103 Department of Commerce  5:03:24PM 
 
 9/16/2014 

Dollars in Thousands Annual  General 

 Average FTEs Fund State Other Funds Total Funds 
2013-15 Current Biennium Total  274.0   126,940   392,862   519,802  

 

 CL CF Carry Forward Level (5.0)  663  (3,046) (2,383) 
 

 Total Carry Forward Level  269.0   127,603   389,816   517,419  

 Percent Change from Current Biennium (1.8)%  .5% (.8)% (.5)% 

 
 
Carry Forward plus Workload Changes  269.0   127,603   389,816   517,419  
 Percent Change from Current Biennium  (1.8)%  .5% (.8)% (.5)% 

 
 M2 8L Lease Rate Adjustments  140   315   455  

 M2 90 Maintenance Level Revenue 

 M2 9E Other Fund Adjustments (38,651) (38,651) 

 

Total Maintenance Level  269.0   127,743   351,480   479,223  

 Percent Change from Current Biennium (1.8)%  .6% (10.5)% (7.8)% 

 
 PL A0 Eliminate Advanced Planning Grant (0.3) (2,500) (2,500) 

 PL A1 Reduce Communications and Outreach (0.6) (132) (132) 

 PL A2 Reduce Local Govt Fiscal Note Prog (0.1) (24) (24) 

 PL A3 Eliminate Evergreen Jobs Program (0.1) (27) (27) 

 PL A4 Eliminate Family Prosperity Account (467) (467) 

 PL A5 Reduce NW Ag Business Center Funds (281) (281) 

 PL A6 Reduce Walla Walla CC Env Center (600) (600) 

 PL A7 Reduce WA New Americans Program (0.2) (634) (634) 

 PL A8 Reduce Retired Senior Volunteer Pro (92) (92) 

 PL A9 Reduce State Drug Task Forces (192) (192) 

 PL B0 Reduce Associate Dev Org Funding (295) (295) 

 PL B1 Reduce Dispute Resolution Centers (151) (151) 

 PL B2 Reduce Homeless Assistance (1,130) (1,130) 

 PL B3 Reduce Long Term Care Services (222) (222) 

 PL B4 Reduce Community Svcs Block Grant (0.1) (336) (336) 

 PL B5 Reduce Victim/Witness Services (0.4) (448) (448) 

 PL B6 Reduce Crime Victim Services (0.1) (134) (134) 

 PL B7 Reduce Sexual Assault Services (0.8) (2,327) (2,327) 

 PL B8 Reduce Domestic Violence Victim Svc (0.2) (296) (296) 

 PL B9 Reduce Energy Office Funding (0.3) (99) (99) 

 PL C0 Reduce Housing and Essential Needs (0.1) (7,497) (7,497) 

 PL N0 Homeless School Children  15,000   15,000  

  
 

 

 

188



 

145 

 

BASS - BDS024 State of Washington 

 Recommendation Summary 

 

Agency: 103 Department of Commerce  5:03:24PM 
 
 9/16/2014 

Dollars in Thousands Annual  General 

 Average FTEs Fund State Other Funds Total Funds 

 

      PL N1 Sector Economic Development  2.0   514   200   714  

 PL N2 Tribal Economic Dev Specialist  1.1   308   308  

 PL N3 Foreign Direct Investment  250   250  

 PL N4 Growth Management Plan Updates  6.7   3,050   3,050  

      PL N5 Enterprise Regulatory Improvement  0.5   150   150  

 PL P0 Maximize Economic Dev Opportunities  2.2   598   598  

 PL P1 PWAA Local Project Assistance  3.4   794   794  

 PL P2 Transfer Dev Disabilities Council (10.0) (114) (3,218) (3,332) 

 

Subtotal - Performance Level Changes  2.6   1,274  (1,626) (352) 

 
2015-17 Total Proposed Budget  271.6   129,017   349,854   478,871  
 Percent Change from Current Biennium (.9)%  1.6% (10.9)% (7.9)% 
 
 
 

  
M2 8L Lease Rate Adjustments 

 

The Department of Commerce leases space in Thurston County (Olympia Town Square) and Seattle (Westin 26th and 27th 

floor). The lease costs for these two buildings will increase in the next biennium. In order to maintain the Department of 

Commerce's operations without interruption, the department will need to fulfill these lease requirements. 

  
M2 90 Maintenance Level Revenue 

 

Summary of agency revenue at maintenance level. 

 
  
M2 9E Other Fund Adjustments 

 

Commerce is requesting expenditure authority adjustments for the 2015-17 biennium for several accounts to reflect available  

revenue. 

  
PL A0 Eliminate Advanced Planning Grant 

 

To satisfy OFM's 15 percent agencywide reduction target, this proposal eliminates funding for advanced planning grants.  

Advanced planning grants have supported environmental permitting activities around manufacturing for aerospace and other 

key economic growth centers. Elimination of this funding creates additional available state funding that could be used to 

reduce the impacts of budgetary reductions to other services that are imperative to meet the Department of Commerce's goals 

and outcomes to better serve the citizens of Washington. 

  

  
 
 
 
 

189



 

152 

 

BASS - BDS024 State of Washington 

 Recommendation Summary 

 

Agency: 103 Department of Commerce  5:03:24PM 
 
 9/16/2014 

Dollars in Thousands Annual  General 

 Average FTEs Fund State Other Funds Total Funds 
 
PL P0 Maximize Economic Dev Opportunities 

 

The Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) is Washington's premier rapid response to business siting and 

expansion needs. This is accomplished by staying abreast of emerging opportunities then encouraging the use of CERB funds 

by local communities to make the opportunity a reality.  CERB has worked in partnership with the Department of 

Commerce's Business Services Division (BSD) staff to identify qualified projects.  Starting in 2009, BSD staff was reduced 

from nine down to zero in the 2013-15 biennium.  For CERB to fulfill its legislative mandate, it is imperative that more staff 

be retained to facilitate communities' business development efforts. 

  
PL P1 PWAA Local Project Assistance 

 

The Public Works Board is established to enhance local governments' ability to manage and finance their infrastructure 

systems by providing easy access to resources, training opportunities, collaboration and coordination with funding partners 

and provide hands on assistance with project development and developing new resources.  This proposal will assist 200 local 

governments and special purpose districts statewide to improve local knowledge of sound business practices, financing 

options, management approaches, and accountability/performance measurement extending the useful lives of infrastructure 

systems, reducing operating and capital costs, and providing residents with highly effective and accountable government 

systems. 

  
PL P2 Transfer Dev Disabilities Council 

 

This proposal transfers the Developmental Disabilities Council (DDC) and the Developmental Disabilities Endowment Trust 

Fund (DDETF) from the Department of Commerce into an independent office called the Office of Developmental 

Disabilities Council and Endowment Governing Board (Office)
1
. 

 

The Office will be established in a new Chapter of Title 43 in state law, becoming the "designated state agency" to fulfill  

Washington's obligations under federal law.  Draft legislation is being proposed.  

 

The DDC and the DDETF will contract with the Small Agency Services to support human resources, budget, fiscal and 

payroll  functions.  IT and related services will be contracted for directly. 

 

 

 

 

  

190



 

154 

 

 BASS - BDS031 State of Washington 

 Agency Budget Request Decision Package Summary 
 
 (Lists only the agency Performance Level budget decision packages, in priority order) 

 

Agency:  103  Department of Commerce                                                                                       9/16/2014 

                                                                                                                                                                                       5:15:53PM     
 

Budget Period: 2015-17 

 

 Decision Package 

 Code Decision Package Title 
 
 

 PL-N0 Homeless School Children 

 PL-N1 Sector Economic Development 

 PL-N2 Tribal Economic Dev Specialist 

 PL-N3 Foreign Direct Investment 

 PL-N4 Growth Management Plan Updates 

 PL-N5 Enterprise Regulatory Improvement 

 PL-P0 Maximize Economic Dev Opportunities 

 PL-P1 PWAA Local Project Assistance 

 PL-P2 Transfer Dev Disabilities Council 

 PL-A0 Eliminate Advanced Planning Grant 

 PL-A1 Reduce Communications and Outreach 

 PL-A2 Reduce Local Govt Fiscal Note Prog 

 PL-A3 Eliminate Evergreen Jobs Program 

 PL-A4 Eliminate Family Prosperity Account 

 PL-A5 Reduce NW Ag Business Center Funds 

 PL-A6 Reduce Walla Walla CC Env Center 

 PL-A7 Reduce WA New Americans Program 

 PL-A8 Reduce Retired Senior Volunteer Pro 

 PL-A9 Reduce State Drug Task Forces 

 PL-B0 Reduce Associate Dev Org Funding 

 PL-B1 Reduce Dispute Resolution Centers 

 PL-B2 Reduce Homeless Assistance 

 PL-B3 Reduce Long Term Care Services 

 PL-B4 Reduce Community Svcs Block Grant 

 PL-B5 Reduce Victim/Witness Services 

 PL-B6 Reduce Crime Victim Services 

 PL-B7 Reduce Sexual Assault Services 

 PL-B8 Reduce Domestic Violence Victim Svc 

 PL-B9 Reduce Energy Office Funding 

 PL-C0 Reduce Housing and Essential Needs 

  

191



 

202 

 

 

FINAL 

Agency:    103  Department of Commerce 
Decision Package Code/Title: P1 PWAA Local Project Assistance  

Budget Period:   2015-17 

Budget Level:    PL-Performance Level 
 

Recommendation Summary Text: 
  
The Public Works Board is established to enhance local governments’ ability to manage and finance their 

infrastructure systems by providing easy access to resources, training opportunities, collaboration and 

coordination with funding partners and provide hands on assistance with project development and developing new 

resources.  This proposal will assist 200 local governments and special purpose districts statewide to improve 

local knowledge of sound business practices, financing options, management approaches, and 

accountability/performance measurement extending the useful lives of infrastructure systems, reducing operating 

and capital costs, and providing residents with highly effective and accountable government systems.  

 

Fiscal Detail  

 

Operating Expenditures FY 2016 FY 2017 Total

058-1 Public Works Asst Acct 404,055 389,628 793,683

Total Cost 404,055 389,628 793,683

Staffing FY 2016 FY 2017 Annual Avg

FTEs 3.4 3.4 3.4

 
 

 
Package Description: 
 

Background 

 

Communities in Washington State are dealing with aging, deteriorated infrastructure that is overdue for 

replacement.  The 2013 Report Card for Washington’s Infrastructure (conducted by the Seattle Section of the 

American Society of Civil Engineers) finds that overall, Washington State receives a cumulative grade of C for 

addressing the need to repair and replace these systems, and provide the funding to assist local governments in 

paying for the repairs and replacements.  The Report Card concludes that a lack of planned, guaranteed funding 

and inadequate maintenance are reported across all categories of infrastructure: aviation, bridges, dams, drinking 

water, rail, roads, schools, solid and hazardous waste, and transit.   

 

State and federal funding for infrastructure is decreasing but the needs are increasing. In FY 2013, the Public 

Works Board (PWB) received more than 300 applications for over $1.0 billion in loan requests.  This is especially 

revealing as to the need in that these are loan requests, not grant requests.  Ultimately, funding for these projects 

was used for funding educational services rather than infrastructure improvements per legislative directive.  In 

each of the past three years, we were only able to fund a combined total of 51 percent of funding requests received 

for the four largest state administered infrastructure funding programs for local governments (Drinking Water 

State Revolving Fund, Clean Water State Revolving Fund, Public Works Assistance Account, and Transportation 

Improvement Board).   

 

State of Washington 

Decision Package  
 

192



 

203 

 

The unfunded applicants (49 percent) either did not score high enough to be included on the funding list because 

their capacity to manage the project was too low or their ability to pay back the loan was too risky.  Many of these 

projects did not have a public health and safety component that would have elevated their scores or they failed to 

meet all the requirements for the agency’s funding.  The need for infrastructure assistance still exists for these 

jurisdictions.  Technical assistance by the PWB staff provides project applicants the necessary support to be 

competitive for future funding opportunities and to find additional resources. 

 

Current Situation  
 

The enabling Legislation, RCW 43.155.010 states that “It is the policy of the state of Washington to encourage 

self-reliance by local governments in meeting their public works needs and to assist in the financing of critical 

public works projects by making loans, financing guarantees, and technical assistance available to local 

governments…”  The statute further defines technical assistance as:  “…training and other services provided to 

local governments to:  (a) help such local governments plan, apply, and qualify for loans and financing guarantees 

from the board, and (b) help local governments improve their ability to plan for, finance, acquire, construct, 

repair, replace, rehabilitate, and maintain public facilities.” 

 

In response to significantly decreased state and federal funding alternatives, combined with a rise in need, the 

PWB authorized an increased focus on technical assistance to local governments.  The PWB assists local 

governments to develop and implement priority infrastructure projects in a number of ways:  1) training and 

education to help build community capacity to undertake projects and implement best management and financial 

practices; 2) helping communities to access both financial and non-financial resources needed to complete the 

project; 3) assisting communities in developing sustainable projects; and 4) coordinating and collaborating with 

federal and state funding partners and nonprofit resource organizations to provide the best services possible. 

 

Washington’s infrastructure construction funding programs place high priority on projects that are “shovel-

ready.”  While both the Departments of Health and Ecology offer limited pre-construction funding, the amount of 

pre-construction funding has been dramatically reduced in recent years.  The PWB’s technical assistance services 

help communities prepare for funding by organizing “Technical Assistance Teams” which provide communities 

with enhanced access to information about funding options and strategies to make their projects ready to proceed, 

and increases the likelihood of funding. 

 

Proposed Solution  
 

If this proposal is funded, the PWB will be positioned to assist over 750 local government staff from over 200 

jurisdictions.  Priorities for technical assistance will be made in the following areas: 

1. Making significant improvements in the financial management and general business practices of the local 

governments; 

2. Assisting communities to access the information needed to implement high priority infrastructure 

projects by being the “first stop” in their funding search and coordinating technical assistance options 

needed to access the best available funding options;  

3. Providing training and education to local governments to plan and implement high priority projects, 

incorporating best financial and business management practices, and establishing local finance 

mechanisms; 

4. Ensuring that local government’s priority projects are ready to take advantage of funding opportunities 

offered through the state’s infrastructure financing system.   

 

Division Budget Coordinator: Cindy Chavez, 360-725-3154 

Agency Subject Matter Expert: Bruce Lund, 360-725-3163 

 

Narrative Justification and Impact Statement: 
 

193



 

204 

 

What specific performance outcomes does the agency expect?   
 

At least 250 staff from 100 local governments will be trained on best practices for financial and operational 

management.  Training and materials will be produced that will assist local governments with setting effective 

rate structures, developing local financing mechanisms, and effectively managing their assets.   

 

All local governments requesting assistance will be referred to resources that the PWB has developed, or partners 

have available.  The PWB expects that over 500 communities will take advantage of its FirstStop Initiative.  The 

Board will manage and offer a referral service for infrastructure funding, training and related services.  A core 

component is an online searchable catalogue of information that will point the user to a variety of resources.  Staff 

will be available to answer questions, convene technical assistance meetings among potential funders, regulators, 

and other project stakeholders. 

 

At least 75 local governments will receive project development assistance over the biennium.  The PWB intends 

to position these local governments’ priority projects to take advantage of all available federal, state and local 

resources. 

 

This decision package will increase Commerce’s ability to meet our mission to grow and improve jobs in 

Washington State by championing thriving communities, a prosperous economy and a sustainable infrastructure 

and our key goal: Reliable and Sustainable Infrastructure and the associated outcome: Build and Maintain Local 

Capacity.  The PWB’s technical assistance strategy also addresses providing comprehensive, customer focused 

technical assistance to local governments that builds capacity to carry out priority projects.   

 
Performance Measure Detail 
 
Agency Activity Code: A113  

Agency Activity Title:  Public Works Infrastructure Grants and Loans 
            Incremental Changes 

          

         FY 2016  FY2017 

 

 

Output Measures 
001436  Number of construction related jobs sustained  

through Public Works infrastructure investments    4,000  6,000 

 

 

Efficiency Measures 
001437  Percent of projects completed on time, as per 

contract (within scope of work).     50%  60% 

       

Is this DP essential to implement a strategy identified in the agency’s strategic plan?  
 

This will increase Commerce’s ability to meet our key goal: Reliable and Sustainable Infrastructure and the 

associated outcome: Build and Maintain Local Capacity.  Local Government’s ability to offer adequate 

infrastructure (such as roads that move goods, healthy drinking water, and effective wastewater disposal) is vital 

to accommodate allocated growth and enable economic development and business opportunities, while also 

maintaining the quality of life.  This decision package directly enhances the ability of local government to provide 

these services as they are becoming increasingly expensive and complex to build and maintain.  This is especially 

found in rural areas, where fewer people and larger distances to convey infrastructure equates to more expensive 

projects, on a per capita basis.  This decision package addresses the issues found in many of these smaller 

communities as they increasingly struggle to fund basic infrastructure for its residents in their existing 

infrastructure because of lack of technical support. 

 

194



 

205 

 

Does this decision package provide essential support to one or more of the Governor’s Results 

Washington priorities?  
 

This decision package supports the Results Washington Goal 2: Prosperous Economy, specifically contributing to 

the reliable infrastructure outcome 3.1.  The mission of the PWB is to provide financial and technical assistance to 

Washington communities for critical public health, safety, and environmental infrastructure that supports 

community and economic vitality. 

 

This decision package supports the Results Washington Goal 3: Sustainable Energy and a Clean Environment. 

RCW 70.235.070 requires the PWB to consider, when awarding loan funds, whether the entity receiving funds 

has adopted policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and whether the project proposed for funding is 

consistent with Washington’s limits on greenhouse gas goals to reduce vehicle miles traveled, and applicable 

federal emissions reduction standards. The PWB’s staff assists jurisdictions with crafting such policies as well as 

interpreting this requirement. 

 

What are the other important connections or impacts related to this proposal?   
 

The PWB has strong support from its stakeholders and funding partners.  The PWB’s technical assistance effort 

does not replicate or compete with offerings provided by stakeholders and partners, but supplements these 

existing offerings to make our state stronger and more able to meet our obligations to provide citizens with critical 

public health, safety, and environmental infrastructure that supports community and economic vitality. 

 

What alternatives were explored by the agency and why was this alternative chosen?   
 

During the original design of the PWB service structure, extensive conversations were held with organizations 

and other state agencies.  None had resources to address the needs in this specific technical assistance arena.  The 

PWB considered not offering technical assistance services, but this appeared to the PWB as it would not be 

fulfilling its legislative commitments, and would ultimately negatively impact the quality of projects funded by 

the PWB and its funding partners.  Additionally, many local governments have not been planning adequately to 

be able to reinvest their own resources into deteriorated infrastructure. By connecting local governments to 

existing training and developing additional training and resources on subjects such as: asset management, capital 

facility planning, rate setting, bonding, best practices in managing infrastructure systems as well as providing 

resources and hands-on assistance, local governments will be better positioned to maintain their systems and to 

successfully obtain funding for their infrastructure projects. 

 

The PWB ultimately chose this set of services because of its commitment to develop a concerted effort to assist 

local governments with their management and financial capacity.  The PWB also wants to ensure that its 

programs fund high quality projects that address local needs. 

 

 

 

What are the consequences of not funding this package?  Or if this is a reduction package, what are 

the consequences of adopting this package? 
 

Local governments needing assistance will not be as competitive for funding as they would be by having PWB 

assistance.  As a result, their infrastructure maintenance and replacement issues will become more critical and 

more expensive which may impact the health and safety of local communities. 

 

What is the relationship, if any, to the state capital budget? 
 

195



 

206 

 

This request is central to the management of the capital budget associated with 058, Public Works Assistance 

Account (PWAA). Account 058 – PWAA is the resource base used to finance key local projects.  RCW 43.155 

directs this capital investment and it requires the PWB to provide technical assistance to local governments.   
 

What changes would be required to existing statutes, rules, or contracts, in order to implement the 

change?   
 
None. 
 
Expenditure and revenue calculations and assumptions 
 

Expenditures: 

 

This package requests funding for staff costs of $389,628 per year for 3.0 Commerce Specialist 3 as well as 0.35 

associated indirect FTEs to serve as lead staff for specific areas of responsibility.  One will coordinate the Board’s 

Training and Education Program.  Another will lead the Board’s FirstStop Initiative (online resource center), and 

another will be responsible for Project Development Coordination.  In addition, each FTE will be responsible for 

serving as the point of contact on behalf of the PWB for specific regions around the state.  These costs include 

$15,000 for conference registrations and exhibitor costs and related expenses in order to market the Board’s 

resources and services and provide visibility and networking with local governments and special purpose districts 

and travel costs.  

It also includes one-time costs for staff equipment of $14,427. 

 

Which costs or savings and functions are one-time?  Which are ongoing?  What are the budget 

impacts in future biennia?  
 

In FY16 there are one-time cost for 3.0 FTEs in capital outlays for standard office setup ($4,809 ea. x 3 FTEs = 

$14,427). All remaining costs of $389,628 are ongoing. 

 

Object Detail FY 2016 FY 2017 Total

A Salaries and Wages 194,220 194,220 388,440

B Employee Benefits 57,743 57,743 115,486

C Personal Service Contracts 0 0 0

E Goods and Services 117,177 117,177 234,354

G Travel 20,488 20,488 40,976

J Capital Outlays 14,427 14,427

T Intra-Agency Reimbursements

Total Objects 404,055 389,628 793,683  
 

  

196



 

300 

 

 

  

197



 

301 

 

 

198



 

310 

 

 

 

  

  

Fis
ca

l Y
ea

r
Am

ou
nt

So
ur

ce
 0

6-
22

 T
ra

ns
fe

r O
ut

So
ur

ce
 0

6-
21

 T
ra

ns
fe

r I
n

Pu
rp

os
e

20
16

$4
,4

00
,0

00
 

05
8 

Pu
bl

ic 
W

or
ks

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 A

cc
ou

nt
04

R 
Dr

in
kin

g W
at

er
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

 A
cc

ou
nt

Es
tim

at
e 

m
at

ch
 fo

r E
PA

 D
rin

kin
g W

at
er

 G
ra

nt

20
17

$4
,4

00
,0

00
 

05
8 

Pu
bl

ic 
W

or
ks

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 A

cc
ou

nt
04

R 
Dr

in
kin

g W
at

er
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

 A
cc

ou
nt

Es
tim

at
e 

m
at

ch
 fo

r E
PA

 D
rin

kin
g W

at
er

 G
ra

nt

20
16

$6
,0

00
,0

00
 

05
8 

Pu
bl

ic 
W

or
ks

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 A

cc
ou

nt

72
7 

W
at

er
 P

ol
lu

tio
n 

Co
nt

ro
l R

ev
ol

vin
g 

Ac
co

un
t

St
at

e 
M

at
ch

 fo
r E

co
lo

gy
 W

at
er

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
Co

nt
ro

l

20
17

$6
,0

00
,0

00
 

05
8 

Pu
bl

ic 
W

or
ks

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
 A

cc
ou

nt

72
7 

W
at

er
 P

ol
lu

tio
n 

Co
nt

ro
l R

ev
ol

vin
g 

Ac
co

un
t

St
at

e 
M

at
ch

 fo
r E

co
lo

gy
 W

at
er

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
Co

nt
ro

l

20
16

$7
,5

00
,0

00
 

10
B 

Ho
m

e 
Se

cu
rit

y F
un

d 
Ac

co
un

t

15
A 

Tr
an

sit
io

na
l h

ou
sin

g o
pe

ra
tin

g a
nd

 

re
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

Es
tim

at
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 2
01

3-
15

 b
ie

nn
iu

m
 Le

gis
la

tu
re

 a
ut

ho
riz

es
 

tra
ns

fe
r f

or
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

al
 h

ou
sin

g a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r p
ar

tia
l 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r r

en
ta

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 p

ro
gr

am

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
om

m
er

ce
20

15
-1

7 
R

ev
en

ue
 T

ra
ns

fe
r 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
St

at
em

en
t

199



 

330 

 

 

 

 

**Updates based on 2014 expenditures through June close and consideration of dedicated funds no longer available for the 

2015-17 biennium.  

Fund AppType Fund Title Percent

001 1 General Fund 35.92%

001 2 General Fund 25.14%

001 7 General Fund 9.90%

04R 1 Drinking Water Assistance Account 1.64%

058 1 Public Works Assistance Account 5.22%

05R 1 Drinking Water Assistance Admin 0.65%

06K 1 Lead Paint Account 0.32%

10B 1 Home Security Fund Account 5.62%

12C 1 Affordable Housing for All Account 0.60%

150 1 Low-Income Weather/Struct Rehab Asst Acc 0.47%

15A 6 Transitional Housing Operating & Rent Ac 0.05%

174 1 Local Toxics Control Account 0.04%

17L 6 Foreclosure Fairness Account 2.47%

205 6 Mobile Home Park Relocation Account 0.34%

263 1 Community/Economic Development Fee 2.17%

501 1 Liquor Revolving Account 0.12%

532 1 Washington Housing Trust Account 7.75%

887 1 Public Facility Const Loan Revolv 1.58%

Total 100.00%

Department of Commerce
2015-17 Central Services Model Fund Splits

200


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	A-7 - 000 9-2-14 multi-program funding program summary (3).pdf
	Summary of Some Grant and Loan Programs
	for Drinking Water and Wastewater Projects
	Updated 9-2-14
	Please contact Cathi Read at cathi.read@commerce.wa.gov if you would like to update your program information
	or if you would like an electronic copy of this document.
	PLANNING
	Eligible Projects
	Eligible Projects
	Eligible Projects
	EMERGENCY

	A-7 - 000 9-2-14 multi-program funding program summary (3).pdf
	Summary of Some Grant and Loan Programs
	for Drinking Water and Wastewater Projects
	Updated 9-2-14
	Please contact Cathi Read at cathi.read@commerce.wa.gov if you would like to update your program information
	or if you would like an electronic copy of this document.
	PLANNING
	Eligible Projects
	Eligible Projects
	Eligible Projects
	EMERGENCY

	Blank Page
	B-1 - ESC Sustainable Infrastructure Contract Memo.pdf
	At the August 8, 2014 board meeting, you approved a request from the Center for Sustainable Infrastructure to co-sponsor a report that addresses the need for sustainable infrastructure approaches.  I am pleased to let you know that we have entered int...
	The contract is attached for your information.  Per the Board’s direction, flexibility as to the board’s involvement in marketing the report is written into the contract.  The Board has discretion to the extent of this involvement depending on the out...

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	B-2 - UTC Cristalina findings_PWB memo_20141002.pdf
	FROM:  Mark Barkley, Contracts Administration Unit, Managing Director
	SUBJECT: Cristalina LLC
	ISSUE:  Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (UTC) issued the following order on September 12, 2014 regarding Cristalina, LLC with the following judgments:
	1. Commission approves the transfer of assets of Cristalina LLC to Washington Water Service Company.
	2. Withdraw of penalties assessed against Maria Lindberg.
	3. Withdraw of penalties assessed against Cristalina, LLC.
	4. Assess a fine against Maria Lindberg in the amount of $12,700 to be paid over 3 years.
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	1. UTC staff is currently working the written order based on the decisions above.
	2. CAU staff expects to receive the UTC order in the next 1-2 weeks.
	3. CAU staff will present to the December PWB meeting the following actions contingent on the final UTC order being issued.
	a. A recommendation to the PWB to approve the assignment of DP09-952-034 to Washington Water.
	b. A recommendation to the PWB to waive all late fees associated with Cristalina LLC; Washington Water has agreed to make current the outstanding balance (both 2013 and 2014 payments) on DP09-952-034.
	c. Provide additional updates as necessary to Public Works Board meeting set for December 5, 2014.

	C-2b - ESSHB 1484.pdf
	Section 1.
	Section 2.
	Section 3.
	Section 4.
	Section 5.
	Section 6.
	Section 7.
	Section 8.
	Section 9.
	Section 10.
	Section 11.

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	D-2 - TA Update Memo.pdf
	Background
	Beginning with the August 2014 Board meeting, an update on activities and services provided by the Public Works Board technical assistance staff will be a part of each agenda.  This report is not meant to be exhaustive, rather to give Board members a ...
	Significant client services provided / problems resolved
	 Belfair Water District – resolved Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) coordination issue
	 City of Toppenish – resolved concerns that city had over retaining a Dedicated Repayment Account to comply with DWSRF contract conditions
	 Executive Order 05-05 – Have completed 29 Executive Order 05-05 (i.e., cultural resources contract compliance) reviews since June 1, 2014 and completed approx. 50 reconciliations between databases.
	 Preparation of the 2014 Drinking Water Handbook
	 Lead and participate in IACC Tech Teams on September 30th
	Communication to clients
	 Post-Recommended PWAA loan list work -- Application debrief offers made to PWTF applicants, contacts made to those recommended for funding t to confirm scopes of work, budgets, timing, etc., Cultural Resource compliance documents sent to loan list r...
	 Mountlake Terrace – Program orientation
	 Communication to all recommended loan list recipients encouraging them to apply for DWSRF and SRF programs
	 Site visits to Lake Forest Park, Cities of Olympia, Hoquiam, Aberdeen Lakewood, Tacoma, Tumwater, Gig Harbor, and Crystal Springs Water District
	 Attended Fall conferences of the Washington Finance Officers Association, WA Sewer and Water District’s Association, Public Utilities District Association (Water Workshop), Association of Washington Cities
	 Distributed Fall newsletter to over 2500 recipients
	Training and Education
	 Provided PWeB trainings to PWB clients
	 Continued work on the Olympic-Kitsap Academy
	 Sent training survey to over 800 local government
	 Developed material for exhibit booth for Fall 2014 conferences.
	 Conducted Funding Webinar
	Program Coordination
	 Conducted two in-depth meetings with staff from the Dept. of Health, the CAU and the Public Works Board to determine the 2014 DWSRF fall loan cycle.
	 IACC Conference tech team, exhibit booth, and session preparation
	 Led development of a Commerce internal resource coordination group aimed at streamlining and improving technical assistance services provided by the agency
	 Participated on a Community Development Block Grant Rating and Selection process, and provided TA to local government CDBG recipients about additional funding opportunities.

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	B-2 - UTC Cristalina findings_PWB memo_20141002.pdf
	FROM:  Mark Barkley, Contracts Administration Unit, Managing Director
	SUBJECT: Cristalina LLC
	ISSUE:  Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (UTC) issued the following order on September 12, 2014 regarding Cristalina, LLC with the following judgments:
	1. Commission approves the transfer of assets of Cristalina LLC to Washington Water Service Company.
	2. Withdraw of penalties assessed against Maria Lindberg.
	3. Withdraw of penalties assessed against Cristalina, LLC.
	4. Assess a fine against Maria Lindberg in the amount of $12,700 to be paid over 3 years.
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	1. UTC staff is currently working the written order based on the decisions above.
	2. CAU staff expects to receive the UTC order in the next 1-2 weeks.
	3. CAU staff will present to the December PWB meeting the following actions contingent on the final UTC order being issued.
	a. A recommendation to the PWB to approve the assignment of DP09-952-034 to Washington Water.
	b. A recommendation to the PWB to waive all late fees associated with Cristalina LLC; Washington Water has agreed to make current the outstanding balance (both 2013 and 2014 payments) on DP09-952-034.
	c. Provide additional updates as necessary to Public Works Board meeting set for December 5, 2014.

	Blank Page
	B-1 - ESC Sustainable Infrastructure Contract Memo.pdf
	At the August 8, 2014 board meeting, you approved a request from the Center for Sustainable Infrastructure to co-sponsor a report that addresses the need for sustainable infrastructure approaches.  I am pleased to let you know that we have entered int...
	The contract is attached for your information.  Per the Board’s direction, flexibility as to the board’s involvement in marketing the report is written into the contract.  The Board has discretion to the extent of this involvement depending on the out...

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



